
 

AGENDA  
 
 
Meeting: Health Select Committee 

Place: Council Chamber - Council Offices, Monkton Park, Chippenham,  

 SN15 1ER 

Date: Tuesday 19 November 2013 

Time: 10.30 am  

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Samuel Bath, of Democratic Services, 
County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line (01225) 718211 or email 
samuel.bath@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 

Cllr Chris Caswill 
Cllr Mary Champion 
Cllr Christine Crisp (Chair) 
Cllr Mary Douglas 
Cllr Bob Jones MBE 
Cllr Gordon King 
Cllr Dr Helena McKeown 

Cllr John Noeken (Vice Chairman) 
Cllr Jeff Osborn 
Cllr Sheila Parker 
Cllr Nina Phillips 
Cllr Pip Ridout 
Cllr Ricky Rogers 

 

 
Substitutes: 

Cllr Pat Aves 
Cllr Chuck Berry 
Cllr Rosemary Brown 
Cllr Terry Chivers 
Cllr Dennis Drewett 
Cllr Sue Evans 
Cllr Russell Hawker 

Cllr David Jenkins 
Cllr Julian Johnson 
Cllr John Knight 
Cllr Ian McLennan 
Cllr Helen Osborn 
Cllr Mark Packard 

 

 
Stakeholders: 
 Steve Wheeler    Healthwatch Wiltshire 
 Dorothy Roberts   Wiltshire & Swindon Users Network (WSUN) 
 Brian Warwick    Advisor on Social Inclusion for Older People 
 



 



 PART I 

 Items to be considered whilst the meeting is open to the public 

 

1   Apologies  

 To note any apologies for the meeting. 

 

2   Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 8) 

 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 10 September 2013. 

 

3   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of disclosable interests or dispensations granted by 
the Standards Committee. 
 

 

4   Chairman's Announcements  

 To receive any announcements from the Chair. 

 

5   Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. 
 
Statements 
 
If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this 
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting. Up to 
3 speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item.  
Please contact the officer named above for any further clarification. 
 
Questions  
 
To receive any questions from members of the public or members of the 
Council received in accordance with the constitution. Those wishing to ask 
questions are required to give notice of any such questions in writing to the 
officer named above no later than 5pm on Tuesday 12 November 2013.  
Please contact the officer named on the first page of this agenda for further 
advice.  Questions may be asked without notice if the Chairman decides that 
the matter is urgent. 
 
Details of any questions received will be circulated to Committee members prior 
to the meeting and made available at the meeting and on the Council’s website. 

 
 



6   Royal United Hospital (RUH) action plan (Pages 9 - 64) 

 In February 2013, the Care Quality Commission (CQC) made an unannounced 
inspection of the Royal United Hospital (RUH).  James Scott Chief Executive, 
RUH, attended the Committee in July 2013 to present the RUH’s Action Plan in 
response to the February inspection report. 
 
The CQC returned to the RUH in June 2013 to undertake a follow-up inspection 
and produced their report in October 2013 (copy attached).  James Scott will be 
in attendance to present the Action Plan in response to the June inspection and 
answer members’ questions.  

 

7   Public Health Annual Report  

 Wiltshire’s Annual Public Health Report 2012/13 can be accessed from the 
following link: 
 
http://www.wiltshire.gov.uk/latestnews.htm?aid=146117 
 
John Goodall, Associate Director, Public Health will be in attendance to present 
the report and to answer any questions from the Committee. 

 

8   Continuing Healthcare (CHC) Update (Pages 65 - 70) 

 In January 2012 the then Health and Adult Social Care Select Committee 
established a non-executive working group (between Wiltshire Council and the 
NHS) to review NHS Continuing Healthcare (CHC) and the Council’s 
partnership working arrangements for both CHC and joint packages of care. 
 
NHS CHC is a package of continuing care provided outside hospital and 
arranged and funded solely by the NHS, for people with ongoing healthcare 
needs.  Where a person has health and social care needs, but their main needs 
are health needs, the NHS is responsible for funding both the health and social 
care services required.  NHS CHC is free, unlike social and community care 
services, which are means-tested. 
 
The working group presented its report to the Health Select Committee in July 
2012 and made 7 recommendations, one of which was that the Committee 
should receive an update on developments at its meeting in January 2013.  This 
was deferred until March 2013 when Deborah Gray, Deputy Director of Nursing 
and Patient Safety, NHS Wiltshire and Sue Geary, Head of Performance, Health 
and Workforce, gave an update on the CHC arrangements. 
 
At the meeting in March it was stated that the pathway had been improved, 
although some actions were still to be completed. It was confirmed that the 
responsibility for CHC now fell to the Wiltshire Clinical Commissioning Group 
(CCG).  As some actions were still incomplete the Committee requested an 
update at its meeting in September 2013.  This was deferred until November 
2013.   



 
A copy of the CHC report and updated recommendations are included for 
consideration. Jacqui Chidgey-Clark and Dina Lewis, Wiltshire CCG will be in 
attendance to discuss the report and to answer any questions. 

 

9   Forward Work Programme  

 The Committee is asked to consider: 
 

a) Outstanding items on the forward work programme 
i) Help to Live at Home 
ii) Urgent Care / Winter Pressures 
 

b) Task Group updates 
i) Transfer to Care Task Group 
ii) Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) Task Group 
iii) Continence Services Task Group 
iv) Review of AWP services (Dementia) 
v) Air Quality Joint Task Group  

 

10   Urgent Items  

 To consider any other items of business that the Chairman agrees to consider 
as a matter of urgency. 

 

11   Date of Next Meeting  

 The next Health Select Committee will be held on Tuesday 7 January 2014 in 
the North Wiltshire Room - County Hall, Trowbridge BA14 8JN. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE HEALTH SELECT COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
10 SEPTEMBER 2013 AT COUNCIL CHAMBER - COUNCIL OFFICES, MONKTON 
PARK, CHIPPENHAM, SN15 1ER. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Chris Caswill, Cllr Mary Champion, Cllr Christine Crisp (Chair), Cllr Mary Douglas, 
Cllr Julian Johnson (Substitute), Cllr Bob Jones MBE, Cllr Gordon King, Cllr John Knight 
(Substitute), Cllr Helena McKeown, Cllr John Noeken (Vice Chairman), Cllr Jeff Osborn, 
Cllr Nina Phillips and Mr Brian Warwick 
 
Also  Present: 
 
Cllr Jemima Milton and Cllr Jonathon Seed 
 
  

 
89 Apologies 

 
Apologies for the meeting were received from Steve Wheeler from Healthwatch 
Wiltshire. Paul Lefever attended the meeting as a representative of Healthwatch 
Wiltshire. 
 
Keith Humphries, Cabinet Member for Public Health, Protection Services, Adult 
Care and Housing, sent apologies for the meeting. 
 
Cllr Sheila Parker sent apologies for the meeting. Cllr Julian Johnson attended 
as a substitute. 
 
Cllr Pip Ridout sent apologies for the meeting. Cllr John Knight attended as a 
substitute. 
 
Cllr Ricky Rogers sent apologies for the meeting. 
 
The Committee also noted apologies from Justine Button from the Care Quality 
Commission (CQC) who was due to update the committee on the CQC 
inspection of the Royal United Hospital Bath (RUH). 
 

90 Minutes of the Previous Meeting 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 2 July 2013 were presented, and subject to 
the amendment to Item 78: Declarations of Interest, and item 88: Help to live at 
Home Report it was, 
 
Resolved: 
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 3 July 2013 were signed and approved 
as a true and accurate record. 
 

91 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr Mary Douglas and Cllr Helena McKeown referenced the declarations of 
interest made under Item 78 from 2 July 2013. 
 

92 Chairman's Announcements 
 
The Chair made the following announcements: 
 

a) The Committee expressed their thanks to Linda Griffiths of the Wiltshire 
& Swindon Users Network for the support and input to the Committee. 
 

b) The Chair invited Kevin McNamara, Head of Communications & 
Stakeholder Engagement, at Great Western Hospital (GWH) to provide 
an update on the Trowbridge Birthing Centre. It was stated that additional 
midwives had been recruited to staff the unit, and that the Birthing Centre 
was due to re-open at the end of September 2013.  
 
The Committee then expressed some concern over the historical 
absence figures for midwifery during the winter period.It was agered that 
figures for the sickness/absence would be provided to the committee in 6 
months. 
 
It was stated that the Workforce Staffing Committee had monitored the 
sickness/absence figures. 
 
It was;  
 
Resolved:  
 
That the Committee would review sickness/absence figures in 
midwifery at its meeting in March 2014. 
   

c) The Chair updated the Committee with the Business Plan 2014-17 
developments, and noted the suggestions and recommendations that the 
committee had made. The Business Plan has since been formerly 
approved by Council. 
 

Page 2



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

d) The Chair informed the Committee that the Children’s Select Committee 
on 10 October 2013 would be scrutinising a report on overnight stays for 
disabled children. Members of the Health Select Committee were 
informed that the Chair of Children’s Select had invited any members 
with an interest in the topic or those who wish to contribute to the 
discussion, to attend the meeting. 
 

e) The Chair announced that meetings had been held with key partner 
agencies including the Chief Executives of the RUH and Salisbury 
District Hospitals, the CQC and Healthwatch Wiltshire, to identify how 
organisations can constructively work together to address the 
recommendations identified in the Francis Report.   
 
Future meetings with GWH, the Royal National Hospital for Rheumatic 
Diseases, the CCG and the Cabinet Member for Public Health and Adult 
Social Care have also been planned. An update will be made to the 
committee following the completion of this round of meetings. 

 
93 Public Participation 

 
No questions were received from members of the public. 
 

94 Update from Care Quality Commission 
 
The Committee noted the apologies from Justine Button (CQC) and the offer to 
update the Committee at the next meeting. 
 

95 Adults Safeguarding Annual Report 2012/13 
 
The Committee welcomed Margaret Sheather, Independent Chair of the 
Wiltshire Safeguarding Adults Board, to present the Board’s Annual Report. 
 
The Chair invited the Committee to comment on the final draft report before 
being taken to the Health and Wellbeing Board.  
 
Margaret Sheather outlined the key findings from the report and highlighted 
areas in the business plan that focus on developing safeguarding practices and 
awareness throughout the region. 
 
The Committee questioned funding arrangements for partnership working and 
how funding is organised when partnerships extend beyond the county. Ms 
Sheather stated that partnership funding arrangements and changes to budgets 
and cost sharing were due to be discussed at the Health and Wellbeing Board 
in September 2013. 
 
The Committee scrutinised the reported figures and focussed on the inclusion of 
domestic violence and abuse with regard to vulnerable adults. It was clarified 
that figures were included if there were additional safeguarding vulnerabilities 

Page 3



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

as opposed to those who were vulnerable to domestic abuse. Ms Sheather 
added that the remit of the Board was to effectively engage safeguarding adults 
work with; the safeguarding of children, domestic violence, bullying/hate crimes, 
MAPPA and wider work on community safety. 
 
A discussion took place with regard to Safeguarding alerts, with the rise in 
figures being attributed to an increased awareness of safeguarding concerns. 
The Committee discussed the comments and reviews made in the report by the 
Adults Safeguarding Lead. 
 
The Chair invited Jacqui Chidgey-Clark Director of Quality and Patient Safety at 
NHS Wiltshire CCG to address the committee. Jacqui Chidgey-Clark addressed 
the safeguarding shortcomings that had been previously identified and were 
continuously monitored in monthly clinical quality review meetings. Changes 
had also been made in new contractual arrangements. 
 
The Committee discussed the findings that outlined the victim’s relationship to 
alleged perpetrator and were concerned that at the number relating to care 
staff. The Committee agreed that the importance of training and support for care 
staff was crucial in reducing safeguarding incidents. Margaret reaffirmed that 
not all safeguarding alerts are substantiated, and that high numbers could be 
reflective of greater awareness of abuse as opposed to increased abuse. 
 
Ms Sheather stated that all organisations are responsible for training their staff 
to meet regulatory requirements. Jacqui Chidgey-Clark confirmed that training 
for child and adult safeguarding is provided to all NHS organisations in the 
region. 
 
James Cawley, Service Director for Adult Care and Social Housing, stated that 
at a recent Care Partnership AGM, safeguarding was represented as the 
number one priority. James Cawley confirmed that Safeguarding is a significant 
priority for Wiltshire Council also. 
 
Brian Warwick then raised a question over the key plans and objectives for the 
Safeguarding Adults Board, and questioned the role of the Operations Group. 
The committee discussed the objectives listed in the report, and the role of 
SWASFT. 
 
The Committee discussed the role of membership on the Board, and suggested 
more representation from the voluntary sector. It was explained that the views 
of many voluntary groups were considered. There are reporting and monitoring 
groups that report directly to the Board that identify issues specific to particular 
voluntary groups. 
 
Cllr Jemima Milton spoke and acknowledged the work of Margaret Sheather 
and George O’Neil, Head of Service for Specialist Commissioning: Mental 
Health & Substance Misuse. 
 

Page 4



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

Irene Kohler, Chair of the Board at SWAN Advocacy commented that the 
SWAN Annual report had not been included in the Adults Safeguarding Annual 
Report and highlighted the role advocates have in raising alerts and concerns 
over representatives at risk. Margaret agreed to include the SWAN Annual 
Report and recognised the role of advocacy in enablement of ‘at risk’ adults. 
 
Following the discussion the Committee; 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the Adults Safeguarding Annual Report 2012/13. 
 
 
 

96 Clinical Commissioning Group: Transformation Programme 
 
Lynn Talbot, Interim Director of Community Transformation at Wiltshire CCG, 
made a presentation to the committee on the CCG’s Community Transformation 
programme. The Transformation Programme focuses on moving care closer to 
community care.  
 
Ms Talbot outlined the strategy of the programme and the focus on ‘at risk’ 
needs and acute care and outlined the differences attributable to various 
healthcare requirements.  
 
Ms Talbot outlined the pyramid care model, detailing the number of at risk 
service users and the specialist types of care received. The role of 
neighbourhood teams in facilitating acute and primary care was also discussed, 
and it was conveyed that the roles would include discharge support, nursing 
and care home support, integrated case management and community based re-
ablement. Ms Talbot invited the Committee to suggest ideas as to how 
neighbourhood teams could facilitate community engagement. 
 
Ms Talbot outlined the planned urgent care community response programme 
that is expected to be used for winter and urgent care. This involves using a 
simple point of access for information sharing and access.  
 
The Committee raised concerns over how the 23 clusters that have been 
identified, and how the clusters would interact with the 18 area model used by 
the Council. Ms Talbot confirmed that engagements with Area Boards would be 
encouraged and plans to utilise the Councils planned campus model to support 
the NHS Wiltshire Community Transformation programme would be welcomed. 
 
The Committee raised concern over the level of engagement with older people 
and requested closer working with adults ‘at risk’, and questioned how the CCG 
could work to satisfy older people’s needs.  
 

Page 5



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

The Committee welcomed the partnership plans and increased home care. Cllr 
Douglas questioned how cultures would be adjusted to suit the delivery of home 
care. Ms Talbot stated that there would be a requirement for culture change, 
and Wiltshire CCG is currently exploring how the voluntary sector and health 
and social care teams can work together. 
 
The Committee questioned how the Council’s campus programme would impact 
on social care and work with Area Boards.  
 
The Committee also highlighted concerns over the lack of inclusion of GP 
Practice contributions to the planned service model. Lynne Talbot stated that 
the model is still under construction and that the CCG were working with Public 
Health organisations to design a complete model by October 2013. Cllr Caswill 
highlighted specific concerns over financial liabilities of healthcare at home, and 
in particular the overlap with social care. James Cawley offered clarity to Cllr 
Caswill’s concerns, outlining differences between social care and healthcare. 
The Committee then questioned the construct of neighbourhood teams, and 
highlighted concern that there was a scope for future service delivery by 
Neighbourhood Teams to be conducted entirely by the private sector.  
 
The Committee discussed monitoring the Integrated Care Fund Budget and 
Wiltshire’s funding eligibility. 
 
Cllr Helena McKeown then questioned how much of the £3.8bn Integrated care 
fund budget would be available to Wiltshire’s Health and Social care providers. 
The Committee discussed how the fund could support homeless and the frail 
elderly.  
 
Following discussions, the committee; 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note the update on the Wiltshire CCG Community Transformation 
Programme. 
 

97 Forward Work Programme 
 
NHS 111 
 
The Committee discussed the NHS 111 service in light of the broadcast of the 
Dispatches: Undercover in NHS 111 television programme. Dr Steve Rowlands 
(Chair of Wiltshire CCG) was in attendance to answer members questions and 
provide an update on the service to the committee. 
 
Dr Steve Rowlands clarified that the CCG had set up a rectification task force to 
monitor the performance of the 111 service, and that the task force worked with 
the Clinical Governance group to resolve the performance issues. There have 
been steady improvements in performance of the service, and it is expected 

Page 6



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

that the service will launch at some point during the autumn, once it is meeting 
its performance targets. The committee also raised concerns over some of the 
performance measures, with some concern raised by Cllr McKeown over the 
time taken to speak to a clinician, not time taken to answer the phone. 
 
 
Task Groups 
 
The committee noted that Task Groups for Transfers to Care, Continence 
Services, Clinical Commissioning Group, Review of AWP Services and Air 
Quality (Joint with ESC) were due to meet after the current meeting, and that 
updates from each would be available at the next meeting. 
 

98 Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

99 Date of Next Meeting 
 
The following meeting dates were noted for future reference: 
 
19 November 2013 – Council Chamber, Monkton Park, Chippenham.  
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  12.40 pm) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Samuel Bath, of Democratic 
Services, direct line (01225) 718211, e-mail samuel.bath@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 
 

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D >

!"#$%&'()"*+%$),'

We are the regulator: Our job is to check whether hospitals, care homes and care 
services are meeting essential standards.

Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust

E*-'()+-%":FF*('%G",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0G"H+I;'"
J/-DG"4/)5G""4K>"?6L

8'0M"=><<NO<P??>

E/)'"+F"#$%&'()*+$%M <="Q9$'"<=>?
>R"Q9$'"<=>?
>P"Q9$'"<=>?
>S"Q9$'"<=>?

E/)'"+F"J9;0*(/)*+$M":()+;'-"
<=>?

T'"*$%&'()'2")5'"F+00+@*$C"%)/$2/-2%")+"(5'(D")5/)"/()*+$"5/2";''$")/D'$")+"I'')"
)5'IA"85*%"*%"@5/)"@'"F+9$2M

Respecting and involving people who use 

services

K()*+$"$''2'2

Care and welfare of people who use services K()*+$"$''2'2

Cooperating with other providers U')")5*%"%)/$2/-2

Safeguarding people who use services from 

abuse

K()*+$"$''2'2

Assessing and monitoring the quality of service 

provision

K()*+$"$''2'2

Records V$F+-('I'$)"/()*+$"
)/D'$

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D <

Details about this location

,'C*%)'-'2"J-+W*2'- ,+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)

:W'-W*'@"+F")5'"
%'-W*('

,+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"*%"/$"/(9)'"5+%&*)/0"+$")5'"'2C'"
+F"4/)5"X9%)"+W'-"/"I*0'"F-+I")5'"('$)-'"+F")5'"(*).A"85'"
5+%&*)/0"(+W'-%"/"0+(/0"&+&90/)*+$"$9I;'-*$C"/-+9$2"5/0F"/"
I*00*+$"&'+&0'"*$"4/)5"/$2"%+I'"&/-)%"+F"6+-)5"V/%)"
7+I'-%')"/$2"T'%)'-$"T*0)%5*-'A

8.&'"+F"%'-W*(' K(9)'"%'-W*('%"@*)5"+W'-$*C5)";'2%

,'C90/)'2"/()*W*)*'% K%%'%%I'$)"+-"I'2*(/0")-'/)I'$)"F+-"&'-%+$%"2')/*$'2"
9$2'-")5'"U'$)/0"3'/0)5"K()">RP?

E*/C$+%)*("/$2"%(-''$*$C"&-+('29-'%

U/$/C'I'$)"+F"%9&&0."+F";0++2"/$2";0++2"2'-*W'2"&-+29()%

69-%*$C"(/-'

79-C*(/0"&-+('29-'%

8'-I*$/)*+$"+F"&-'C$/$(*'%

8-'/)I'$)"+F"2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"*$X9-.

Page 10



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D ?

Contents

When you read this report, you may find it useful to read the sections towards the back 
called 'About CQC inspections' and 'How we define our judgements'."
"

J/C'

Summary of this inspection:

T5."@'"(/--*'2"+9)")5*%"*$%&'()*+$ O

3+@"@'"(/--*'2"+9)")5*%"*$%&'()*+$ O

T5/)"&'+&0'")+02"9%"/$2"@5/)"@'"F+9$2 O

T5/)"@'"5/W'")+02")5'"&-+W*2'-")+"2+ N

U+-'"*$F+-I/)*+$"/;+9)")5'"&-+W*2'- N

Our judgements for each standard inspected:

,'%&'()*$C /$2 *$W+0W*$C &'+&0' @5+ 9%' %'-W*('% Y

H/-' /$2 @'0F/-' +F &'+&0' @5+ 9%' %'-W*('%""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""">=

H++&'-/)*$C @*)5 +)5'- &-+W*2'-%""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""">P

7/F'C9/-2*$C &'+&0' @5+ 9%' %'-W*('% F-+I /;9%'""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""<=

K%%'%%*$C /$2 I+$*)+-*$C )5' B9/0*). +F %'-W*(' &-+W*%*+$""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""<?

,'(+-2%"""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""""<Y

Information primarily for the provider:

K()*+$"@'"5/W'")+02")5'"&-+W*2'-")+")/D' ?<

" V$F+-('I'$)"/()*+$"@'"5/W'")/D'$" ?O

About CQC Inspections ?N

How we define our judgements ?Y

Glossary of terms we use in this report ?P

Contact us O=

Page 11



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 4 
 

 

  

Summary of this inspection 

  

 
Why we carried out this inspection 

 

We carried out this inspection to check whether Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust had 
taken action to meet the following essential standards: 

• Respecting and involving people who use services 

• Care and welfare of people who use services 

• Cooperating with other providers 

• Safeguarding people who use services from abuse 

• Assessing and monitoring the quality of service provision 

• Records 

This was an unannounced inspection. 
 

How we carried out this inspection 

We looked at the personal care or treatment records of people who use the service, carried 
out a visit on 17 June 2013, 18 June 2013, 19 June 2013 and 20 June 2013, observed how 
people were being cared for and checked how people were cared for at each stage of their 
treatment and care. We talked with people who use the service, talked with carers and / or 
family members, talked with staff and reviewed information given to us by the provider. We 
were accompanied by a specialist advisor. 
 
We used the Short Observational Framework for Inspection (SOFI). SOFI is a specific way 
of observing care to help us understand the experience of people who could not talk with us. 
 
What people told us and what we found 
 
This inspection visit was to follow up compliance actions from the responsive inspection that 
was conducted in February 2013. At that time concerns were raised about the manner in 
which some patients had been discharged without adequate information and support.  At 
this inspection we also reviewed governance systems and the mental capacity assessments 
that took place at the hospital.      
 
We took a nurse with us who had expert knowledge in discharge arrangements, a 
psychiatrist with an expertise in the Mental Health Act 1983, who spoke with voluntary  
patients who were receiving treatment for their mental health, and a manager within CQC 
with expertise in Governance arrangements in acute trusts. 
 
During our inspection we looked at three areas of care at the hospital. These were all the 
older people’s wards, the emergency department and the day surgery unit (DSU). We also 
visited the theatre recovery area. 
 
We met and talked with many patients during our visit. Staff were approachable and open in 
their discussions with us. Where patients were not able to talk with us for various reasons, 
we spent time observing how care and support was delivered. We saw and were given 
written evidence from the trust. This included patients' notes, hospital records and 
recordings of their clinical observations. 

Page 12



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 5 
 

We met with consultant medical staff, pharmacists, therapy staff, registered nurses and 
healthcare assistants. The majority of staff we met with showed a professional and caring 
attitude towards their patients. We also met with hospital directors and senior management 
staff. 
 
We found the trust ensured they met patients’ treatment and care needs on the day surgery 
unit as it was no longer being used routinely as a facility to care for inpatients from other 
parts of the hospital. They had also ensured correct information and support resources were 
put in place for patients discharge from the older people’s wards we visited. 
 
We met with fifteen patients and six patients’ visitors. Comments included “I’m sleeping fine 
at night”….“haven’t rung the bell – there’s no need” (as they pointed to the staff around and 
available to support). Four visitors on two different wards also gave us positive comments, 
one of them telling us how the patient they were seeing was “improving.” 
 
We discussed patients with staff on all of the wards. We made observations of patients who 
were too unwell or frail to talk to us. We saw some warm and kind interactions between staff 
and patients. 
 
We visited four older people’s wards. On three of these wards we found the systems in place 
for the assessment, planning and delivery of care were not fully effective in ensuring patients 
care needs were met. We also found records were not being completed in a consistent 
manner, including records of patients’ fluid intake and output on these wards. Patient’s 
privacy and dignity were respected. However, on two of the four older people's wards, at the 
time of the inspection visit, we saw instances where patients were not having their privacy 
and dignity maintained.  
 
On one older people’s ward we found there were not suitable arrangements in place to 
protect people against the risk of excessive control. This was related to the use of assistive 
technology (‘tagging’) patients with cognitive impairment who were at risk if they left the 
ward. 
 
We saw there was a system in place to regularly assess and monitor the quality of service 
that people receive and to identify, assess and manage risks to the health, safety and 
welfare of patients and others. These internal quality assurance mechanisms had not been 
effective in ensuring improvements required as a result of our last inspection had been 
implemented. We saw a number of improvements had been made and were in the process 
of being implemented. 
 
You can see our judgements on the front page of this report.  

What we have told the provider to do 

We have asked the provider to send us a report by ��������	
����, setting out the action 

they will take to meet the standards. We will check to make sure that this action is taken. 

Where we have identified a breach of a regulation during inspection which is more serious, 
we will make sure action is taken. We will report on this when it is complete. 

Where providers are not meeting essential standards, we have a range of enforcement 
powers we can use to protect the health, safety and welfare of people who use this service 
(and others, where appropriate). When we propose to take enforcement action, our decision 
is open to challenge by the provider through a variety of internal and external appeal 

Page 13



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 6 
 

processes. We will publish a further report on any action we take. 
 
More information about the provider 

Please see our website www.cqc.org.uk for more information, including our most recent 
judgements against the essential standards. You can contact us using the telephone 
number on the back of the report if you have additional questions. 

There is a glossary at the back of this report which has definitions for words and phrases we 
use in the report. 
 

Page 14



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 7 
 

  

  

Our judgements for each standard inspected 

  

 
  

Respecting and involving people who use services  Action needed 
 

 
   

 

People should be treated with respect, involved in discussions about their care 
and treatment and able to influence how the service is run  

  

 
Our judgement 

The provider was not meeting this standard. 

Patient’s privacy and dignity were respected. However, on two of the four older people's 
wards, at the time of the inspection visit, we saw instances where patients were not having 
their privacy and dignity maintained. 

We have judged that this has a minor impact on people who use the service, and have told 
the provider to take action. Please see the ‘Action’ section within this report.  

 
 
Reasons for our judgement 

At our last inspection on 4 to 6 February 2013, we found inpatients accommodated on the 
day surgery unit (DSU) were not having their privacy and dignity maintained. At this 
inspection we visited the DSU and spoke with seven patients, three relatives and four staff. 
We also looked at the trust’s action plan following our last inspection and what actions it had 
taken. To establish if there were any inpatients who had stayed overnight in the unit we 
started our inspection of the DSU at 10:20 on Monday 17 June 2013. The DSU had 
re-opened at 7:30 am that morning because it had been closed over the weekend. We saw 
there was no evidence of any inpatients being cared for on that ward and that the only 
patients were those arriving for day surgery that day We also returned to the DSU at 14:00 
on 20 June 2013 to review the situation. We found all of the patients on the DSU had been 
admitted for day surgery only and so there were no inpatients on the DSU on either of the 
occasions we visited. 
 
We saw the trust had completed the actions in their action plan dated May 2013. For 
example they had “reviewed DSU admission criteria and reinforced with staff the use of DSU 
for 23 hour patients”. Staff told us this meant it was much “easier” for them to ensure 
patient’s privacy and dignity were maintained. A registered nurse told us “the changes have 
made everything better for patients. Patients are here for much shorter periods now.” The 
trust had also ‘reviewed DSU admission criteria’ to ensure patients’ needs could be met on 
DSU. Staff confirmed this had taken place and staff were clearer who the ward was “actually 
for”. 
 
At our last inspection patients reported disturbed sleep due to the amount of night time 
activity on the ward and there was a lack of washing facilities. We saw the hospital’s action 
plan stated they were in the process of ‘providing an additional shower’. This was to stop 
mixed gender shower rooms on the unit. We saw building works to provide a second shower 

Page 15



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 8 
 

room were nearly complete when we visited. Patients on the DSU were positive about the 
environment and the staff team. Comments included “staff are always nice when I come 
here.” 
 
In the action plan, the trust stated ‘DSU staff were made clear of DSU function when the trust 
is in red or black escalation’, meaning when urgent admissions mean the trust had to 
provide additional bed capacity in areas not usually used for inpatient care, such as DSU. 
Staff members we spoke with confirmed they knew about this plan but one staff member told 
us “they were still anxious” about what would happen when the “time came”. We discussed 
this with the Matron who told us there were action cards with instructions for staff to follow if 
the trust went into black escalation, which we saw at the nurses’ station. 
 
We visited the four designated older people’s wards over a four day period. Across all the 
wards we visited we spoke with 17 patients and made observations of care for a six further 
patients who were too unwell or frail to talk to us. We spoke with six patients’ visitors. We 
spoke with 23 members of staff including registered nurses, healthcare assistants and 
therapists and the matron. We read 32 inpatients records and 4 post discharge patient 
records. We also completed timed observations of a lunchtime meal for an hour period. 
 
These were in two separate bays in one ward. Although we saw generally people’s privacy 
and dignity were respected, we observed a few instances where this was not the case. 
 
On two of the older people’s wards the hospital had suitable arrangements to ensure 
patients’ privacy, dignity and independence. On one of these wards, we met with a frail 
elderly patient. They were smartly turned out in their own clothes, including a tie. They said 
they appreciated being supported to dress in the way they wanted. They told us they were 
comfortable and we observed their fingernails were very clean. 
 
We saw another patient on the same ward was being addressed by the first name they 
preferred, not the name documented in the front of their records. We saw there was clear 
documentation relating to the patient’s preferred name in their records. A member of staff 
told us it was important to make sure staff addressed a patient in the way they preferred.  
 
However, on the other wards we visited we saw the hospital did not have suitable 
arrangements to ensure people’s privacy, dignity and independence. On one of these two 
wards we were alerted to a patient in soiled bed because of the odour which permeated into 
the corridor. We observed the patient waited 10 minutes in this odorous, soiled bed, before 
staff came to help them. The call bell was not accessible to this patient, as it was on the 
wrong side for the patient to reach. The patient who was immobile was calling for help during 
this time. At the point when we had decided it had been too long and we were about to look 
for staff to help, staff came to support them. 
 
On the same ward we were about to visit a visibly frail patient when staff appropriately asked 
us to wait until they had given them personal care. This personal care was not fully effective. 
When we visited the patient, half an hour afterwards, we found they had brown food 
supplement staining round their mouth and their left hand had dirty finger nails. 

On the other ward, we saw two female patients, on different occasions, in toilets with the 
toilet door wide open. One patient had their underwear visible round their legs. One of the 
occasions took place when there were visitors to the ward, so the patient could have been 
seen by visitors. The first patient we observed was having difficulty standing; they had a 
Zimmer frame in front of them and were visibly struggling. We saw there were nursing and 
healthcare assistants in this area and they did not assist them. We brought this to the 

Page 16



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 9 
 

attention of the nurse in charge. 

We asked nursing staff on this ward what they understood by patient dignity. They were 
unable to explain or relate the issue to the delivery of care to patients. We asked them how 
they and the unqualified staff showed respect for patients. They had a similar difficulty in 
describing the care they gave to patients which ensured patients were treated with dignity. 

The Nursing and Midwifery Council’s Guidance for Care of Older People (2009) states 
registered nurses “have a responsibility to ensure that care which older people receive is of 
a consistently high standard whether it is provided by yourself, a colleague or someone you 
delegate care to. You need therefore to be continually monitoring and challenging if poor 
care is provided by colleagues and championing the quality of each older person’s care 
experience. It is important that you give feedback to colleagues on their competence in 
caring, especially in relation to their behaviour and attitude”. In the light of our findings we 
found this guidance was not being followed consistently. 

We asked the senior nursing staff about why the staff had not assisted these two patients in 
a timely manner. We asked about the system for monitoring the patient care given by staff, 
including care assistants. We were told “I am always telling the staff about this sort of thing” 
and “I keep telling the girls but what can I do”…”I just cannot be everywhere.” They stated it 
was “difficult” for qualified staff to always know what was being delivered by the unqualified 
staff. They stated that, while the ward sisters were meant to be supernumerary this could not 
always be the case due to patient acuity and overall activity.  

We asked about one ward which was divided into two parts which was very busy. We were 
told often the senior nurse on duty held the bleep in charge of the whole ward. Each part of 
the ward had its own registered nurse in charge. Often, “cover” had to be obtained from 
other wards. We saw this was the case on two out of the three days we were on the ward. 
The most senior of the qualified staff had overall charge for both parts of the ward, in 
addition they had to undertake clinical work on their own side. We asked about the patients 
on the other side. The nurse in charge was unable to tell us about those patients in detail 
because the only information available to them was nursing information included in the shift 
handover notes. Nursing staff told us this impacted on their ability to supervise the way in 
which staff were delivering care and treatment.

Page 17



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 10 
 

 

  

Care and welfare of people who use services  Action needed 
 

 
   

 

People should get safe and appropriate care that meets their needs and supports 
their rights  

  

 
Our judgement 

The provider was not meeting this standard. 

There were systems in place for patients’ to have their care needs, assessed, planned and 
delivered. On three of the older people’s wards these systems were not being used in a 
co-ordinated and consistent way. Care delivery by staff generally was managed to meet 
patients’ care and treatment needs, but risks remained of inappropriate or unsafe care. At 
times there were delays in the assessment of patient’s mental health needs in the 
emergency department.  

We have judged that this has a moderate impact on people who use the service, and have 
told the provider to take action. Please see the ‘Action’ section within this report.  

 
 
Reasons for our judgement 

At the last inspection on 4 to 6 February 2013 we found that patients being cared for and 
treated on the day surgery unit (DSU) were not having their care needs adequately 
assessed, planned and delivered. The care and treatment arrangements on the unit were 
not organised around the range of care needs of the patients accommodated there. 
 
We started our inspection of the DSU at 10:20 on Monday 17 June 2013. There had been no 
patients accommodated overnight and the unit had therefore opened at 7.30am that 
morning. Patients being cared for on the unit were those arriving for day surgery that day. 
We also returned to the DSU at 14:00 on 20 June 2013 to review the situation. We found all 
of the patients on the DSU had been admitted for day surgery. There were no inpatients on 
the DSU on either of the occasions we visited during our inspection visit. 
 
At this inspection we found the trust had met its action plan dated May 2013 in relation to the 
DSU, in that DSU had returned to being a 23 hour ward. 
 
In their action plan the trust had stated they would review availability of documentation within 
DSU. A ward clerk was to appointed for DSU who would be responsible for maintaining a 
supply of relevant documentation. A shift coordinator would ensure all patients had 
appropriate nursing documentation completed, including initial and on-going risk 
assessments. We saw all these actions had been completed. We saw the ward clerk busy 
on both day we visited carrying out duties, including the management of patients’ notes and 
records. 
 
We spoke with seven patients and three relatives who all made positive comments about the 
DSU. These included “staff are lovely” … “my experience has been very positive”… the 
surgeon was “really clear and helpful”. 
 

Page 18



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 11 
 

We spoke with five registered nurses and a matron who confirmed inpatients had not been 
admitted to the DSU for the past six weeks. The staff we spoke with were positive about the 
changes. A registered nurse told us “it’s massively changed”. A member of staff also told us 
a new clinical lead had been appointed to lead the DSU. This member of staff said that they 
felt this was a positive improvement in service provision allowing them to discuss concerns 
and develop the service. 
 
A matron told us inpatients were no longer accommodated in the DSU for over 23 hours 
following their Spring to Green week” initiative in May 2013. They told us the initiative had 
been trust-wide to make long term improvements, increase patient safety, improve staff 
morale and work towards the trust’s capacity status being maintained at a ”green” escalation 
level. 
 
We read the report summary of the ‘Spring to Green week’ summary of outcomes completed 
by the trust after the event. It stated the aim was to “ensure the right patient is in the right 
bed”. It explained ‘the week was managed in the same formula as a critical incident with a 
command centre and performance against each expected outcome measured throughout 
the day’. 
 
The matron told us the impact the event had on the DSU. The improvements included 
increased bed availability, the IT was improved so all computers could be utilised and they 
had two computers on wheeled trolleys. This meant staff could make assessments at the 
patient’s bedside and make more space in the previously crowded work station.  
 
The matron and the registered nurses described the regular reviews held about patient 
status to improve bed management. The matron told us if the DSU needed to be used as an 
inpatient facility in the future on a temporary basis, it would be ensured staff had all the 
inpatient documentation they would need to care for patients safely. The matron told us if the 
unit went into increased escalation, patient placement in the hospital would be reviewed on 
a case by case basis regularly throughout the day. The aim was to make sure each patient 
was in the correct bed to meet their needs. 
 
The head of adult social care for Wiltshire Social Services confirmed an improvement in bed 
management in the hospital. They told us that since May 2013, they had found older patients 
were no longer being moved around the hospital and were placed on wards appropriate to 
meeting their needs. 
 
A member of staff on the DSU told us there was still some anxiety among members of staff 
about what would happen in DSU during any future periods of black escalation. Following 
the ‘Spring to Green’ week the trust stated there were improvements. For example, bed 
occupancy decreased from 99.4% in April 2013 to 88.1% in May 2013. Extra capacity beds 
above baseline bed capacity (opened in response to an escalation situation) had reduced in 
May to zero, from 71 beds in April. We were not able to judge how much the improvement 
was related to the ‘Spring to Green’ action plan and patient flows in and out of the hospital 
associated with the wider health and social care system. We saw the Trust had developed 
action cards for all staff detailing what they should do in a period of black escalation. There 
had also been a mock inspection completed by the senior management in the Trust to 
assess progress against their action plan. 
 
Following our inspection of February 2013 we received information, from a range of sources, 
about patients remaining on the recovery unit of operating theatres for extended periods of 
time, care on the older people’s wards and the carrying out of mental health assessments in 
the emergency department. At this visit we looked at these areas. On three of the four older 

Page 19



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 12 
 

people’s wards we found shortfalls in assessment, care planning and delivery of care in the 
areas of nutrition and hydration, pain management and pressure area care. In the 
emergency department we found delays in the assessment of people’s mental health needs. 
At the time of the inspection we found the arrangements in theatres and recovery were 
satisfactory following the ‘Spring to Green’ week initiative. 

We met with three members of staff in the operating theatres and recovery unit. They told us 
patients remained on recovery only while they were recovering from their operations. They 
were then taken to the wards as soon as they were deemed medically fit to do so. They told 
us that during the period of black alert earlier in the year, they had experienced some 
patients waiting on the recovery unit until a bed was available on a ward. The theatre 
manager told us how this had been managed and we looked at their data. The manager 
described how communication systems had worked across all of the operating theatres 
during this period, to minimise risk to patients. This had involved making sure theatre 
personnel, including surgeons, were aware of the situation with bed capacity. The theatre 
manager showed us the hospital’s system for making risk alerts when lengths of stay in the 
recovery unit were extended. These alerts were made using the hospital’s electronic risk 
management incident recording system. The theatre manager showed us how they were 
sent reports from the system regularly, so they could monitor the situation and ensure senior 
managers were aware of potential risks to patients. 

All of the staff we spoke with described the work which had taken place during “Spring to 
Green” initiative six weeks previously and how this had given them time to look at practice 
across operating theatres and recovery to ensure the service operated safely and patient 
safety was maintained. The operating theatre manager showed us the current report from 
the electronic risk management system which showed us patients remained in recovery only 
for the periods required according to their status.  

We visited the four designated older people’s wards over a four day period. We spoke with 
fifteen patients and made observations of care of a six further patients who were too unwell 
or frail to talk to us. We spoke with six patients’ visitors. We also performed observations of 
a lunchtime meal in two bays on one ward. We met with 23 staff, including registered nurses, 
healthcare assistants and therapists. We read the records of ten of the patients we met with 
and discussed patients’ needs with staff. We also read a further 32 paper records in depth 
and followed a sample of five of these records through to the hospital’s electronic record 
keeping system and looked at how the data was carried across. This was so we could 
understand how needs assessment and care and treatment planning were recorded and 
used by staff for the delivery of care and treatment. 

Three patients on two of the wards gave us positive comments. These included “it’s all good 
here” ….“I’m sleeping fine at night”….“haven’t rung the bell – there’s no need” – pointing at 
the staff around and available to support. Four visitors on two different wards also gave us 
positive comments, one of them telling us how the patient they were seeing was “improving.” 

We discussed two patients with four staff on one of the wards and they showed a clear 
understanding of how to care for them. We saw what they told us about these two patients 
had been fully documented so staff knew how to care for them safely. On all of the older 
people’s wards we visited, we saw people being moved and handled safely. This was done 
in accordance with national guidelines. During our periods of short observation we saw 
many instances of warm interactions between staff members’ and patients’. On three of the 
four older people’s wards we found that although there were systems in place to check 
patients’ care needs were being assessed, planned and delivered, these systems were not 
being used in a co-ordinated and consistent way. Because of these inconsistencies the trust 
could not be sure care and treatment reflected published guidance from expert bodies. We 

Page 20



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 13 
 

found the arrangements in place on Victoria ward were working effectively. Ward staff were 
aware of and following systems in place to ensure patient’s care and treatment needs were 
met and risks to their health and welfare reduced. 

Guidance from the National Institute for Health and Clinical and Healthcare Excellence 
(2012) (NICE) “Patient experience in adult NHS services; improving the experience of care 
for people using adult NHS services” states patients need to have their “physical and 
psychological needs regularly assessed and addressed, including nutrition, hydration, pain 
relief”. Providers need to “Ensure that the patient's nutrition and hydration are adequate at 
all times, if the patient is unable to manage this themselves, by: providing regular food and 
fluid of adequate quantity and quality in an environment conducive to eating…placing food 
and drink where the patient can reach them easily…encouraging and helping the patient to 
eat and drink if needed”. 

On two of the three wards where we found problems there were issues relating to hydration 
and nutrition. Staff showed us their use of the comfort round records. This was a monitoring 
tool to check on patient’s welfare needs. These were completed for all the patients we saw. 

Patients were offered drinks as part of comfort rounds, but this did not necessarily result in 
sufficient fluid intake and the information being included in fluid balance charts. 

We looked at 100 fluid balance charts of 37 patients who had been identified as at risk of too 
much, or too little fluid intake. The hydration chart gives a visual assessment of how much 
fluid the patient has drunk. Fluid balance charts document the balance between intake and 
output of fluids. So these can be measured and monitored each day and any discrepancies 
identified to ensure patient safety. These were not completed as required by the instructions 
in the trust’s new Hydration Bundle policy. We saw 90% of the fluid charts had not been 
used to assess these patients’ total intake and output, even when the patients’ had 
infections and / or were very unwell / had difficulty in drinking or feeding themselves. This 
contradicts good practice and the trust policy. As a consequence it was difficult to ensure 
these patients care was adequately monitored and assessed, because staff could not 
assess their patient’s condition in relation to their fluid balance each day.  

Following our last inspection the trust had recently introduced a new hydration chart for 
patients who were able to drink and did not need their output monitoring. We asked staff 
about this practice. They all said it was confusing having several different systems for 
recording and managing fluid intake, in use at the same time (fluid charts, hydration charts 
and comfort rounds). We spoke with four members of staff who all told us fluid balance and 
hydration information was not being used to help inform assessment and planning of care 
and treatment. One of these staff members said “no one looks at them anyway.” 

On one ward, we saw a service user had a full jug of water on their bedside table. They were 
holding a beaker with a small amount of liquid in it. They told us they knew they were meant 
to be drinking more. Although this patient had a hydration chart they did not have a recorded 
assessment of their hydration needs. The patient’s day to day hydration had not been 
assessed by totalling the amount of fluids they had been able to drink in 24 hours. When we 
did this we found on 19 June 2013 they had drunk a total of 350ml in 24 hours according to 
their hydration chart. This patient demonstrated to us how they were unable to lift the jug of 
water, as it was too heavy. We saw, and their care plan indicated, they had needs 
associated with shortness of breath. There was no assessment of their ability to drink 
independently, or whether they needed assistance to ensure adequate fluid intake. During 
an observation period at lunchtime we saw their jug remained full. The level of fluid in their 
beaker also remained the same. No member of staff poured a drink out for the patient or 
reminded them to drink throughout our observation period. 

Page 21



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 14 
 

 

On one ward we met with a patient whose records included a fluid balance chart and staff 
confirmed had been seriously unwell. The patient was too unwell to talk to us for any length 
of time. They said “I get thirsty and I don’t know how to get a drink if I want one.” They were 
lying on their side, with their back to the bedside table where their water jug and glass was 
placed. They had a note from the speech and language therapist pinned up on the board 
above their bed which stated they were only to be given drinks when alert and sitting up. We 
checked this patient’s fluid chart at 16:35, the last recorded fluid intake was a drink at 14:00 
the previous day. This patient did not have records included in their notes of the total fluid 
they had drunk each day to support assessment of their hydration. The patient did not have 
a plan of care about how they were to be supported to drink to prevent risk of dehydration. 
During our observations we did not see staff giving this patient support to help them drink. 

The ward staff were also not ensuring this patient’s dietary needs were met. At 14:30, this 
patient had a container of a dietary supplement on their bedside table, which was three 
quarters full. We asked a registered nurse to show us the patient’s nutritional risk 
assessment. The registered nurse showed us the hospital’s electronic record keeping 
system where nutritional assessments were made individually for all patients. This patient’s 
electronic nutritional risk assessment had last been completed on 9 May 2013 and the 
patient was found to be at nutritional risk. This was six weeks before our visit, whereas the 
hospital’s policy stated nutritional assessments should be carried out as a minimum once a 
month. 

This patient had a food chart. It was incomplete and did not show if they had been supported 
in taking the supplement. The last entry showed they had eaten three “spoonfuls” at 
breakfast the day before. The previous record to that had been made on 9 June 2013, when 
the patient had been documented as eating all of their breakfast and lunch, but the record 
had not been completed for the evening meal. When we returned to the patient at 16:35, the 
level in the food supplement had not changed and no additional record of the nutritional 
support the patient had been given that day.  

We asked a senior member of the nursing staff about completion of the patient’s nutritional 
record. They told us they had noticed these records had not been made. They told us the 
member of staff who was assisting the patient was the person who was meant to make the 
record. There were no assessments in the patient’s records of how much they had eaten on 
a daily basis and there was no plan of care to direct staff on how they were to plan to reduce 
the patient’s nutritional risk. 

On another ward, a patient’s visitor told us they had noticed a patient had struggled to eat. 
We asked a registered nurse to show us this patient’s nutritional risk assessment to see if 
this patient had been assessed as being at risk. The registered nurse showed us the 
patient’s nutritional risk assessment on the hospital’s electronic record keeping system and 
we saw it had not been completed. The registered nurse told us this was because the patient 
had not yet been weighed so the risk assessment could not be completed. The patient had 
been in the hospital for several weeks. 

During our observation period, we saw a member of staff placed the patient’s lunch on the 
table in front of them and gave them a spoon, saying it would be easier for the patient to eat 
with a spoon, as they were having a soft diet. The patient sat and looked at their lunch for 
three minutes, but did not start to eat. Their visitor then gave the patient their lunch. When 
the patient had eaten all they were able to, the visitor showed us the person had eaten 
approximately only a quarter of their meal. 

 

Page 22



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 15 
 

The visitor told us they thought concerns about the patient’s difficulty in eating had been 
reported to the ward sister. We looked in the patient’s medical records but there were no 
notes made about the patient having difficulty in eating. There were also no notes about the 
patient being given a soft diet. The patient’s medical records did not show they had been 
referred to a relevant therapist about their difficulties in eating.  

We asked a member of the nursing team who was working in the area about how the patient 
ate. They told us the patient usually needed help with most meals. We looked at the patient’s 
day to day chart about how much assistance with eating they required. Entries in the records 
had not been completed to assess the assistance this person needed to eat. The patient did 
not have a care plan about how their nutritional risk was to be reduced, to ensure their health 
safety and welfare. 

On the third ward where we found problems we met with two patients who were assessed as 
being at risk of pressure ulceration. Both patients were thin and frail. Staff confirmed they 
were unable to move their positions independently. We asked staff about changing patients’ 
positions when they were assessed as being of risk of pressure ulceration. They told us 
patients’ had their position changed every two hours and pressure relieving equipment was 
provided on their beds. We saw both patients had been provided with appropriate pressure 
relieving equipment on their beds. 

The NICE guideline Pressure Ulcer Management (2005, updated 2010) states that pressure 
ulcers, once developed can seriously affect a patient’s health, are painful and can increase 
risk of infection. Therefore the emphasis must always be on their prevention. This includes 
care of the skin, pressure relieving devices, appropriate nutrition and hydration. The use of 
pressure relieving equipment alone does not reduce risk. People at risk need to ensure they 
change their positions regularly and where they are not able to do this independently, there 
needs to be a system in place to make sure this happens. This is a summary of the NICE 
guidelines on good practice in relation to the management of pressure ulcers. 

One patient who was assessed as having a risk of developing pressure ulcers did not have a 
plan to ensure the care they were delivered met their needs and reduced their risk. The 
patient’s comfort round records which documented matters such as their position in bed 
were not completed daily. Three days before our inspection this patient’s records showed 
that although checks had been carried out six times between 06:30am to 01:30am the next 
day, during this 18 hour period their position had not been moved from being on their back. 
This patient’s record documented red areas had been observed on their heels four days 
before our inspection. We asked staff how they were given information on meeting patients’ 
needs. They told us this happened at handover and they wrote on the printed handover 
sheets about what they were to do for each patient. We looked at the ward handover sheet 
for this patient on the day we visited. It stated the patient’s pressure areas were “intact”, 
there was no further information about the patient or how often they should have their 
position changed. We asked a member of staff why the patient had remained on their back 
all the time. They told us the patient had a chest condition which made lying on their side 
difficult for them. They told us staff ensured the patient’s pressure areas were relieved when 
they attended to them during comfort rounds. We looked in the patient’s records and saw 
they did not have a care plan about how pressure ulcer risk was to be reduced. 

The second patient we reviewed for risk of pressure ulceration did not have a care plan in 
place to ensure their individual care needs were met and their risk reduced. The patient had 
an additional medical need which could further increase their risk, particularly to their heels. 
Their records also had not been completed to show whether their position had been 
changed regularly. 

 

Page 23



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 16 
 

We asked staff how they knew these patients’ positions were regularly changed. They told 
us patients should be moved during comfort round assistance every two hours. But they 
were unable to confirm this had been done as there were no accurate records. They said 
patients’ risks were shared at the safety briefing at shift handover, but this did not include 
detailed information about how often patients’ had been moved position and skin integrity 
status at each shift. 

NICE guidelines “Patient experience in adult NHS services; improving the experience of 
care for people using adult NHS services” (2012) states: “If a patient is unable to manage 
their own pain relief: do not assume that pain relief is adequate….ask them regularly about 
pain…. assess pain using a pain scale if necessary (for example, on a scale of 1 to 
10)….provide pain relief and adjust as needed”. 

Ward staff were not assessing patient’s pain or putting relevant care plans in place to ensure 
the patient was comfortable. We heard a frail patient calling out in a distressed manner 
throughout our 2.5 hours on a ward. During this period the patient remained in the same 
position in a chair by their bed. This person told us “my knees are killing me”. We saw the call 
bell was not accessible to this patient. We asked a registered nurse to attend to the patient. 
This nurse was gentle and kindly toward them. However after the registered nurse left the 
patient, they continued calling out in distress. An hour and a half later, we heard the patient 
calling out “please my legs.” The patient was still calling out in a distressed manner an hour 
later when we left the ward. 

We read the patient’s records. A fortnight before our inspection it was documented the 
patient was experiencing pain in their knees, which was not being controlled by their 
prescribed pain relief. A further note of pain in their knees was made for this patient a week 
before our inspection. The patient’s records did not show any other assessments of their 
experience of pain. They did not have a pain management care plan. The information about 
the patient’s calling out had not been included and the cause assessed in any care plan. 

We visited the emergency department (ED) to review the assessment and care of patients 
attending who had mental health care and treatment needs. Initial mental health 
assessments of ED patients were carried out by trained ED staff using the Mental Health 
matrix which had been developed for this purpose by another provider and commissioned 
by the local clinical commissioning group.  

We found there were delays in the assessment of patients in the ED who needed specialist 
mental health assessments. These delays were longer than recommendations in current 
guidelines. The Royal College of Psychiatrists, and the British Association for Emergency 
Medicine, have recommended specific response times for mental health services providing 
a service to emergency departments. Staff in the ED told us specialist mental health 
assessments were not always timely. We were told particular difficulties occurred out of 
hours and at weekends. Emergency department staff we talked with were very concerned, 
because such delays could increase potential risks to patients in distress. 

On the day of the inspection, we were told patients requiring inpatient treatment could be 
admitted directly to a ward for treatment for their physical injury without any specialist mental 
health assessment, or advice about risk management in relation to their inpatient admission. 
This could include patients who may have met the criteria for detention under the Mental 
Health Act 1983, should they have had an assessment in the ED. On the inpatient ward the 
patient would therefore have their assessment carried out by the senior nurse on duty using 
the risk matrix, rather than a specialist mental health practitioner. This gives rise of risks to 
patients, staff and others visiting the ward. 

 

Page 24



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 17 
 

We found the draft policy “Observing patients with mental health problems” would be 
implemented once the patient was on the inpatient ward. We found this would involve 
identification of risk factors by the admitting nurse, who would also determine the 
appropriate level of observation using a ward based mental health assessment. 
Consideration of / referral to the mental health team for advice would then be given. 
Because this admitting nurse is not a specialist mental health practitioner risks remain. 

We asked the ED senior staff on duty about what actions had been put in place to remedy 
the identified delays in specialist mental health assessments. They told us the responsibility 
for managing patients’ wait for admission was that of the commissioners and the mental 
health trust. The trust monitored waiting times from attendance at ED throughout the 
assessment process. The monitoring data was kept under review by the ED department and 
concerns about waiting times raised at trust operational group meetings. We found for 
example in the week ending prior to our visit five patients had waited in the department for 
over four hours. Each one of these patients had attended out of hours. We found one patient 
waited ten hours in the emergency department before admission to the local mental health 
unit. From the notes of meetings we reviewed the trust had been working with the local 
mental health trust for over a year to try to resolve the length and number of delays. 
Although some improvements had taken place, progress was slow and delays were still 
occurring. 

Page 25



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D >!

Cooperating with other providers U')")5*%"%)/$2/-2

People should get safe and coordinated care when they move between different 

services

Our judgement

85'"&-+W*2'-"@/%"I'')*$C")5*%"%)/$2/-2A

J/)*'$)%"2*%(5/-C'2"F-+I")5'"5+%&*)/0"(+902";'"(+$F*2'$)")5'"5+%&*)/0"5/2"%9*)/;0'"
/--/$C'I'$)%")+"(+II9$*(/)'"$'('%%/-."*$F+-I/)*+$"/;+9)")5'*-"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)")+"
'$%9-'"(+$)*$9*)."+F"(/-'"/$2"I*$*I*%'"-*%D%"/-*%*$C"F-+I")5'")-/$%F'-"+F"(/-'A

Reasons for our judgement

K)")5'"0/%)"*$%&'()*+$"@'"@'-'"(+$('-$'2"/;+9)")5'"@/.")5'"5+%&*)/0"@+-D'2")+"'$%9-'"
&/)*'$)%"(/-'"$''2%"@+902";'"(+$)*$9'2";."+)5'-"(/-'"&-+W*2'-%"/F)'-"2*%(5/-C'"F-+I")5'"
5+%&*)/0A"T'"F+9$2"&/)*'$)%"2*%(5/-C'2"F-+I")5'"5+%&*)/0"(+902"$+)";'"(+$F*2'$)")5/)")5'"
5+%&*)/0"@+902"(+II9$*(/)'"$'('%%/-."*$F+-I/)*+$"/;+9)")5'*-"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)")+"
'$%9-'"(+$)*$9*)."+F"(/-'"/$2"I*$*I*%'"-*%D%"/-*%*$C"F-+I")5'")-/$%F'-"+F"(/-'A

T'"-'/2")5'"&-+W*2'-Z%"/()*+$"&0/$"2/)'2"U/."<=>?A"85*%"%)/)'2"/")-/$%F'-"+F"(/-'"F+-I"
F-+I")5'"5+%&*)/0%Z"'0'()-+$*("-'(+-2"D''&*$C"%.%)'I"@+902";'"[-+00'2"+9)[")+"/00"@/-2%A"
7)/$2/-2%"F+-"2*%(5/-C'"@+902";'"&-+I+)'2"+$"'/(5"@/-2")5-+9C5"/"-/$C'"+F"I/))'-%"
*$(092*$C"[/@/-'$'%%"%'%%*+$%"@*)5"'/(5"@/-2"/$2"%*%)'-%"I'')*$C%A["K92*)%"@+902")/D'"
&0/('"+$")5'"(+I&0')*+$"+F"2*%(5/-C'"(5'(D0*%)%G")-/$%F'-"+F"(/-'"F+-I%"/$2"2*%(5/-C'"
I'2*(*$'%"&+0*(."%)/$2/-2%A",'W*'@"I'')*$C%"@*)5"'\)'-$/0"&-+W*2'-%"@+902";'"5'02"
-'C90/-0."/$2"*%%9'%"/-+9$2"2*%(5/-C'%"@+902";'"/"%)/$2*$C"/C'$2/"*)'IA

T'"-'/2"?<"&/)*'$)%Z"-'(+-2%"+$")5'"F+9-"'02'-0."(/-'"@/-2%A"]+9-"+F")5'%'"-'(+-2%"+$")@+"
+F")5'"'02'-0."(/-'"@/-2%"%5+@'2"'W*2'$('"+F"-'C90/-"2*%(9%%*+$%"@*)5")5'"&/)*'$)G")5'*-"
F/I*0."/$2"+)5'-"-'0'W/$)"%9&&+-)'-%G"%9(5"/%"2+I*(*0*/-."(/-'"&-+W*2'-%G"/;+9)")5'*-"
(9--'$)"(+$2*)*+$"/$2"%+(*/0"(*-(9I%)/$('%A"T'"%/@"2*%(5/-C'"*$F+-I/)*+$"@/%"*$"&0/('"F+-
)5'%'"F+9-"&/)*'$)%A"85*%"*$F+-I/)*+$")++D"-'0'W/$)"I/))'-%"*$)+"/((+9$)")+"'$%9-'"/"%/F'"
2*%(5/-C'"F+-")5'"&/)*'$)A""]+-"'\/I&0'"/$"+((9&/)*+$/0")5'-/&*%)")+02"9%"/;+9)"/"&/)*'$)"
@5+"@/$)'2")+"-')9-$")+")5'*-"+@$"5+I'"/$2"5+@")5'."5/2"%9&&+-)'2")5'"&/)*'$)"*$"2+*$C"
)5*%G"*$(092*$C"%''D*$C"%9&&+-)"F+-")5'"&/)*'$)"F-+I"(+II9$*)."+((9&/)*+$/0")5'-/&."
%'-W*('%A"85*%"*$F+-I/)*+$"@/%"F900."2+(9I'$)'2"*$")5'"&/)*'$)Z%"-'(+-2%A"85'-'"@/%"
'W*2'$('"+F"*%%9'%";'*$C"F+00+@'2"9&"@5'$"&/)*'$)%"@'-'"2*%(5/-C'2A"]+-"'\/I&0'G"@'"
%/@"'W*2'$('"F+-"/"2*FF'-'$)"&/)*'$)"+F";'*$C"-'F'--'2")+"F/00%"(0*$*("/F)'-")5'*-"2*%(5/-C'G")+"
'$%9-'"/00"F/()+-%"-'0/)*$C")+")5'*-"-*%D"+F"F/00*$C"*$")5'"(+II9$*)."5/2";''$"(+$%*2'-'2A

85'"&-+W*2'-"I*C5)"F*$2"*)"9%'F90")+"$+)'")5'")-9%)Z%"2*%(5/-C'"&-+('%%"-'(+-2*$C"-'I/*$'2"
*$(+I&0')'A"T'"0++D'2"/)"?<"&/)*'$)"-'(+-2%"/$2"%/@"F'@"2+(9I'$)'2"2*%(5/-C'"&0/$%A"
T5'-'")5'-'"@'-'"2*%(5/-C'"&0/$%G")5'%'"5/2";''$"(+I&0')'2"+$")5'"2/."+F"2*%(5/-C'A""
7)/FF")+02"9%")5'"[@5*)'";+/-2%["@'-'"9%'2"/%")5'"&-*I/-."2*%(5/-C'"&0/$$*$C"2+(9I'$)A"
T5*)'";+/-2%"@'-'"/W/*0/;0'"/)"$9-%'%Z"%)/)*+$%"+$"/00")5'"@/-2%A""85'%'"0*%)'2")5'"&/)*'$)Z%

Page 26



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D >"

$/I'"/$2"-'0'W/$)"*$F+-I/)*+$"%9(5"/%"@5*(5")5'-/&*%)")5'."5/2";''$"/%%'%%'2";."/$2"
)5'*-"I'2*(/0"F*)$'%%"F+-"2*%(5/-C'A"79(5"*$F+-I/)*+$"@/%"$+)"2+(9I'$)'2"*$"/00"+F")5'"
&/)*'$)Z%"-'(+-2%A"

T'"(+$)/()'2"$*$'"(/-'"5+I'%")+"@5'-'"&/)*'$)%"5/2"-'('$)0.";''$"2*%(5/-C'2A"T'"/0%+"
(+$)/()'2")@+"0/-C'"(/-'"&-+W*2'-%"/$2"T*0)%5*-'"/$2"4/)5"/$2"6+-)5"V/%)"7+I'-%')"7+(*/0
7'-W*('%A"T'"2*2")5*%")+"(5'(D"@5')5'-"/&&-+&-*/)'"*$F+-I/)*+$G"2-'%%*$C%"/$2"I'2*(/)*+$%
5/2";''$"%'$)";.")5'"5+%&*)/0A"85'"F''2;/(D"C*W'$")+"9%";.")5'%'"&-+W*2'-%"@/%"&+%*)*W'A"
H+II'$)%"*$(092'2G"[*)Z%"I9(5";'))'-")5/$"*)"@/%A["85'."2'%(-*;'2"*$F+-I/)*+$"F-+I"

5+%&*)/0"/%"[5'0&F90"/$2"/((9-/)'[!["%9FF*(*'$)")+"I'')")5'"&'-%+$Z%"$''2%[!"[$+)"I9(5"
(/9%'"F+-"(+$('-$"F-+I"5+%&*)/0"2*%(5/-C'%[A"T*0)%5*-'"7+(*/0"7'-W*('%"-'&+-)'2")5'."@'-'"
[@+-D*$C";'))'-"@*)5")5'"5+%&*)/0["/$2"[0*/*%+$"5/%"-'/00."*I&-+W'2A[

:W'-/00"@'"F+9$2")5'-'"@/%"/"I/-D'2"*I&-+W'I'$)"%*$('")5'"0/%)"*$%&'()*+$"*$")5'"B9/0*)."
+F"*$F+-I/)*+$"C*W'$")+"+)5'-"&-+W*2'-%"/)")5'")*I'"+F"2*%(5/-C'A""85'"&-+W*2'-"I*C5)"F*$2"*)"
9%'F90")+"$+)'")5'-'"@'-'"%+I'"'\('&)*+$%A""

85-''"&-+W*2'-%")+02"9%")5'-'"(+902";'"*%%9'%"-'0/)*$C")+"-'('*W*$C"2*%(5/-C'"%9II/-*'%"
F-+I")5'"5+%&*)/0A"85'."%/*2")5'-'"(+902"[+((/%*+$/00.[";'"%9(5"2*FF*(90)*'%G"%9(5"/%"
*$F+-I/)*+$"F-+I")5'"$9-%'%"+$")5'"@/-2"@/%"%+I')*I'%"$+)"(+$%*%)'$)"@*)5")5'"
*$F+-I/)*+$"*$")5'"$+)'%A"K"%+(*/0"@+-D'-"*$W+0W'2"*$"&/)*'$)"2*%(5/-C'"F-+I"/"0+(/0"
/9)5+-*).")+02"9%")5'"*$F+-I/)*+$"@5*(5")5'"$9-%'%"F-+I")5'"+02'-"&'+&0'Z%"@/-2%"%'$)")+"
)5'*-")'/I"5/2"0*I*)'2"$9-%*$C"*$F+-I/)*+$A"85'.")+02"9%")5'"0/(D"+F"2')/*0"*$")5'"*$F+-I/)*+$"
@/%"$+)"9%'F90"F+-"%+(*/0"@+-D'-%"@5'$"I/D*$C"/"2'(*%*+$"/;+9)")5'";'%)"&0/('"F+-"&/)*'$)%
)+";'"2*%(5/-C'2A"]+-"'\/I&0'")5'"*$F+-I/)*+$"/;+9)"&'+&0'Z%"I'$)/0"(+C$*)*+$"+-"I+;*0*)."
@/%"I+%)0."[+$'"@+-2[A"#$")5'"(/%'"+F"I'$)/0"(+C$*)*+$"@'"@'-'")+02")5'"@+-2"[2'I'$)*/["
@/%"+F)'$"-'(+-2'2A"85'.")+02"9%")5'-'"@/%"$+"I+-'"2')/*0'2"*$F+-I/)*+$"/;+9)")5'"$/)9-'G
*I&/()"+-"%9&&+-)")5'"&'-%+$"$''2'2A"85'.")+02"9%"*$F+-I/)*+$"F-+I")5'"2*%(5/-C'"$9-%'%"
@/%"[;'))'-["/$2"I+-'"9%'F90")+")5'I"@5'$"2'(*2*$C"9&+$"/"F9)9-'"&0/('I'$)"F+-")5'"
&/)*'$)A"3+@'W'-G"/%")5'"*$F+-I/)*+$"%'$)")+")5'I"@/%"+F)'$"[9$-'0*/;0'[")5'.")'$2'2")+"
(+I'")+")5'"@/-2")5'I%'0W'%")+"%''")5'"&/)*'$)A"

Page 27



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 20 
 

 

  

Safeguarding people who use services from abuse  Action needed 
 

 
   

 

People should be protected from abuse and staff should respect their human 
rights  

  

 
Our judgement 

The provider was not meeting this standard. 

There were not suitable arrangements in place to protect people against the risk of 
excessive control.  

We have judged that this has a moderate impact on people who use the service, and have 
told the provider to take action. Please see the ‘Action’ section within this report.  

 
 

Reasons for our judgement 

We spoke with two patients on one older people’s ward who were communicating an 
objection to staying on the ward by trying to leave and telling us they felt they were being 
held against their will. Both patients were wearing electronic tagging devices. We found the 
tags on both patients were very tight. We were told by trust managers the tags can become 
tight as a result of patients movements. We reviewed these patients’ records to ensure the 
requirements of the Mental Capacity Act (2005) (MCA) and the Deprivation of Liberty 
Safeguards (DoLS) had been followed. Where methods of control are used, the least 
restrictive option that is appropriate should be applied in accordance with the legal 
provisions. 
 
For one of these patients’ we found an entry in their clinical notes dated 14 June 2013 
highlighted in pink “does not have capacity to leave the ward. For DoLS if she tries”. This 
entry was not signed. In the patient’s notes there was a reference to a capacity assessment; 
it did not say how and when this would occur. The reference was unsigned and undated.. A 
standard form in use by the trust, ‘Risk Assessment and Care Plan – Patients at risk of 
leaving the ward unattended’ had been filled in. The use of this check list had not been used 
as intended. The parts of the form which prompted the staff to consider all potential and 
available options for the choice of the least restrictive measure for restraint had not been 
completed. The form stated this should be reviewed every 24 hours. The form requires the 
member of staff completing the form to confirm a capacity assessment had been carried out. 
The MCA (2005) requires that a capacity assessment should be specific to each decision. It 
was not clear that the patient’s capacity assessment had been reviewed to ensure the 
patient was not capable of making a decision about the use of the tagging device. 
 
For the second patient we reviewed, we found that entries in the clinical records indicated 
the patient was “fit for discharge” and “can go home”, which seemed inconsistent with the 
need for the restrictions of an electronic tag. We checked this patient’s records and could not 
find the trust checklists for capacity assessment or best interest assessments, even with the 
help of nursing staff. We saw that a ‘Risk Assessment and Care Plan – Patients at risk of 
leaving the ward unattended’ form had been completed on 18 June 2013, which was four 
days after the tag had been applied. 

Page 28



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 21 
 

 
The trust’s draft policy for “Observing patients with Mental Health problems” states “An 
assessment of the patient’s capacity, in relation to their best interests, and adherence to 
Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards (DoLS) requirements is undertaken in all cases when the 
use of assistive technology is being considered.” The trust’s policy “The Mental Capacity Act 
2005 incorporating the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards” (Nov 2011) includes in the 
appendices template forms and checklists for carrying out mental capacity assessments 
and making best interest decisions. Furthermore the consent and capacity checklist states, 
“full details, as appropriate to the gravity of the decision to be made, must be entered in the 
patient’s records”. These forms had not been included in the notes of either of the patients 
where assistive technology (electronic tags) had been used, or reference to consideration of 
the details of the checklist criteria. 
 
We discussed the ‘tagging’ arrangements with the staff, including the most senior nurses on 
duty on the ward in some detail. The staff we spoke with were not aware of a policy for the 
use of electronic tags. We were told the assistive technology had been introduced after a 
serious incident in 2009 when a patient had left the ward unattended. They told us they had 
not received any training about applying the tags. They told us they did not find the process 
or documentation helpful in making decisions. They told us they did not rely on the 
information recorded in the forms intended to support decision making, instead they relied 
on discussions at the multi-disciplinary meetings, or the nurse in charge of the ward would 
make the decision. There were no records of these meetings to show how the best interest 
decisions had been reached. There was no evidence of alternatives to ‘tagging’ which were 
less restrictive being considered. There was no evidence that the risks and benefits of 
various options being considered to maintain the safety of patients at risk of leaving the 
ward. The trust had drafted a policy which may have helped support staff to better 
understand the process. At the time of the inspection the policy was in draft version and was 
due to be approved for use by the trust in July 2013. 
 
In terms of best interest decision making the ward staff seemed to rely on the agreement of 
patients relatives for the use of ‘tags’ as consent; instead of carrying out a proper process for 
best interest decision making. 
 
The main protection for patients on the ward at risk of wandering was ‘locked’ control of 
entry and exit through the ward main doors, which was activated by a swipe card and a 
switch on the nurses’ station. This control was not fully effective due to the amount of traffic 
in and out of the ward and the way in which staff managed this. At the start of our inspection 
there was a helpful note on the door explaining to visitors not to let anyone they did not know 
leave the ward. This notice was removed sometime during our visit. A registered nurse told 
us “It’s a real problem. Staff walking past the ward just let people in”. We found hospital staff 
visiting the ward were placing patients at risk by their own working practices, as patients 
could leave whilst people were being let in. During our visit one patient fitted with a ‘tag’ 
managed to leave the ward in this manner. 

During our visit the tagging device alarm was being activated continuously, so that there was 
a continuous bleeping noise. Staff told us they had become desensitised to the noise. They 
told us “it’s always going off and sometimes we just don’t notice”. 

We also looked at supporting evidence in the ward log for the use of electronic tags. We 
found the log was inconsistently completed and no entries were logged after March 2013. 

We found that one patient had been tagged for a period of about five weeks (27 April 2011 to 
3 June 2011). Neither patient we spoke with was recorded on the register. The register did 
not always identify when tags were removed, even on discharge. 

Page 29



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 22 
 

Comments from staff, including the most senior nurses on duty on wards where assistive 
technology was used showed limited understanding of the MCA(2005) and DoLS. Staff did 
not give adequate consideration to alternative interventions, other than tagging.

Page 30



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 23 
 

 

  

Assessing and monitoring the quality of service 
provision 

 Action needed 
 

 
   

 

The service should have quality checking systems to manage risks and assure the 
health, welfare and safety of people who receive care  

  

 
Our judgement 

The provider was not meeting this standard. 

The provider had a system in place to regularly assess and monitor the quality of service 
that people receive and to identify, assess and manage risks to the health, safety and 
welfare of people using the service and others. The internal quality assurance mechanisms 
were not effective in ensuring the action plan from our last inspection had been 
implemented. 

We have judged that this has a moderate impact on people who use the service, and have 
told the provider to take action. Please see the ‘Action’ section within this report.  

 
 

Reasons for our judgement 

The trust had systems to in place to assess and monitor quality of the service. It also had 
systems in place to identify, assess and manage risks relating to service users health, 
welfare and safety. Although these systems were designed and operated to control all parts 
of the trust’s services, there was a gap between policy decisions and assurances at board 
level and the way in which care was delivered on the older people’s wards. The trust’s 
quality monitoring system had not been effective in ensuring improvements required as a 
result of our last inspection had been implemented. 
 
Four compliance actions were made at the last inspection in February 2013. We looked at 
the trust’s governance arrangements in June 2013 in more detail to see how the trust board 
was informed about our concerns and the actions taken to address them. The trust told us 
they had met its action plan dated May 2013, although the Chief Operating Officer told us 
they were aware the action plan might not be fully ‘embedded’ into practice in the wards. The 
Trust Board Annual Governance Statement for 2012/13 noted that the Trust Board had 
monitored the completion of actions following our last inspection. 
 
We spoke with nine staff involved with the governance arrangements. These included the 
Chief Operating Officer, Medical Director, Deputy Head of Risk and Assurance, Director of 
Human Resources, Lead for Quality Assurance, and a Non-Executive Director that chaired 
the Non-Clinical Governance committee. 
 
We were also provided with a range of documents submitted by the trust spanning the 
period of November 2012 to June 2013. These included the Strategic Framework for Risk 
Management, which itself had eight related policies, which included the ‘Incident reporting 
and management policy and procedure’. In addition we viewed a sample, selected by the 
trust, of nine sets of minutes from a selection of Clinical, Divisional Clinical and Specialty 
governance meetings. Minutes were also viewed from Oncology Haematology, Medical 

Page 31



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 24 
 

Division and Emergency Departments. 14 sets of minutes were received in respect of 
Matrons meetings, and Matrons and Ward Managers’ meetings. 
 
We found that the Trust Board led on integrated governance, delegating key duties and 
functions to its six sub-committees. Three of these committees were tasked with providing 
assurance to the Trust Board: The Clinical Governance Committee; Non Clinical 
Governance Committee; and Audit Committee. Each of these committees was chaired by a 
Non-Executive Director of the Trust Board. The minutes of each of these committees had 
been presented to trust board meetings for review and discussion. Both the Clinical and Non 
Clinical Governance Committees meet bi-monthly and were tasked with ensuring Clinical 
and Non Clinical systems were effective and robust. 
 
Whilst each of the committee meetings was held separately, there were combined meetings 
of the clinical and non-clinical governance committees that ensured joint oversight. These 
joint meetings were held every three months and took place prior to trust board meetings. 
 
The three remaining sub-committees were the Management Board responsible for the 
operational delivery, the Remuneration Committee and Charity Committee. 
 
The trust had an internal quality assurance programme in place and this included the 
conduct of audits. This included audits of the areas of non-compliance identified at the last 
inspection (February 2013) as ‘mock inspections’. 
 
We asked senior nursing staff about the monitoring of fluid balance and hydration records, 
which had been found to be of concern at our inspections of November 2012 and February 
2013. We were told this was done as informal spot checks on an ‘ad-hoc’ basis. There were 
no records made of these checks. Feedback was carried out with individual nursing staff, but 
this was not a system wide approach across the older peoples wards’ to monitor and 
feedback the outcomes of audit findings.  
 
The trust told us the audit results of the new arrangements for monitoring hydration risks 
were reported to the trust’s CQC action plan steering group and the Nutrition and Hydration 
Steering Group. During this inspection we found hydration records were not completed as 
required by the trust’s own policies. We were told by nursing staff on the older people’s 
wards it was “confusing” having several different systems, for recording and managing fluid 
intake, in use at the same time (fluid charts, hydration charts and comfort rounds). 
 
There were systems and processes in place for reporting, collating and managing incidents 
and risks across the organisation. The trust strategic framework for risk management (date) 
20 December 2012, review date 20 December 2015) described the process for monitoring, 
review and updating identified risks. The framework explained that the frequency of 
monitoring progress against identified actions could vary, but should be ‘undertaken, as a 
minimum, every three months’. We found the risk assessment action plan summary 
regarding ‘the assessment relating to wandering / absconsions older people’s unit’ was last 
reviewed on 21 January 2010. At this inspection we found the trust’s policy and procedure 
for initiating and monitoring use of electronic tagging devices for patients at risk of 
wandering was not being followed, and was not fully meeting the safeguards laid out in the 
Mental Capacity Act 2005. 

The trust used an electronic data management system for the identification and 
management of risk. Most of the staff we spoke with knew how to use the electronic incident 
reporting forms. Those staff who did not, knew who to ask for assistance to ensure incidents 
were reported. All information reported into the electronic incident reporting system was 

Page 32



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 25 
 

reviewed centrally by the Deputy Head of Risk or Risk Administrator. Contact was made with 
the reporter in regards to any discrepancy in terms of compliance with trust policy. In the 
event that the identity of the reporter was now known, contact was made with the ward / 
departmental manager. 

A quarterly report of all patient safety incidents was produced and provided to divisional 
clinical governance meetings, which reported to the operational governance committee, 
management board meetings and ultimately the trust board. The Theatre Manager 
demonstrated to us how they used their own data. 

In terms of recording we found that the divisional clinical governance meeting on 13 May 
2013, had no minuted discussion in regards to a number of agenda items. For example, the 
review of red incidents, external regulatory issues; business from corporate leads for clinical 
governance; issues for operational governance committee; and finalise action plan/risk for 
management board. 

We found that minutes of two of the three medical division clinical governance meetings (31 
January 2013 and 28 March 2013) and all three of the emergency department clinical 
governance committee meetings (27 March 2013, 24 April 2013 and 29 May 2013) reported 
no nursing presence. We asked the Chief Operating Officer about this, who explained the 
Trust’s expectation was for the assistant director of nursing to be a member of the divisional 
clinical governance meetings. A recent change in operational responsibilities might have 
resulted in the absence on the reported occasions. We were concerned about this since our 
last inspection report referred to breaches of regulations which related to nursing practice.  

Following the compliance actions identified in the inspection of February 2013, the trust’s 
action plan provided to CQC was disseminated down to matrons. Nurses, care assistants 
and therapy staff we spoke with on some wards and units were fully aware of the Trust’s 
action plan. Staff on other wards and units were aware of new documentation, but not the 
action plan or the compliance actions arising from our last inspection. We also found that the 
10 sets of Matrons meeting minutes reviewed from 12 March – 11 June 2013 did not contain 
any information with regard to clinical incidents or lessons learned. For example, none of the 
staff we spoke with told us they regarded low fluid intake or dietary intake as an important 
matter to report. Therefore the trust board did not have effective oversight into these aspects 
of care. 

Some older people’s wards and units held regular ward meetings at which governance 
information was disseminated and which were minuted. On other wards and units these 
meetings did not take place. 

Whilst there was a programme of trust management meetings in place, omissions in terms 
of minuted discussions, and irregular meeting attendance increases the potential for 
incomplete information being reported through the governance structure, and decrease the 
level of assurance provided at each stage. 

At the inspection of November 2012 we also reported on the need for development of 
supervision systems for all staff in between appraisals. The trust had informed us they had 
agreed to fund additional nursing time so that supervision could be implemented. We found 
there was a developed appraisal system and all staff we spoke with confirmed they had 
received an appraisal during the past year. None of the nursing and care staff we spoke to in 
the four older people’s wards, the day surgery unit and the theatres told us they had regular 
supervision. In theatres a pilot form for use during supervision had been developed in the 
last month, but it had not been implemented. Lack of regular supervision also increases the 
potential for incomplete information being cascaded downwards through each level of the 
governance structure.

Page 33



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 
#$ 

 

 

  

Records 
 

Enforcement action 
taken 

 

 
   

 

People’s personal records, including medical records, should be accurate and 
kept safe and confidential  

  

 
Our judgement 

The provider was not meeting this standard. 

People were not protected from the risks of unsafe or inappropriate care and treatment by 
means of the maintenance of accurate and up to date records. 

We have judged that this has a moderate impact on people who use the service and have 
taken enforcement action against this provider. Please see the ‘Enforcement action’ section 
within this report.  

 
 

Reasons for our judgement 

At the last inspection on 4 to 6 February 2013, we found people were not protected from the 
risks of unsafe or inappropriate care and treatment by means of the maintenance of 
accurate and up to date records. 
 
Following our inspection, the trust sent us their action plan dated May 2013. This stated how 
they would become compliant. They stated a range of actions they would take, including 
revising their health records management policy to more accurately reflect where 
documentation should be recorded / filed. They would test a new hydration record chart 
which would then be “rolled out for use across the trust”. They would promote “use of the 
fluid intake and output / fluid balance charts through awareness sessions” in each ward and 
sisters meetings. 
 
We found the hospital had made improvements in the day surgery unit (DSU). We looked at 
two patients’ records. These two patients talked to us about their experiences. They had had 
all their pre-operative assessments completed before they went down to operating theatres. 
 
Other patients needed their notes available to staff as they were just about to go down to 
operating theatres. We saw both patients had detailed pre-operative records. The 
information in these records fully reflected what both the patients and staff told us about the 
patients’ conditions. For example one patient told us about an allergy and how it could affect 
them in certain circumstances. We saw their records included full information about this 
allergy, so all staff involved in this patient’s treatment and care could be aware of the 
patient’s needs in this respect. 
 
The Nursing and Midwifery Council (NMC) Record Keeping: Guidance for Nurses and 
Midwives (2009) states that ” Records support “the delivery of services….effective clinical 
judgements and decisions….patient care and communications,” makes “continuity of care 
easier” and provide “documentary evidence of services delivered.” Records also help to 
“identify risks” and enable “early detection of complications.” The NMC states a registered 

Page 34



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk%%%% <S

 

nurse should “record details of any assessments and reviews undertaken, and provide clear 
evidence of the arrangements you have made for future and on-going care. This should also 
include details of information given about care and treatment”. Records should also “identify 
any risks or problems that have arisen and show the action taken to deal with them”. 
 
We visited the four designated older people’s wards over a four day period. We found 
records were not being completed in a consistent manner across all four wards. We met with 
fifteen patients and made observations of care of a six further patients who were too unwell 
or frail to talk to us. We spoke with 23 staff, including registered nurses, healthcare 
assistants and therapists. We looked at the records of ten of the patients we met with and 
discussed patients’ needs with staff. We also looked at a further 32 patient records in depth 
and followed five of these records through to the hospital’s electronic record keeping 
system. 
 
When we looked at these 32 patient records we found there were no recorded discharge 
plans in these patients’ notes. Staff told us that the ward “white board” was used to plot 
progress to discharge following admission, rather than writing it in patients’ records. We saw 
medical staff made a note in their multidisciplinary records of the patient’s potential length of 
stay soon after admission. This was a broad assessment, in units of days or weeks. The 
multidisciplinary notes written by the doctors focused on the diagnosis, ordering of tests and 
investigations, reviewing results and prescribing treatment. In the 32 records, there were 
references to medical fitness for discharge but this approach was not used consistently. 
There were, for instance, differences between the doctors on duty and between individual 
wards, in that different doctors had different systems as did different wards. The senior staff 
on duty during our inspection told us that the ward white boards were the main reference 
document to track a patient’s progress towards discharge. The whiteboard records were not 
a permanent record. 
 
The trust’s Health records policy (30 April 2013) in relation to patients’ notes was to use 
multidisciplinary notes in which all staff involved with the patient made their records. A 
separate nurses' record was not maintained. The medical staff wrote in the patients’ 
multidisciplinary notes every day. In the 32 records we looked at, we saw nursing staff did 
not write in the multidisciplinary records every day. Nursing care notes were not recorded in 
the 32 records we looked at and accordingly, there was no permanent record of the nursing 
care delivered and so the records were not accurate and up to date. 
 
We asked four senior nursing staff where we could find records relating to patients. They 
told us a daily handover sheet and white board were used on a daily basis. We were given 
copies of daily nursing handover sheets. These recorded information about all of the 
patients on one or two sheets of A4 paper. Each entry had to be fitted into a small space 
allowing just a few words and some letters of abbreviation. The nurse in charge of the ward 
was given this at shift handover and they kept it in their pocket for reference during the shift. 
 
These notes were destroyed at the end of a 24 hour shift after relevant information had been 
uploaded to the hospital computerised system by the night staff. Senior nursing staff told us 
the hospital’s electronic record keeping system was not always used on a shift by shift basis. 

This was because the main nursing handover took place using the handover sheets and any 
relevant information over the day was added by the senior nurses, to reflect information 
relating to changes in the patients’ conditions. This was done in a very brief, abbreviated or 
shorthand way. There was a delay in the hospital’s electronic recordkeeping system being 
up to date because it was update by adding the information form the handover sheet only 
once a day, by the night staff. Effectively, the trust was using four patient information 

Page 35



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk% ""<P

 

recording systems: the hospital’s electronic record keeping system; handover sheets; 
patients’ written notes and the white boards, in addition to any records held at the end of the 
patients’ beds. Staff we spoke with told us they did not have time to use all of these equally 
and they chose the system they found the quickest. This means that staff could be using 
information that was not up to date. The fact that there were a number of concurrent systems 
in use also increased the risk for inaccuracies to be introduced into the recording system. 

We asked to see patients’ records on the trust’s computerised record keeping system during 
the first two days of our inspection on one ward. We were unable to do this because it was 
being used by another member of staff. We were told that this was a regular occurrence. 

When we asked to see the hospital’s computerised record keeping system again during the 
same two day period, the member of staff had difficulty logging on. We were told that this 
often happened and because of time limitations it restricted the use of the system. On the 
same two days when we asked to follow through patients’ records on the hospital’s 
electronic record keeping system, it was not possible to access the system because it was 
already in use or the office where the computer was kept was in use. 

We asked nine staff about the use of discharge planning records and all were uncertain 
about their contents. We looked at the trust policies Discharge Nursing Documentation 
Standards (2013) and Discharge policy (2011). The policy relating discharge documentation 
stated all patients discharged from the RUH will have a discharge plan completed 48 hours 
prior to discharge. The discharge policy (p5) states an initial assessment and plan must be 
completed by a registered healthcare professional within 24 hours of admission. The trust 
provided us with audit results dated May 2013. The results showed the rate for completion of 
the “discharge plan checklist – within 48 hours of discharge” was 32%. The rate for 
compliance with completing the “discharge checklist” on the day of discharge was 36%. 

When we looked at 32 patient records, within all of these were fluid balance charts. In 
addition some patients’ records contained a hydration chart. This chart had been introduced 
following our last inspection. This was in line with trust policy “All patients should have fluid 
balance charts or hydration charts” (RUH, Hydration Policy 2013 p.5). We looked at 100 fluid 
balance charts and where available, the newly introduced hydration charts. We saw 90% 
(90) of the fluid charts did not have daily totals of intake and output. This applied even when 
patients had infections and/or were very unwell/had difficulty in drinking or feeding 
themselves. This contradicted good practice in this area (Royal College of Nursing 2012) 
and trust policy (RUH, 2013, p5). We saw in 10% (10) of cases the daily totals were 
aggregated but even then were not transferred to the multidisciplinary notes, so were not 
included in the plan of care. 

In addition, we found for the same proportion of fluid balance records, that an inaccurate 
intake had been recorded. For example, we saw that “sips” was written on the fluid balance 
charts as a measure of intake. We were told by staff that writing “sips” was not acceptable, 
but there was not time to review every record, every shift. Imprecise wording is open to 
different interpretation and where a patient is at dehydration risk such records were not 
accurate in enabling assessment of hydration. It was also contrary to trust policy which 
stated “accurate measurement of intake should be recorded” (RUH, 2013). Also less than 10 
per cent of the 100 fluid balance charts we reviewed had entries recorded for the 
intravenous fluids that had been administered. Therefore it was not possible in these cases 
to tell if patients were sufficiently hydrated. 

The trust policy (RUH 2013) stated the registered nurse “remains accountable for ensuring 
the patient is drinking and is hydrated.” We therefore spoke to the nurses in charge of each 
three shifts on four wards. We asked them to tell us about fluid and hydration recording. 

Page 36



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk 2" 
 

They all said the fluid balance and the new hydration charts were not well completed. We 
showed them several examples of records and asked them to select others on the ward. We 
found in both instances, the charts were not completed according to trust policy or in a way 
in which it would be possible to know if a person was having adequate fluid intake. We asked 
the nurses for their comments. They all said recording on these charts was not adequate. 

We also repeated this process with a senior sister and the unit matron and they both said the 
same. One of them said “we know our fluid balance charts are not good but something has 
got to give. We now do comfort rounds and the staff have a lot of additional paperwork to 
do.” 

Staff told us the primary document for recording care was the multidisciplinary records, 
which were paper records. We asked nine staff if there could be another location which held 
the records of patients’ fluid intake, they said there was not, apart from the multidisciplinary 
record. We asked the staff how they would know if a person was thirsty or becoming 
dehydrated. They told us the staff were good and “noticed” when people were off colour, but 
they were unlikely to refer to the fluid balance chart or the hydration chart unless a problem 
had already been noticed. 

When we looked at patients’ individual records we saw hydration charts and fluid balance 
charts were not consistently completed. This meant the trust could not be assured that 
vulnerable patients were sufficiently hydrated or received sufficient hydration to facilitate 
recovery. For example, we observed a nurse call the doctor because they were concerned 
about a patient’s urinary output. We found that a note about this was recorded in the 
multidisciplinary notes. When we looked at the patient’s fluid balance chart for that day and 
the previous three days, there was no reference to input or output for that period. 

As hydration and fluid charts had not been completed, staff could not be assured they knew 
the amount of fluids vulnerable patients had drunk. For example on three days for one 
patient on one of the wards, the last record of fluids was at 15.00 on each day. We asked 
staff about this. They told us there were drinks rounds during the afternoon at teatime and at 
the evening meal. They said staff had probably forgotten to document what the patient had 
drunk, so they did not know what the patient had actually drank. 

 

On another patient’s record on a different ward at 14.30, there had been no documentation 
of fluids taken in by the patient since 14:00 the previous day. This patient had a urinary 
catheter in situ. 

We looked at a hydration chart for another patient on the same ward. We saw none of their 
records had been totalled. We totalled these records ourselves, this showed they had drank 
275mls one day, there was no record made for the next day. The following day the patient 
had a total of 215mls and on the next day 250mls. The trust’s recommended minimum that a 
patient should drink each day is 1200mls. They showed signs of confusion and may have 
had difficulty in asking for a drink. 

On a third ward another patient had been given a hydration chart to complete themselves. 
We observed this patient throughout our lunchtime observation period and saw the liquid in 
their jug and glass remained at the same level. We asked the patient about their hydration 
chart. They showed us the chart. We saw they had written “2.00” at 07:00 and “200” at 12:00 
for the following day. When we asked them about this they said they had not been sure of 
what to write on the chart. 

We looked at the new trust policy on fluids (RUH 2013). We saw this policy was 
comprehensive and would, if implemented appropriately, have addressed many of the 

Page 37



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 2013 www.cqc.org.uk""" ?=

 

issues we had raised above. We asked nine staff why it was not being implemented. We 
were told “we know we should – there is just not time”….“we have to prioritise so we choose 
other things”…“I keep saying to the staff they should do – but they don’t always listen”, “it’s a 
new policy” When we pointed out the previous policy was similar, they told us “we have just 
never done it – it’s something else we will have to take on” …“there is no point- no one ever 
looks at them.” 

We asked if the completion of fluid balance charts was monitored. A matron told us they did 
some spot checks, but the results of these were not recorded in a formal manner or 
analysed. Staff members were unable to describe how they could learn from such spot 
checks and develop future practice. We were told that the trust audit team also undertook 
audits. These were not available during our inspection on the wards. Staff on the wards were 
not aware of information about their own compliance rates for completion of fluid balance 
and hydration charts. Although on some wards staff knew improvements were needed 
following our last inspection, on other wards this was not the case. 

The trust’s own research on the ward where the new hydration record was trialled had found 
61% of patients could have had better levels of hydration. This research was carried out on 
patients who were independent and able to help themselves to fluids. On the older people’s 
wards we saw, and were told by nursing and medical staff, the acuteness of the patients’ 
condition and care needs of the wards’ populations were very high. We know from other 
research in this area that older people, in particular, can become dehydrated very quickly 
(Royal College of Nursing – Wise up to water, 2012 and Hydration Best Practice, 2013; 
Royal College of Physicians, Acute Care Toolkit 2: High quality acute care, October 2011). 
We brought the issue of recording patients’ fluid intake to the trust’s attention in our last 
report. 

 

We looked for evidence of nutrition and weight being recorded. We asked staff to show us 
the location of all records relating to nutrition, hydration and weight. We were aware records 
were stored in patient’s files and some on the computerised system. We invited staff to show 
us all the records they had access to in order to ensure were not missing any relevant 
information. 

We found, where nutritional risk assessments forms were completed, these were not 
updated. We found 10 records of weight in the 32 records we looked at. In the records of one 
patient who had very recently been discharged, we saw they had lost 6.6kgs in the 15 days 
during their stay in hospital. There was no care plan to identify if this weight loss was part of 
a planned treatment programme or due to poor nutritional intake. There was no record in 
their multidisciplinary notes of additional nutritional support or referral to a specialist.  

A patient who had been assessed in May 2013 as being at risk of poor nutrition had a food 
chart, but it was incomplete as there were only records made of what they had eaten for 
eight of the days in a three week period. Of these eight records, only one recorded 
breakfast, lunch and supper. On four of them there was documentation of what the patient 
had eaten for two of the three meals, on two of the records, what the patient had eaten for 
one meal and one was incomplete. This meant staff could not be assured the patient was 
eating enough to assist recovery. 

Another patient’s medical records stated they should be put on a food chart. Two days later 
their records stated "dietary poor oral intake.” Their first food chart was dated three days 
after the initial request from the doctors. It was not completed for each meal the patient was 
offered or ate. 

Page 38



 

| Inspection Report | Royal United Hospital Bath NHS Trust | October 201? www.cqc.org.uk"?>

 

We looked at six patients’ nutritional assessments on two different older peoples’ wards. We 
asked the registered nurse in charge on each ward about these patients’ nutritional risk 
assessments. They told us all nutritional risk assessments were completed on the hospital’s 
electronic record keeping system. Paper records were not used. The registered nurses 
showed us the hospital’s computerised nutritional risk assessments. Three of the patients 
had not had a nutritional risk assessment completed on this system. One patient had an 
assessment completed but it had last been performed in April 2013 and for another patient 
over a month before our inspection. We asked the two registered nurses about these 
patients’ nutritional risk assessments. They told us all patients were assessed on admission 
and those at risk assessed every month. They showed us that the three patients who had 
not had an assessment was because they had not been weighed and the hospital’s 
computerised assessment form could not be completed if a patient had not been weighed. 
They said they did not know why the patients had not been weighed. One of the registered 
nurses told us they did not know how to use the hospital’s electronic record keeping system, 
so they did not know why the nutritional assessments had not been done. The other 
registered nurse also said they did not know why the nutritional assessments had not been 
completed and would look into the matter. 

We noted the hospital was on “green alert” on two days of our inspection and “amber” on the 
third. This meant the hospital was not under any significant pressure which might impact 
upon their ability to maintain patients’ records accurately. 

Page 39



This section is primarily information for the provider

!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D"""""""?<

Action we have told the provider to take

Compliance actions

85'")/;0'";'0+@"%5+@%")5'"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"+F"B9/0*)."/$2"%/F').")5/)"were not being 

metA"85'"&-+W*2'-"I9%)"%'$2"H^H"/"-'&+-)")5/)"%/.%"@5/)"/()*+$")5'."/-'"C+*$C")+")/D'")+"
I'')")5'%'"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%A

,'C90/)'2"/()*W*). ,'C90/)*+$

8-'/)I'$)"+F"
2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"
*$X9-.

Regulation 17 HSCA 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations

2010

Respecting and involving people who use services

How the regulation was not being met:

L'$'-/00."&/)*'$)Z%"&-*W/(."/$2"2*C$*)."@'-'"-'%&'()'2A""
3+@'W'-G"+$")@+"+F")5'"F+9-"+02'-"&'+&0'Z%"@/-2%G"/)")5'")*I'"+F"
)5'"*$%&'()*+$"W*%*)G"@'"%/@"*$%)/$('%"@5'-'"&/)*'$)%"@'-'"$+)"
5/W*$C")5'*-"&-*W/(."/$2"2*C$*)."I/*$)/*$'2A
,'C90/)*+$">S"_>`_/`
"

,'C90/)'2"/()*W*). ,'C90/)*+$

8-'/)I'$)"+F"
2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"
*$X9-.

Regulation 9 HSCA 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 

2010

Care and welfare of people who use services

How the regulation was not being met:

H/-'"2'0*W'-.";."%)/FF"C'$'-/00."@/%"I/$/C'2")+"I'')"&/)*'$)%Z"
(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)"$''2%G";9)"-*%D%"-'I/*$'2"+F"*$/&&-+&-*/)'"+-
9$%/F'"(/-'A"85*%"@/%";'(/9%'"%.%)'I%"@'-'"$+)"9%'2"*$"/"(+a
+-2*$/)'2"/$2"(+$%*%)'$)"@/.A""K)")*I'%")5'-'"@'-'"2'0/.%"*$")5'"
/%%'%%I'$)"+F"&/)*'$)Z%"I'$)/0"5'/0)5"$''2%"*$")5'"'I'-C'$(."
2'&/-)I'$)A"
,'C90/)*+$"R"_>`_/`_;`_*`_**`_***`
"

,'C90/)'2"/()*W*). ,'C90/)*+$

Page 40



This section is primarily information for the provider

!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D"""""""??

8-'/)I'$)"+F"
2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"
*$X9-.

Regulation 11 HSCA 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations

2010

Safeguarding people who use services from abuse

How the regulation was not being met:

85'-'"@'-'"$+)"%9*)/;0'"/--/$C'I'$)%"*$"&0/('")+"&-+)'()"&'+&0'"
/C/*$%)")5'"-*%D"+F"'\('%%*W'"(+$)-+0A"

,'C90/)*+$">>_<`_/`_;`
"

,'C90/)'2"/()*W*). ,'C90/)*+$

8-'/)I'$)"+F"
2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"
*$X9-.

Regulation 10 HSCA 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations

2010

Assessing and monitoring the quality of service provision

How the regulation was not being met:

85'"&-+W*2'-"5/2"/"%.%)'I"*$"&0/('")+"-'C90/-0."/%%'%%"/$2"
I+$*)+-")5'"B9/0*)."+F"%'-W*('")5/)"&'+&0'"-'('*W'"/$2")+"*2'$)*F.G"
/%%'%%"/$2"I/$/C'"-*%D%")+")5'"5'/0)5G"%/F')."/$2"@'0F/-'"+F"
&'+&0'"9%*$C")5'"%'-W*('"/$2"+)5'-%A"85'"*$)'-$/0"B9/0*)."
/%%9-/$('"I'(5/$*%I%"@'-'"$+)"'FF'()*W'"*$"'$%9-*$C")5'"/()*+$"
&0/$"F-+I"+9-"0/%)"*$%&'()*+$"5/2";''$"*I&0'I'$)'2A

,'C90/)*+$">=_>`_/`_;`"

85*%"-'&+-)"*%"-'B9'%)'2"9$2'-"-'C90/)*+$">=_?`"+F")5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"K()"<==P"
_,'C90/)'2"K()*W*)*'%`",'C90/)*+$%"<=>=A

85'"&-+W*2'-Z%"-'&+-)"%5+902";'"%'$)")+"9%";.">R":()+;'-"<=>?A"

H^H"%5+902";'"*$F+-I'2"@5'$"(+I&0*/$('"/()*+$%"/-'"(+I&0')'A

T'"@*00"(5'(D")+"I/D'"%9-'")5/)"/()*+$"5/%";''$")/D'$")+"I'')")5'"%)/$2/-2%"/$2"@*00"
-'&+-)"+$"+9-"X92C'I'$)%A"

Page 41



This section is primarily information for the provider

!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D"""""""?O

Enforcement action we have taken to protect the health, safety and 

welfare of people using this service

Enforcement actions we have taken

85'")/;0'";'0+@"%5+@%"'$F+-('I'$)"/()*+$"@'"5/W'")/D'$";'(/9%'")5'"&-+W*2'-"@/%"$+)"
I'')*$C")5'"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"+F"B9/0*)."/$2"%/F')."_+-"&/-)%"+F")5'"%)/$2/-2%`"/%"%5+@$"
;'0+@A

We have served a warning notice to be met by 29 November 2013

85*%"/()*+$"5/%";''$")/D'$"*$"-'0/)*+$")+M

,'C90/)'2"/()*W*). ,'C90/)*+$"+-"%'()*+$"+F")5'"K()

8-'/)I'$)"+F"
2*%'/%'G"2*%+-2'-"+-"
*$X9-.

Regulation 20 HSCA 2008 (Regulated Activities) Regulations 

2010

Records

How the regulation was not being met:

J'+&0'"@'-'"$+)"&-+)'()'2"F-+I")5'"-*%D%"+F"9$%/F'"+-"
*$/&&-+&-*/)'"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)";."I'/$%"+F")5'"I/*$)'$/$('"+F
/((9-/)'"/$2"9&")+"2/)'"-'(+-2%A

,'C90/)*+$"<=_>`_/`G<_/`_;`
"

]+-"I+-'"*$F+-I/)*+$"/;+9)")5'"'$F+-('I'$)"/()*+$"@'"(/$")/D'G"&0'/%'"%''"+9-"
Enforcement policy"+$"+9-"@';%*)'A

Page 42



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D"""""""?N

About CQC inspections

T'"/-'")5'"-'C90/)+-"+F"5'/0)5"/$2"%+(*/0"(/-'"*$"V$C0/$2A

K00"&-+W*2'-%"+F"-'C90/)'2"5'/0)5"/$2"%+(*/0"(/-'"%'-W*('%"5/W'"/"0'C/0"-'%&+$%*;*0*).")+"
I/D'"%9-'")5'."/-'"I'')*$C"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"+F"B9/0*)."/$2"%/F').A"85'%'"/-'")5'"
%)/$2/-2%"'W'-.+$'"%5+902";'"/;0'")+"'\&'()"@5'$")5'."-'('*W'"(/-'A

85'"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"/-'"2'%(-*;'2"*$")5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"K()"<==P"_,'C90/)'2"
K()*W*)*'%`",'C90/)*+$%"<=>="/$2")5'"H/-'"^9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$"_,'C*%)-/)*+$`",'C90/)*+$%"
<==RA"T'"-'C90/)'"/C/*$%)")5'%'"%)/$2/-2%G"@5*(5"@'"%+I')*I'%"2'%(-*;'"/%"[C+W'-$I'$)
%)/$2/-2%[A

T'"(/--."+9)"9$/$$+9$('2"*$%&'()*+$%"+F"/00"(/-'"5+I'%G"/(9)'"5+%&*)/0%"/$2"2+I*(*0*/-."
(/-'"%'-W*('%"*$"V$C0/$2"/)"0'/%)"+$('"/".'/-")+"X92C'"@5')5'-"+-"$+)")5'"'%%'$)*/0"
%)/$2/-2%"/-'";'*$C"I')A"T'"(/--."+9)"*$%&'()*+$%"+F"+)5'-"%'-W*('%"0'%%"+F)'$A"K00"+F"+9-"
*$%&'()*+$%"/-'"9$/$$+9$('2"9$0'%%")5'-'"*%"/"C++2"-'/%+$")+"0')")5'"&-+W*2'-"D$+@"@'"
/-'"(+I*$CA

85'-'"/-'">Y"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%")5/)"-'0/)'"I+%)"2*-'()0.")+")5'"B9/0*)."/$2"%/F')."+F"(/-'"
/$2")5'%'"/-'"C-+9&'2"*$)+"F*W'"D'."/-'/%A"T5'$"@'"*$%&'()"@'"(+902"(5'(D"/00"+-"&/-)"+F"
/$."+F")5'">Y"%)/$2/-2%"/)"/$.")*I'"2'&'$2*$C"+$")5'"*$2*W*29/0"(*-(9I%)/$('%"+F")5'"
%'-W*('A"4'(/9%'"+F")5*%"@'"+F)'$"(5'(D"2*FF'-'$)"%)/$2/-2%"/)"2*FF'-'$)")*I'%A

T5'$"@'"*$%&'()G"@'"/0@/.%"W*%*)"/$2"@'"2+")5*$C%"0*D'"+;%'-W'"5+@"&'+&0'"/-'"(/-'2"F+-G"
/$2"@'")/0D")+"&'+&0'"@5+"9%'")5'"%'-W*('G")+")5'*-"(/-'-%"/$2")+"%)/FFA"T'"/0%+"-'W*'@"
*$F+-I/)*+$"@'"5/W'"C/)5'-'2"/;+9)")5'"&-+W*2'-G"(5'(D")5'"%'-W*('Z%"-'(+-2%"/$2"(5'(D"
@5')5'-")5'"-*C5)"%.%)'I%"/$2"&-+('%%'%"/-'"*$"&0/('A

T'"F+(9%"+$"@5')5'-"+-"$+)")5'"&-+W*2'-"*%"I'')*$C")5'"%)/$2/-2%"/$2"@'"/-'"C9*2'2";."
@5')5'-"&'+&0'"/-'"'\&'-*'$(*$C")5'"+9)(+I'%")5'."%5+902";'"/;0'")+"'\&'()"@5'$")5'"
%)/$2/-2%"/-'";'*$C"I')A"4."+9)(+I'%"@'"I'/$")5'"*I&/()"(/-'"5/%"+$")5'"5'/0)5G"%/F')."
/$2"@'0F/-'"+F"&'+&0'"@5+"9%'")5'"%'-W*('G"/$2")5'"'\&'-*'$('")5'."5/W'"@5*0%)"-'('*W*$C"
*)A

:9-"*$%&'()+-%"X92C'"*F"/$."/()*+$"*%"-'B9*-'2";.")5'"&-+W*2'-"+F")5'"%'-W*('")+"*I&-+W'")5'"
%)/$2/-2"+F"(/-'";'*$C"&-+W*2'2A"T5'-'"&-+W*2'-%"/-'"$+$a(+I&0*/$)"@*)5")5'"-'C90/)*+$%G"
@'")/D'"'$F+-('I'$)"/()*+$"/C/*$%)")5'IA"#F"@'"-'B9*-'"/"%'-W*('")+")/D'"/()*+$G"+-"*F"@'"
)/D'"'$F+-('I'$)"/()*+$G"@'"-'a*$%&'()"*)";'F+-'"*)%"$'\)"-+9)*$'"*$%&'()*+$"@/%"29'A"85*%"
(+902"I'/$"@'"-'a*$%&'()"/"%'-W*('"%'W'-/0")*I'%"*$"+$'".'/-A"T'"/0%+"I*C5)"2'(*2'")+"-'a
*$%&'()"/"%'-W*('"*F"$'@"(+$('-$%"'I'-C'"/;+9)"*)";'F+-'")5'"$'\)"-+9)*$'"*$%&'()*+$A

#$";')@''$"*$%&'()*+$%"@'"(+$)*$9/00."I+$*)+-"*$F+-I/)*+$"@'"5/W'"/;+9)"&-+W*2'-%A"85'"
*$F+-I/)*+$"(+I'%"F-+I")5'"&9;0*(G")5'"&-+W*2'-G"+)5'-"+-C/$*%/)*+$%G"/$2"F-+I"(/-'"
@+-D'-%A

b+9"(/$")'00"9%"/;+9)".+9-"'\&'-*'$('"+F")5*%"&-+W*2'-"+$"+9-"@';%*)'A

Page 43



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D"""""""?Y

How we define our judgements

85'"F+00+@*$C"&/C'%"%5+@"+9-"F*$2*$C%"/$2"-'C90/)+-."X92C'I'$)"F+-"'/(5"'%%'$)*/0"
%)/$2/-2"+-"&/-)"+F")5'"%)/$2/-2")5/)"@'"*$%&'()'2A":9-"X92C'I'$)%"/-'";/%'2"+$")5'"
+$C+*$C"-'W*'@"/$2"/$/0.%*%"+F")5'"*$F+-I/)*+$"C/)5'-'2";."H^H"/;+9)")5*%"&-+W*2'-"/$2"
)5'"'W*2'$('"(+00'()'2"29-*$C")5*%"*$%&'()*+$A

T'"-'/(5"+$'"+F")5'"F+00+@*$C"X92C'I'$)%"F+-"'/(5"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2"*$%&'()'2A

" Met this standard 85*%"I'/$%")5/)")5'"%)/$2/-2"@/%";'*$C"I')"*$")5/)")5'"
&-+W*2'-"@/%"(+I&0*/$)"@*)5")5'"-'C90/)*+$A"#F"@'"F*$2")5/)"
%)/$2/-2%"@'-'"I')G"@'")/D'"$+"-'C90/)+-."/()*+$";9)"@'"
I/."I/D'"(+II'$)%")5/)"I/.";'"9%'F90")+")5'"&-+W*2'-"/$2"
)+")5'"&9;0*("/;+9)"I*$+-"*I&-+W'I'$)%")5/)"(+902";'"I/2'A

" Action needed 85*%"I'/$%")5/)")5'"%)/$2/-2"@/%"$+)";'*$C"I')"*$")5/)")5'"
&-+W*2'-"@/%"$+$a(+I&0*/$)"@*)5")5'"-'C90/)*+$A"
T'"I/."5/W'"%')"/"(+I&0*/$('"/()*+$"-'B9*-*$C")5'"&-+W*2'-"
)+"&-+29('"/"-'&+-)"%'))*$C"+9)"5+@"/$2";."@5'$"(5/$C'%"
@*00";'"I/2'")+"I/D'"%9-'")5'."(+I&0."@*)5")5'"%)/$2/-2A"
T'"I+$*)+-")5'"*I&0'I'$)/)*+$"+F"/()*+$"&0/$%"*$")5'%'"
-'&+-)%"/$2G"*F"$'('%%/-.G")/D'"F9-)5'-"/()*+$A
T'"I/."5/W'"*2'$)*F*'2"/";-'/(5"+F"/"-'C90/)*+$"@5*(5"*%"
I+-'"%'-*+9%G"/$2"@'"@*00"I/D'"%9-'"/()*+$"*%")/D'$A"T'"@*00"
-'&+-)"+$")5*%"@5'$"*)"*%"(+I&0')'A

" Enforcement

action taken

#F")5'";-'/(5"+F")5'"-'C90/)*+$"@/%"I+-'"%'-*+9%G"+-")5'-'"
5/W'";''$"%'W'-/0"+-"(+$)*$9/0";-'/(5'%G"@'"5/W'"/"-/$C'"+F
/()*+$%"@'")/D'"9%*$C")5'"(-*I*$/0"/$2c+-"(*W*0"&-+('29-'%"*$"
)5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"K()"<==P"/$2"-'0'W/$)"
-'C90/)*+$%A"85'%'"'$F+-('I'$)"&+@'-%"*$(092'"*%%9*$C"/"
@/-$*$C"$+)*('d"-'%)-*()*$C"+-"%9%&'$2*$C")5'"%'-W*('%"/"
&-+W*2'-"(/$"+FF'-G"+-")5'"$9I;'-"+F"&'+&0'"*)"(/$"(/-'"F+-d"
*%%9*$C"F*$'%"/$2"F+-I/0"(/9)*+$%d"*$"'\)-'I'"(/%'%G"
(/$('00*$C"/"&-+W*2'-"+-"I/$/C'-%"-'C*%)-/)*+$"+-"&-+%'(9)*$C
/"I/$/C'-"+-"&-+W*2'-A"85'%'"'$F+-('I'$)"&+@'-%"/-'"%')"
+9)"*$"0/@"/$2"I'/$")5/)"@'"(/$")/D'"%@*F)G")/-C')'2"/()*+$"
@5'-'"%'-W*('%"/-'"F/*0*$C"&'+&0'A

Page 44



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D"""""""?S

How we define our judgements (continued)

T5'-'"@'"F*$2"$+$a(+I&0*/$('"@*)5"/"-'C90/)*+$"_+-"&/-)"+F"/"-'C90/)*+$`G"@'"%)/)'"@5*(5"
&/-)"+F")5'"-'C90/)*+$"5/%";''$";-'/(5'2A":$0."@5'-'")5'-'"*%"$+$"(+I&0*/$('"@*)5"+$'"+-"
I+-'"+F",'C90/)*+$%"Ra<O"+F")5'",'C90/)'2"K()*W*).",'C90/)*+$%G"@*00"+9-"-'&+-)"*$(092'"/"
X92C'I'$)"/;+9)")5'"0'W'0"+F"*I&/()"+$"&'+&0'"@5+"9%'")5'"%'-W*('"_/$2"+)5'-%G"*F"
/&&-+&-*/)'")+")5'"-'C90/)*+$`A"85*%"(+902";'"/"I*$+-G"I+2'-/)'"+-"I/X+-"*I&/()A

Minor impact - &'+&0'"@5+"9%'")5'"%'-W*('"'\&'-*'$('2"&++-"(/-'")5/)"5/2"/$"*I&/()"+$"
)5'*-"5'/0)5G"%/F')."+-"@'0F/-'"+-")5'-'"@/%"/"-*%D"+F")5*%"5/&&'$*$CA"85'"*I&/()"@/%"$+)"
%*C$*F*(/$)"/$2")5'"I/))'-"(+902";'"I/$/C'2"+-"-'%+0W'2"B9*(D0.A

Moderate impact - &'+&0'"@5+"9%'")5'"%'-W*('"'\&'-*'$('2"&++-"(/-'")5/)"5/2"/"
%*C$*F*(/$)"'FF'()"+$")5'*-"5'/0)5G"%/F')."+-"@'0F/-'"+-")5'-'"@/%"/"-*%D"+F")5*%"5/&&'$*$CA"
85'"I/))'-"I/."$''2")+";'"-'%+0W'2"B9*(D0.A

Major impact - &'+&0'"@5+"9%'")5'"%'-W*('"'\&'-*'$('2"&++-"(/-'")5/)"5/2"/"%'-*+9%"
(9--'$)"+-"0+$C")'-I"*I&/()"+$")5'*-"5'/0)5G"%/F')."/$2"@'0F/-'G"+-")5'-'"@/%"/"-*%D"+F")5*%"
5/&&'$*$CA"85'"I/))'-"$''2%")+";'"-'%+0W'2"B9*(D0.

T'"2'(*2'")5'"I+%)"/&&-+&-*/)'"/()*+$")+")/D'")+"'$%9-'")5/)")5'"$'('%%/-."(5/$C'%"/-'"
I/2'A"T'"/0@/.%"F+00+@"9&")+"(5'(D"@5')5'-"/()*+$"5/%";''$")/D'$")+"I'')")5'"
%)/$2/-2%A

Page 45



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D"""""""?P

Glossary of terms we use in this report

Essential standard

85'"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"+F"B9/0*)."/$2"%/F')."/-'"2'%(-*;'2"*$"+9-"Guidance about 
compliance: Essential standards of quality and safetyA"85'."(+$%*%)"+F"/"%*C$*F*(/$)"$9I;'-
+F")5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"K()"<==P"_,'C90/)'2"K()*W*)*'%`",'C90/)*+$%"<=>="/$2")5'"
H/-'"^9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$"_,'C*%)-/)*+$`",'C90/)*+$%"<==RA"85'%'"-'C90/)*+$%"2'%(-*;'")5'
'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"+F"B9/0*)."/$2"%/F').")5/)"&'+&0'"@5+"9%'"5'/0)5"/$2"/290)"%+(*/0"(/-'"
%'-W*('%"5/W'"/"-*C5)")+"'\&'()A"K"F900"0*%)"+F")5'"%)/$2/-2%"(/$";'"F+9$2"@*)5*$")5'"
Guidance about complianceA"85'">Y"'%%'$)*/0"%)/$2/-2%"/-'M

,'%&'()*$C"/$2"*$W+0W*$C"&'+&0'"@5+"9%'"%'-W*('%"a":9)(+I'">"_,'C90/)*+$">S`

H+$%'$)")+"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)"a":9)(+I'"<"_,'C90/)*+$">P`

H/-'"/$2"@'0F/-'"+F"&'+&0'"@5+"9%'"%'-W*('%"a":9)(+I'"O"_,'C90/)*+$"R`

U'')*$C"69)-*)*+$/0"6''2%"a":9)(+I'"N"_,'C90/)*+$">O`

H++&'-/)*$C"@*)5"+)5'-"&-+W*2'-%"a":9)(+I'"Y"_,'C90/)*+$"<O`

7/F'C9/-2*$C"&'+&0'"@5+"9%'"%'-W*('%"F-+I"/;9%'"a":9)(+I'"S"_,'C90/)*+$">>`

H0'/$0*$'%%"/$2"*$F'()*+$"(+$)-+0"a":9)(+I'"P"_,'C90/)*+$"><`

U/$/C'I'$)"+F"I'2*(*$'%"a":9)(+I'"R"_,'C90/)*+$">?`

7/F')."/$2"%9*)/;*0*)."+F"&-'I*%'%"a":9)(+I'">="_,'C90/)*+$">N`

7/F').G"/W/*0/;*0*)."/$2"%9*)/;*0*)."+F"'B9*&I'$)"a":9)(+I'">>"_,'C90/)*+$">Y`

,'B9*-'I'$)%"-'0/)*$C")+"@+-D'-%"a":9)(+I'"><"_,'C90/)*+$"<>`

7)/FF*$C"a":9)(+I'">?"_,'C90/)*+$"<<`

79&&+-)*$C"7)/FF"a":9)(+I'">O"_,'C90/)*+$"<?`

K%%'%%*$C"/$2"I+$*)+-*$C")5'"B9/0*)."+F"%'-W*('"&-+W*%*+$"a":9)(+I'">Y"_,'C90/)*+$">=`

H+I&0/*$)%"a":9)(+I'">S"_,'C90/)*+$">R`

,'(+-2%"a":9)(+I'"<>"_,'C90/)*+$"<=`

Regulated activity

85'%'"/-'"&-'%(-*;'2"/()*W*)*'%"-'0/)'2")+"(/-'"/$2")-'/)I'$)")5/)"-'B9*-'"-'C*%)-/)*+$"@*)5"
H^HA"85'%'"/-'"%')"+9)"*$"0'C*%0/)*+$G"/$2"-'F0'()")5'"%'-W*('%"&-+W*2'2A

Page 46



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D"""""""?R

Glossary of terms we use in this report (continued)

(Registered) Provider

85'-'"/-'"%'W'-/0"0'C/0")'-I%"-'0/)*$C")+")5'"&-+W*2'-%"+F"%'-W*('%A"85'%'"*$(092'"
-'C*%)'-'2"&'-%+$G"%'-W*('"&-+W*2'-"/$2"-'C*%)'-'2"I/$/C'-A"85'")'-I"Z&-+W*2'-Z"I'/$%"
/$.+$'"@*)5"/"0'C/0"-'%&+$%*;*0*)."F+-"'$%9-*$C")5/)")5'"-'B9*-'I'$)%"+F")5'"0/@"/-'"(/--*'2"
+9)A":$"+9-"@';%*)'"@'"+F)'$"-'F'-")+"&-+W*2'-%"/%"/"Z%'-W*('ZA

Regulations

T'"-'C90/)'"/C/*$%)")5'"3'/0)5"/$2"7+(*/0"H/-'"K()"<==P"_,'C90/)'2"K()*W*)*'%`"
,'C90/)*+$%"<=>="/$2")5'"H/-'"^9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$"_,'C*%)-/)*+$`",'C90/)*+$%"<==RA

Responsive inspection

85*%"*%"(/--*'2"+9)"/)"/$.")*I'"*$"-'0/)*+$")+"*2'$)*F*'2"(+$('-$%A

Routine inspection

85*%"*%"&0/$$'2"/$2"(+902"+((9-"/)"/$.")*I'A"T'"%+I')*I'%"2'%(-*;'")5*%"/%"/"%(5'290'2"
*$%&'()*+$A

Themed inspection

85*%"*%")/-C')'2")+"0++D"/)"%&'(*F*("%)/$2/-2%G"%'()+-%"+-").&'%"+F"(/-'A

Page 47



!"#$%&'()*+$",'&+-)"!",+./0"1$*)'2"3+%&*)/0"4/)5"637"8-9%)"!":()+;'-"<=>? @@@A(B(A+-CA9D"""""""O=

Contact us

J5+$'M =?==="Y>Y>Y>

VI/*0M '$B9*-*'%e(B(A+-CA9D

T-*)'")+"9%"
/)M

H/-'"^9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$
H*).C/)'
L/00+@C/)'
6'@(/%)0'"9&+$"8.$'
6V>"OJK

T';%*)'M @@@A(B(A+-CA9D

H+&.-*C5)"H+&.-*C5)"f"_<=>>`"H/-'"^9/0*)."H+II*%%*+$"_H^H`A"85*%"&9;0*(/)*+$"I/."
;'"-'&-+29('2"*$"@5+0'"+-"*$"&/-)G"F-''"+F"(5/-C'G"*$"/$."F+-I/)"+-"I'2*9I"&-+W*2'2"
)5/)"*)"*%"$+)"9%'2"F+-"(+II'-(*/0"C/*$A"85*%"(+$%'$)"*%"%9;X'()")+")5'"I/)'-*/0";'*$C"
-'&-+29('2"/((9-/)'0."/$2"+$"&-+W*%+")5/)"*)"*%"$+)"9%'2"*$"/"2'-+C/)+-."I/$$'-"+-"
I*%0'/2*$C"(+$)'\)A"85'"I/)'-*/0"%5+902";'"/(D$+@0'2C'2"/%"H^H"(+&.-*C5)G"@*)5")5'
)*)0'"/$2"2/)'"+F"&9;0*(/)*+$"+F")5'"2+(9I'$)"%&'(*F*'2A

Page 48



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 1

 o
f 

1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

T
h
e
 C

Q
C

 a
s
s
e
s
s
e
d
 6

 o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 o

f 
th

e
 e

s
s
e
n
ti
a
l 
s
ta

n
d
a
rd

s
 o

f 
q

u
a
lit

y
 a

n
d
 s

a
fe

ty
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

J
u

d
g

e
m

e
n

t
H

o
w

 t
h

e
 r

e
g

u
la

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

m
e
t

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 1

: 
R

e
s
p
e
c
ti
n
g
 a

n
d
 i
n

v
o

lv
in

g
 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 n
o
t 
m

e
t 
–
 M

in
o
r 

im
p
a
c
t 

G
e
n
e
ra

ll
y
 p

a
ti
e
n
t’
s
 p

ri
v
a
c
y
 a

n
d
 d

ig
n
it
y
 w

e
re

 r
e
s
p

e
c
te

d
. 

H
o

w
e

v
e
r,

 o
n
 t

w
o
 o

f 
th

e
 f

o
u

r 
o
ld

e
r 

p
e

o
p
le

's
 w

a
rd

s
, 
a

t 
th

e
 t
im

e
 o

f 
th

e
 i
n
s
p

e
c
ti
o

n
 v

is
it
, 

w
e
 s

a
w

 i
n
s
ta

n
c
e
s
 w

h
e
re

 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 
h

a
v
in

g
 t
h

e
ir
 p

ri
v
a
c
y
 a

n
d
 d

ig
n
it
y
 m

a
in

ta
in

e
d
. 

 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 4

: 
C

a
re

 a
n

d
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 

p
e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 u

s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 n
o
t 
m

e
t 
–
 M

o
d
e
ra

te
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

C
a
re

 d
e

liv
e
ry

 b
y
 s

ta
ff

 g
e
n
e
ra

lly
 w

a
s
 m

a
n
a
g
e
d
 t

o
 m

e
e
t 
p
a
ti
e
n
ts

’ 
c
a
re

 a
n
d
 t
re

a
tm

e
n
t 

n
e
e
d
s
, 

b
u
t 
ri

s
k
s
 r

e
m

a
in

e
d
 o

f 
in

a
p

p
ro

p
ri

a
te

 o
r 

u
n
s
a
fe

 c
a
re

. 
T

h
is

 w
a
s
 b

e
c
a

u
s
e
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 

w
e
re

 n
o

t 
u
s
e

d
 i
n
 a

 c
o
-o

rd
in

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 c
o
n
s
is

te
n
t 

w
a

y
. 

A
t 

ti
m

e
s
 t
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 d
e

la
y
s
 i
n
 t

h
e
 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n
t 
o
f 

p
a
ti
e

n
t’
s
 m

e
n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h
 n

e
e
d
s
 i
n
 t
h

e
 e

m
e
rg

e
n
c
y
 d

e
p
a
rt

m
e
n
t.
 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 6

: 
C

o
o
p

e
ra

ti
n
g
 w

it
h
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

v
id

e
rs

 
S

ta
n

d
a
rd

 m
e
t 

N
/A

 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 7

: 
S

a
fe

g
u
a
rd

in
g
 p

e
o
p

le
 w

h
o
 

u
s
e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 f

ro
m

 a
b
u
s
e
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 n
o
t 
m

e
t 
–
 M

o
d
e
ra

te
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

T
h
e
re

 w
e
re

 n
o

t 
s
u
it
a
b

le
 a

rr
a
n
g
e
m

e
n
ts

 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 t
o

 p
ro

te
c
t 
p
e
o

p
le

 a
g

a
in

s
t 
th

e
 r

is
k
 o

f 
e
x
c
e
s
s
iv

e
 c

o
n

tr
o
l.
 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 1

6
: 
A

s
s
e
s
s
in

g
 a

n
d
 

m
o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 t

h
e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 

p
ro

v
is

io
n

 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 n
o
t 
m

e
t 
–
 M

o
d
e
ra

te
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

T
h
e
 p

ro
v
id

e
r 

h
a
d
 a

 s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
 p

la
c
e
 t

o
 r

e
g
u
la

rl
y
 a

s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 m

o
n
it
o
r 

th
e
 q

u
a

lit
y
 o

f 
s
e
rv

ic
e
 t

h
a
t 

p
e
o

p
le

 r
e
c
e
iv

e
 a

n
d
 t

o
 i
d
e
n

ti
fy

, 
a
s
s
e
s
s
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 r

is
k
s
 t
o
 t
h
e
 h

e
a

lt
h

, 
s
a
fe

ty
 a

n
d
 w

e
lf
a
re

 o
f 

p
e
o

p
le

 u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
rs

. 
T

h
e
 i
n
te

rn
a
l 
q
u
a

lit
y
 

a
s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 m

e
c
h
a
n
is

m
s
 w

e
re

 n
o
t 

e
ff

e
c
ti
v
e
 i
n
 e

n
s
u
ri
n
g

 t
h
e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 f

ro
m

 o
u
r 

la
s
t 

in
s
p
e
c
ti
o
n
 h

a
d

 b
e

e
n
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
te

d
. 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 2

1
: 
R

e
c
o
rd

s
 

W
a
rn

in
g
 N

o
ti
c
e
 i
s
s
u
e

d
 

S
ta

n
d
a
rd

 n
o
t 
m

e
t 
–
 M

o
d
e
ra

te
 i
m

p
a
c
t 

P
e
o

p
le

 w
e
re

 n
o
t 

p
ro

te
c
te

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e
 r

is
k
s
 o

f 
u
n
s
a
fe

 o
r 

in
a
p
p
ro

p
ri
a

te
 c

a
re

 a
n
d

 
tr

e
a
tm

e
n
t 
b

y
 m

e
a
n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 m

a
in

te
n
a
n
c
e
 o

f 
a
c
c
u
ra

te
 a

n
d
 u

p
 t
o
 d

a
te

 r
e
c
o
rd

s
. 

Page 49



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 2

 o
f 

1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

P
ri

v
a
c

y
 a

n
d

 D
ig

n
it

y
 

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 1

. 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

•
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
w

a
it
e

d
 1

0
 m

in
u

te
s
 i
n

 a
n

 o
d

o
ro

u
s
, 

s
o

ile
d

 b
e

d
 b

e
fo

re
 s

ta
ff

 c
a

m
e

 t
o

 h
e

lp
  

•
 

C
a

ll 
b
e

ll 
n

o
t 
a

c
c
e

s
s
ib

le
 b

u
t 

p
a

ti
e

n
t 
c
a

lle
d

 f
o

r 
h

e
lp

 

•
 

P
e

rs
o

n
a

l 
c
a

re
 i
n

a
d

e
q

u
a

te
: 
d

ir
ty

 f
in

g
e

r 
n
a

ils
 

a
n

d
 b

ro
w

n
 f

o
o

d
 s

u
p

p
le

m
e

n
t 
s
ta

in
in

g
 r

o
u

n
d

 
th

e
 p

a
ti
e
n

t’
s
 m

o
u

th
 

•
 

T
o

ile
t 

d
o
o

r 
w

id
e

 o
p
e

n
 o

n
 2

 o
c
c
a

s
io

n
s
. 
O

n
e

 
p

a
ti
e
n

t 
th

a
t 

h
a

d
 d

if
fi
c
u

lt
y
 s

ta
n
d
in

g
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
s
s
is

te
d

 d
e

s
p
it
e

 h
a

v
in

g
 a

 Z
im

m
e

r 
fr

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 
v
is

ib
ly

 s
tr

u
g

g
lin

g
 i
n

 c
le

a
r 

v
ie

w
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
. 

T
h

is
 

w
a

s
 b

ro
u

g
h

t 
to

 t
h

e
 a

tt
e

n
ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 n

u
rs

e
 i
n

 
c
h

a
rg

e
 

A
m

e
n

d
 t

h
e

 c
o
m

fo
rt

 r
o

u
n
d

 f
o

rm
 t

o
 h

a
v
e

 
a

 s
e
p

a
ra

te
 s

ta
te

m
e

n
t 
to

 r
e
c
o

rd
 t

h
e

 
n

u
rs

e
 h

a
s
 c

h
e

c
k
e

d
 c

a
ll 

b
e

lls
 a

re
 i
n

 
re

a
c
h
. 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
G

re
e

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
C

o
m

fo
rt

 r
o

u
n
d

 f
o

rm
 a

m
e

n
d

e
d

. 
 

C
h

e
c
k
 c

a
ll 

b
e

lls
 a

re
 a

c
c
e
s
s
ib

le
 a

s
 p

a
rt

 
o

f 
C

Q
C

 m
o

c
k
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
. 
 

1
2

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

L
e

a
d

 f
o

r 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 

P
la

n
 a

 d
ig

n
it
y
 d

a
y
. 

A
ls

o
 c

o
n

s
id

e
r 

s
h

o
w

in
g

 a
 p

ri
v
a

c
y
 a

n
d

 d
ig

n
it
y
 D

V
D

 a
t 

in
d

u
c
ti
o
n

 /
 o

p
e

n
 s

ta
ff

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
. 
 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

M
a

tr
o

n
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
U

s
e

 o
f 

D
ig

n
it
y
 D

V
D

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
 w

it
h

 
w

a
rd

 t
e

a
m

s
 a

n
d
 p

la
y
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 S

e
n

io
r 

N
u

rs
e

 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
. 

D
ig

n
it
y
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e

e
n

 r
a
is

e
d

 
d

u
ri

n
g
 W

in
te

r 
E

v
e

r 
G

re
e
n

 w
e

e
k
 a

n
d

 a
 

P
le

d
g

e
s
 t
o

 P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 c
a

m
p
a

ig
n

 l
a

u
n
c
h

e
d

. 
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 c

a
rd

s
 o

f 
5

 k
e

y
 d

ig
n

it
y
 

p
le

d
g
e

s
 f
o

r 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 p
o
s
te

rs
 b

e
in

g
 

d
is

tr
ib

u
te

d
 t
o

 a
ll 

a
re

a
s
 a

n
d

 s
ta

ff
 g

ro
u

p
s
. 
 

R
e

v
ie

w
 t

h
e

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n

 o
f 

th
e

 P
ri
v
a

c
y
 a

n
d

 
D

ig
n

it
y
 G

ro
u

p
 t

o
 e

n
s
u

re
 i
t 

re
fl
e
c
ts

 
fi
n

d
in

g
s
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 C
Q

C
 r

e
p

o
rt

 

3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

M
a

tr
o

n
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
F

in
d

in
g

s
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 P

ri
v
a

c
y
 a

n
d

 
D

ig
n

it
y
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
 o

n
 1

8
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 

W
o
rk

 p
la

n
 r

e
v
is

e
d

. 
 

Page 50



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 3

 o
f 

1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

S
u

p
e
rv

is
io

n
 /
 M

o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
p

a
ti

e
n

ts
 

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 1

 a
n
d
 1

6
. 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

•
 

M
o

n
it
o

ri
n

g
 o

f 
p

a
ti
e

n
t 
c
a

re
 i
n
c
lu

d
in

g
 

c
h

a
lle

n
g

in
g

 p
o
o

r 
c
a
re

: 
W

a
rd

 s
is

te
rs

 s
h
o

u
ld

 b
e

 
s
u

p
e

rn
u

m
e

ra
ry

 b
u

t 
th

is
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 

p
o

s
s
ib

le
 m

e
a

n
in

g
 i
t 

w
a

s
 d

if
fi
c
u
lt
 f

o
r 

q
u

a
lif

ie
d

 
s
ta

ff
 t
o

 k
n

o
w

 a
b

o
u

t 
(s

u
p

e
rv

is
e

) 
c
a

re
 d

e
liv

e
re

d
 

b
y
 u

n
q

u
a
lif

ie
d

 s
ta

ff
 

•
 

N
u

rs
e

 i
n

 c
h

a
rg

e
 w

a
s
 u

n
a
b

le
 t
o
 t

e
ll 

th
e

 C
Q

C
 

a
b

o
u

t 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 t
h
e

y
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
in

g
 c

lin
ic

a
l 
w

o
rk

 o
n

 o
th

e
r 

p
a

rt
s
 o

f 
th

e
 

w
a

rd
. 

T
h

e
 o

n
ly

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 t
o

 t
h
e

m
 

w
a

s
 i
n

 s
h
if
t 

h
a

n
d
o

v
e

r 
n

o
te

s
 

•
 

R
e

g
u

la
r 

s
u
p

e
rv

is
io

n
 d

id
 n

o
t 

ta
k
e

 p
la

c
e
 

M
e

s
s
a

g
e

 t
o

 s
ta

ff
 a

b
o

u
t 
s
a

fe
ty

 b
ri

e
fi
n

g
s
 

to
 i
n
c
re

a
s
e

 t
h

e
ir
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 /

 
u

n
d

e
rs

ta
n
d

in
g
 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
G

re
e

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
T

h
e

 w
a

rd
s
 a

lr
e

a
d

y
 u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e

 s
a

fe
ty

 
b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
. 

A
n

 e
x
p

la
n

a
ti
o
n

 o
f 
s
a
fe

ty
 b

ri
e

fi
n

g
s
 

h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

d
 i
n

 t
h

e
 o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
n

u
rs

in
g

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 s

ta
n

d
a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 t
h
is

 
w

a
s
 d

is
s
e

m
in

a
te

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 w
e

e
k
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 2

8
 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 
 

N
u

rs
in

g
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
 G

ro
u

p
 t

o
 

le
a

d
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 o
n

 t
h
e

 s
u
p

e
rv

is
o
ry

 w
a

rd
 

s
is

te
r 

ro
le

 p
ilo

t 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 –
 W

o
rk

fo
rc

e
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 –
 S

u
rg

e
ry

 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
F

u
n

d
in

g
 r

e
le

a
s
e

d
 f

o
r 

O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 f
o

r 
w

a
rd

 s
is

te
rs

 t
o
 b

e
 s

u
p
e

rv
is

o
ry

. 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 J
o

b
 D

e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
 f

o
r 

W
a
rd

 S
e

n
io

r 
S

is
te

rs
 a

n
d

 
C

h
a

rg
e

 N
u

rs
e
s
 c

le
a

rl
y
 s

ta
ti
n

g
 t
h

e
ir

 
re

s
p

o
n

s
ib

ili
ty

 a
n

d
 a

c
c
o

u
n

ta
b
ili

ty
 f

o
r 

s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 o

f 
n

u
rs

in
g
 c

a
re

 a
n
d

 l
e

a
d
in

g
 

o
n

 q
u
a

lit
y
 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
t.
  

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
  

G
re

e
n
 

N
E

W
 A

C
T

IO
N

 (
a

d
d

e
d

 2
5

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 (

K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 
In

d
ic

a
to

rs
) 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 f
ro

m
 t
h

e
 W

a
rd

 l
e

v
e

l 
s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

is
 J

o
b

 
D

e
s
c
ri
p

ti
o

n
 o

u
tl
in

in
g

 e
x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
ro

le
 

a
n

d
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 t

o
 b

e
 m

e
a

s
u

re
d

.
  

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 
o

f 
w

a
rd

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
s
 w

h
ic

h
 

w
ill

 h
e

lp
 t
o

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 t
h

e
 d

if
fe

re
n

c
e

 i
n

 
re

la
ti
o

n
 t
o

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 w

it
h

 p
a

ti
e
n

t 
c
a

re
 w

h
e

n
 w

a
rd

 m
a
n

a
g
e

rs
 h

a
v
e

 
a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
s
u

p
e

rv
is

o
ry

 t
im

e
 

9
 D

e
c
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3
 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 A

n
a
ly

s
t 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

G
re

e
n
 

T
h

e
 w

a
rd

 s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

; 
 t

o
 

b
e

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 t
o

 M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 
B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 2

0
th

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r.

 A
 t
e

s
ti
n

g
, 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 
tr

a
in

in
g

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 t

h
e
n

 b
e

 p
u

t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 w
it
h

 
s
y
s
te

m
 r

o
ll 

o
u

t 
to

 b
e

 l
a

u
n
c
h

e
d

 i
n

 D
e

c
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
..
  

Page 51



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 4

 o
f 

1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

M
a

tr
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 w
ill

 c
lo

s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
w

a
rd

 l
e

v
e

l 
s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
s
. 

M
a

tr
o

n
s
 w

ill
 m

e
e

t 
w

it
h

 
S

e
n

io
r 

S
is

te
rs

/C
h
a

rg
e

 N
u

rs
e
s
 m

o
n

th
ly

 
to

 i
d
e

n
ti
fy

 i
s
s
u

e
s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 
im

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
n

d
 

th
is

 w
ill

 f
o

rm
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

th
e

ir
 ‘W

a
rd

 t
o

 
B

o
a

rd
’ 
q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
 r

e
p
o

rt
s
. 

3
1

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
  

G
re

e
n
 

N
E

W
 A

C
T

IO
N

 (
a

d
d

e
d

 2
5

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

Q
u

a
lit

y
 i
n
d

ic
a

to
rs

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 w
a

rd
 

s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 w

ill
 b

e
 m

o
n

it
o

re
d

 a
n
d

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 T

ru
s
t’
s
 S

e
n

io
r 

N
u

rs
e
s
 

F
o

ru
m

 c
h
a

ir
e

d
 b

y
 t

h
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

. 

3
1

 J
a

n
u

a
ry

 2
0

1
4
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g
 

G
re

e
n
 

N
E

W
 A

C
T

IO
N

 (
a

d
d

e
d

 2
5

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
 u

n
a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 v
is

it
s
 (

o
u

t 
o

f 
h

o
u

rs
) 

to
 t
a

k
e
 p

la
c
e

 o
n

 a
ll 

w
a

rd
s
 a

s
 a

 
m

in
im

u
m

 q
u

a
rt

e
rl
y
 

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g
 

G
re

e
n
 

N
E

W
 A

C
T

IO
N

 (
a

d
d

e
d

 2
5

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

Is
s
u
e

s
 o

f 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
 a

n
d

 p
o

o
r 

p
e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 

w
ill

 b
e

 d
is

c
u

s
s
e

d
 p

ro
m

p
tl
y
 a

n
d
 d

ir
e
c
tl
y
 w

it
h

 
th

e
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

.

Page 52



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 5

 o
f 

1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

D
o

c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti

o
n

 
T

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 4

 a
n
d
 2

1
. 
 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

O
v
e

ra
ll:

 
S

h
o

rt
fa

lls
 i
n

 a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t,
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
n
in

g
 a

n
d
 

d
e

liv
e

ry
 o

f 
c
a

re
 i
n

 t
h

e
 a

re
a
s
 o

f 
n

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 
h

y
d

ra
ti
o

n
, 

p
a
in

 m
a

n
a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 a

re
a

 
c
a

re
: •
 

T
h

e
 e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 r

e
c
o

rd
 k

e
e

p
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 w

a
s
 

n
o

t 
u
s
e

d
 o

n
 a

 s
h
if
t 

b
y
 s

h
if
t 

b
a
s
is

  

•
 

N
u

rs
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 d
id

 n
o

t 
w

ri
te

 i
n

 t
h
e

 
m

u
lt
id

is
c
ip

lin
a

ry
 r

e
c
o

rd
s
 e

v
e

ry
 d

a
y
 

H
ig

h
lig

h
t 
is

s
u

e
s
 o

f 
p

o
o

r 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 
a

t 
s
e
n

io
r 

s
is

te
rs

, 
m

a
tr

o
n

s
, 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e

c
to

rs
 o

f 
N

u
rs

e
’s

 m
e
e

ti
n
g

 –
 5

th
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

5
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
S

ta
ff

 w
e

re
 r

e
m

in
d
e

d
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 r
e
n

e
w

e
d

 
c
o

m
m

it
m

e
n
t 

fo
r 

c
o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 a
n
d

 m
o
n

it
o

ri
n

g
 

o
f 

re
c
o

rd
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
ir

 a
re

a
s
. 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

re
c
e

iv
e

d
 f

ro
m

 w
a

rd
 t

e
a
m

s
 t
h

a
t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 

re
c
o

n
fi
rm

in
g

 d
o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
m

e
n

ts
 

w
it
h

 w
a

rd
 s

ta
ff

. 
F

u
rt

h
e

r 
m

e
e
ti
n
g

 h
e

ld
 w

it
h

 
s
e

n
io

r 
n

u
rs

e
s
 o

n
 1

7
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3

. 
 

H
o

ld
 h

o
u

rl
y
 b

ri
e

fi
n
g

 s
e

s
s
io

n
s
 f
o

r 
a

 
s
e

n
io

r 
s
is

te
r 

re
s
p

o
n
s
ib

le
 f
o

r 
e
a
c
h

 w
a

rd
 

re
g

a
rd

in
g

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

M
ill

e
n

n
iu

m
 f

o
r 

re
c
o

rd
in

g
 p

a
ti
e

n
t 
a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 a
s
 a

 
m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
to

o
l 
fo

r 
o

v
e

rs
e

e
in

g
 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 k
e

y
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

1
5

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
G

re
e

n
 

N
E

W
 A

C
T

IO
N

 (
a

d
d

e
d

2
3

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

P
la

n
n

e
d

 v
is

it
s
 u

n
d
e

rw
a

y
 –

 v
is

it
s
 d

u
e

 t
o

 b
e

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 b

y
 w

e
e

k
 e

n
d

in
g

 2
2

n
d
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 t

o
 s

ta
ff

 o
n

 h
o

w
 t

h
e

y
 

c
a

n
 a

c
c
e

s
s
 M

ill
e

n
n
iu

m
  
 

1
6

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 a

c
c
e
s
s
in

g
 M

ill
e
n

n
iu

m
 h

a
s
 

b
e

e
n

 r
e

fr
e
s
h

e
d
 a

n
d
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d
 t

o
 t

h
e
 

w
a

rd
s
. 

C
o

m
p

le
ti
o
n

 o
f 
k
e

y
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
, 

M
U

S
T

, 
n

u
tr

it
io

n
 s

u
p
p

o
rt

 r
e
c
o

rd
 

(i
n

c
lu

d
e
s
 f

o
o

d
 c

h
a

rt
),

 f
lu

id
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 
c
h

a
rt

s
, 

h
y
d

ra
ti
o
n

 c
h
a

rt
s
 a

n
d
 c

o
m

fo
rt

 
ro

u
n

d
s
 t

o
 b

e
 m

o
n
it
o

re
d

 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 w
a

rd
 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 a

u
d

it
s
 (

w
e

e
k
ly

) 

1
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
(o

n
g

o
in

g
) 

L
e

a
d

 f
o

r 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
R

e
v
is

e
d

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

u
d

it
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
d

 
1

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3

. 
T

ru
s
t 

a
u
d
it
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
e

v
e

ry
 C

Q
C

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 
fo

ru
m

s
 o

f 
s
e
n

io
r 

n
u

rs
in

g
 s

ta
ff

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 a
n
d

 m
a

tr
o
n

s
’ 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
. 

P
e

e
r 

a
u
d

it
s
 t

o
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e

 w
e

e
k
 

c
o

m
m

e
n
c
in

g
 4

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
 

Page 53



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 6

 o
f 

1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

N
u

rs
in

g
 s

h
if
t 
s
u
m

m
a

ry
 g

u
id

a
n
c
e

 a
n

d
 

p
h

ilo
s
o
p

h
y
 t

o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e
lo

p
e
d

 t
o

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 a
 

lis
t 
o

f 
k
e

y
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 t
o

 b
e

 r
e
c
o

rd
e

d
 o

n
 

th
e

 m
u

lt
id

is
c
ip

lin
a

ry
 /

 e
v
a

lu
a

ti
o
n

 s
h
e

e
ts

 

3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

W
a
rd

 S
is

te
r 

M
id

fo
rd

 W
a
rd

 

W
a
rd

 S
is

te
r,

 
H

e
le

n
a

 W
a
rd

 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 

G
u

id
a

n
c
e

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 p

ro
d
u

c
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
e
s
te

d
 

o
n

  
th

e
 O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

’s
 U

n
it
 w

a
rd

s
. 
 

N
u

tr
it
io

n
: 

•
 

N
u

tr
it
io

n
a

l 
(e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
) 

ri
s
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
ts

 n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s
 c

o
m

p
le

te
ly

 i
n

 a
 t

im
e

ly
 m

a
n

n
e

r 
(a

t 
le

a
s
t 

m
o

n
th

ly
).

 W
e
ig

h
t 

w
a

s
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 a

n
d

 t
h

is
 c

o
u

ld
 d

e
la

y
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
 o

f 
th

e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 

•
 

P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 r
e
q

u
ir
in

g
 a

s
s
is

ta
n
c
e

 d
id

 n
o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 

h
a

v
e

 a
 r

e
c
o

rd
 t

h
a

t 
th

e
y
 h

a
d

 d
if
fi
c
u
lt
y
 d

ri
n
k
in

g
 

/ 
e

a
ti
n

g
 a

n
d

 a
 p

la
n

 o
f 
c
a

re
 a

b
o
u

t 
h

o
w

 t
h

e
y
 

w
o

u
ld

 b
e

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
e

d
 t
o

 d
ri
n
k
 o

r 
e

a
t 

•
 

F
o

o
d

 c
h

a
rt

s
: 

N
o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d

 f
o
r 

a
ll 

m
e

a
ls

 

A
g

re
e

 w
o

rk
 p

la
n

 a
n

d
 m

e
m

b
e

rs
h

ip
 o

f 
th

e
 

N
u

tr
it
io

n
 a

n
d

 H
y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
. 

T
h

is
 w

ill
 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 a
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
tr

a
in

in
g

 
(i

n
c
lu

d
in

g
 M

U
S

T
) 

a
n

d
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 /

 
p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 d
a

ta
 a

ro
u

n
d

 n
u
tr

it
io

n
a
l 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 m
e
a

l 
ti
m

e
s
. 
M

e
a

l 
ti
m

e
 

o
b

s
e

rv
a

ti
o

n
s
 t

o
 a

ls
o

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t.
 

2
0

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 d
a

te
: 

1
8

th
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

M
a

tr
o

n
 

G
re

e
n
 

Is
s
u
e

s
 r

a
is

e
d

 a
t 

th
e

 C
Q

C
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 w

e
re

 
d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 N

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 H
y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 

S
te

e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 i
n

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

. 
 

T
h

e
 N

u
tr

it
io

n
 G

ro
u

p
 w

o
rk

 p
la

n
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

re
v
is

e
d

 t
o

 r
e

fl
e
c
t 

th
e

 p
ri
o

ri
ti
e

s
. 
 

L
in

k
 w

o
rk

e
rs

 f
o

r 
a

ll 
w

a
rd

 a
re

a
s
 h

a
v
e

 b
e
e

n
 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e
d

 a
n
d

 a
re

 w
o

rk
in

g
 w

it
h
 t

h
e

 s
te

e
ri
n

g
 

g
ro

u
p

 t
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
h

e
 w

o
rk

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 

N
u

tr
it
io

n
 w

e
e

k
 /

 f
u

n
d
a

m
e
n

ta
ls

 o
f 

c
a

re
 

w
e

e
k
 t

o
 b

e
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
d
 

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

G
re

e
n
 

C
e

le
b

ra
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 6
 C

’s
 E

v
e

n
t 

to
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 o
n

 
1

2
th

 N
o

v
e
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 a

s
 a

 w
o

rl
d

 c
a

fé
 s

ty
le

 
e

v
e

n
t 

to
 r

e
-l

a
u

n
c
h

 m
e

a
lt
im

e
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
s
 a

n
d

 
p

ro
v
id

e
 k

e
y
 m

e
s
s
a

g
e
s
 a

b
o

u
t 
a
ll 

a
s
p

e
c
ts

 o
f 

n
u

tr
it
io

n
 t
o

 m
a

n
y
 g

ro
u

p
s
 o

f 
s
ta

ff
. 

M
o

n
it
o

r 
c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 w
it
h

 t
h

e
 N

u
tr

it
io

n
 

S
u

p
p

o
rt

 R
e

c
o

rd
 t

h
ro

u
g

h
 t

h
e

 N
u

tr
it
io

n
 

a
n

d
 H

y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
  

2
0

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 d
a

te
: 

1
8

th
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

M
a

tr
o

n
 

A
m

b
e

r
T

h
is

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 i
n

c
lu

d
e
d

 i
n
 t

h
e

 r
e

v
is

e
d

 w
o

rk
 

p
la

n
 o

f 
th

e
 N

u
tr

it
io

n
 a

n
d

 H
y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 

G
ro

u
p

. 
 

H
y
d

ra
ti
o

n
: 

•
 

F
lu

id
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 c
h

a
rt

s
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 f
u

lly
 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 p

a
ti
e
n

t’
s
 t

o
ta

l 
fl
u

id
 i
n

ta
k
e

 a
n

d
 

o
u

tp
u

t 
o

r 
th

e
re

 w
a

s
 i
n

a
c
c
u

ra
te

 f
lu

id
 i
n
ta

k
e

 
re

c
o

rd
e

d
 (

e
.g

. 
‘s

ip
s
’ 
w

ri
tt

e
n

 a
s
 a

 m
e
a

s
u

re
 o

f 
in

ta
k
e

) 

R
e

fi
n

e
m

e
n

t 
to

 f
lu

id
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 c
h
a

rt
 (

la
s
t 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 2
0

0
8

) 
a

n
d

 h
y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rt
 t

o
 

a
d

d
 i
n

 g
u
id

a
n

c
e
 a

b
o
u

t 
it
s
 u

s
e
 

2
6

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 

N
u

rs
e

 C
o

n
s
u
lt
a

n
t 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
T

h
e

 f
lu

id
 b

a
la

n
c
e

 c
h

a
rt

s
 a

n
d

 h
y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 

c
h

a
rt

s
 h

a
v
e

 b
o

th
 b

e
e
n

 r
e

v
is

e
d
 a

n
d

 a
g

re
e
d

. 
N

e
w

 f
o

rm
s
 a

re
 a

v
a

ila
b

le
 a

n
d
 w

ill
 r

e
p

la
c
e

 
th

e
 o

ld
 f

o
rm

s
 w

e
e

k
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 4

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
 

Page 54



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 7

 o
f 

1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

•
 

F
lu

id
 c

h
a

rt
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 
h

a
v
e

 e
n

tr
ie

s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 f
o

r 
in

tr
a

v
e

n
o
u

s
 f
lu

id
s
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 a
d
m

in
is

te
re

d
 

•
 

H
y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rt
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 f

u
lly

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 

to
ta

lli
n

g
 t

h
e
 a

m
o

u
n

t 
o

f 
fl
u

id
s
 d

ru
n

k
 

•
 

S
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 o
w

n
 c

o
m

p
lia

n
c
e

 
ra

te
s
 f
o

r 
c
o

m
p

le
ti
o

n
 o

f 
fl
u

id
 b

a
la

n
c
e
 a

n
d
 

h
y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rt
s
 f

o
r 

a
u

d
it
s
 t
h

a
t 
w

e
re

 
u

n
d

e
rt

a
k
e
n
 

C
o

m
p

lia
n
c
e

 w
it
h

 e
n
s
u

ri
n

g
 e

v
e

ry
 p

a
ti
e

n
t 

h
a

s
 a

 f
lu

id
 o

r 
h

y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 c

h
a

rt
 a

n
d

 
c
o

m
fo

rt
 r

o
u

n
d

 f
o

rm
s
 t
o

 b
e

 m
o
n

it
o

re
d

 b
y
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
 f
o

r 
Q

u
a
lit

y
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

o
n

 a
 2

 w
e

e
k

ly
 b

a
s

is
 (

to
 b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

 a
t 

S
te

e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p

) 

2
6

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
G

re
e

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 

T
h

e
 f

ir
s
t 
s
e

t 
o

f 
re

s
u

lt
s
 w

e
re

 p
re

s
e

n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

Q
C

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

 o
n
 2

6
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
. 

M
e

th
o

d
 f

o
r 

re
p

o
rt

in
g

 o
f 
a

u
d
it
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 t
o

 
b

e
 a

g
re

e
d

. 
It

 i
s
 p

ro
p

o
s
e

d
 t
h

a
t 
a

u
d

it
 

fi
n

d
in

g
s
 a

re
 p

re
s
e

n
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

Q
C

 
S

te
e

ri
n
g

 G
ro

u
p

 a
n

d
 o

n
 t
h

e
 w

a
rd

 
s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
s
 

2
6

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

L
e

a
d

 f
o

r 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
T

ru
s
t 

a
u

d
it
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 a

re
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

t 
e

v
e

ry
 

C
Q

C
 S

te
e

ri
n

g
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 a
t 
fo

ru
m

s
 o

f 
s
e

n
io

r 
n

u
rs

in
g

 s
ta

ff
 w

it
h

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 a
n
d

 m
a

tr
o

n
s
’ 
m

e
e
ti
n

g
s
. 

T
h

e
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 a
re

 e
-m

a
ile

d
 

a
u

d
it
 r

e
s
u

lt
s
 o

n
 a

 f
o

rt
n

ig
h

tl
y
 b

a
s
is

, 
to

 
d

is
s
e

m
in

a
te

 t
o
 t

h
e

 m
a

tr
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 w
a

rd
 

s
is

te
rs

, 
w

it
h

 a
 s

u
m

m
a

ry
 o

f 
k
e

y
 f

in
d
in

g
s
, 

a
re

a
s
 f

o
r 

im
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
ts

. 
 

P
re

s
s
u

re
 U

lc
e

r 
C

a
re

: 

•
 

C
o

m
fo

rt
 a

n
d

 P
re

s
s
u

re
 C

a
re

 R
e

c
o

rd
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 d

a
ily

 i
n

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

e
-p

o
s
it
io

n
in

g
 

re
c
o

rd
 

•
 

C
a

re
 p

la
n

s
 n

o
t 
in

 p
la

c
e

 f
o

r 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 u

lc
e

ra
ti
o

n
 

C
a

re
 p

la
n

 t
o
 b

e
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 f
o

r 
p

a
ti
e
n

ts
 

a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 u

lc
e

ra
ti
o

n
. 
 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

C
lin

ic
a

l 
N

u
rs

e
 

S
p

e
c
ia

lis
t 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 

G
re

e
n
 

A
 n

u
tr

it
io

n
a

l 
n
e

e
d
s
 l
e
a

fl
e

t 
fo

r 
p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
it
h

 
p

re
s
s
u

re
 u

lc
e

rs
 h

a
s
 b

e
e

n
 d

e
v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n
d

 
w

it
h

 a
 r

e
v
is

e
d
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
 w

ill
 b

e
 l
a

u
n
c
h

e
d

 
w

e
e

k
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 4

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

. 

P
a

in
 M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t:
 

•
 

P
a

in
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
a

re
 p

la
n

 n
o

t 
in

 p
la

c
e
 

P
a

in
 m

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
c
a

re
 p

la
n

 t
o
 b

e
 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 r
e

v
is

e
d

. 
G

u
id

a
n
c
e

 w
ill

 
a

ls
o
 b

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
e

d
 t

o
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 i
ts

 u
s
e
 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
s
, 

Q
u

a
lit

y
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

C
h

a
rg

e
 N

u
rs

e
, 

A
c
u

te
 

P
a

in
 S

e
rv

ic
e
 

A
m

b
e

r
R

e
v
is

e
d

 c
a

re
 p

la
n

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

e
d

 a
n

d
 

im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 d

ra
w

n
 u

p
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 p
ro

c
e
s
s
e
s
 a

n
d
 s

ta
n
d

a
rd

is
a
ti
o

n
: 

•
 

T
h

e
 m

a
in

 n
u

rs
in

g
 h

a
n

d
o

v
e

r 
to

o
k
 p

la
c
e

 u
s
in

g
 

h
a

n
d

o
v
e

r 
s
h

e
e

ts
 (

w
it
h

 l
im

it
e
d

 s
p

a
c
e

).
 T

h
e

re
 

w
a

s
 a

 d
e

la
y
 i
n

 t
h
e

 e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 

s
y
s
te

m
 b

e
in

g
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 b
e
c
a

u
s
e

 i
t 
w

a
s
 

u
p

d
a

te
d

 b
y
 a

d
d

in
g

 t
h
e

 i
n
fo

rm
a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 

P
ro

d
u

c
e

 a
 h

ig
h
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
n

u
rs

in
g

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 r

e
q

u
ir
e
m

e
n

ts
, 

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
 f

o
r 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
G

re
e

n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
O

v
e

rv
ie

w
 o

f 
n

u
rs

in
g

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 

d
e

v
e

lo
p
e

d
. 

T
h

is
 w

a
s
 d

is
s
e
m

in
a

te
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 
m

a
tr

o
n

s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

rs
 o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 w
e

e
k
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 2

8
th

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

Page 55



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 8

 o
f 

1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

h
a

n
d

o
v
e

r 
s
h

e
e

t 
o
n

ly
 o

n
c
e

 a
 d

a
y
, 

b
y
 t

h
e

 n
ig

h
t 

s
ta

ff
 

•
 

F
o

u
r 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
s
 

(e
le

c
tr

o
n
ic

 r
e
c
o

rd
 k

e
e

p
in

g
, 
h

a
n

d
o

v
e

r 
s
h

e
e

ts
, 

p
a

ti
e
n

t 
n
o

te
s
 a

n
d
 w

h
it
e

 b
o
a

rd
s
).

 S
ta

ff
 d

id
 n

o
t 

u
s
e

 t
h

e
s
e

 s
y
s
te

m
s
 e

q
u

a
lly

 a
n
d

 c
h
o

s
e

 t
h

e
 

s
y
s
te

m
 t

h
e

y
 f

o
u

n
d

 t
h

e
 q

u
ic

k
e

s
t.

 T
h

is
 m

e
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 u

p
 t

o
 d

a
te

 a
n

d
 

in
c
re

a
s
e
d

 t
h
e

 r
is

k
 o

f 
in

a
c
c
u

ra
c
ie

s
 

•
 

S
ta

ff
 d

id
 n

o
t 

a
lw

a
y
s
 h

a
v
e

 a
c
c
e
s
s
 t
o

 t
h

e
 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 r

e
c
o

rd
in

g
 s

y
s
te

m
 a

s
 i
t 

w
a

s
 o

ft
e
n

 i
n

 
u

s
e

 b
y
 o

th
e

r 
s
ta

ff
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

is
e

 c
o

n
te

n
t 

fo
r 

n
u

rs
in

g
 f

o
ld

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 s
to

ra
g

e
 o

f 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 o
n

 a
ll 

w
a

rd
s
 

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
G

re
e

n
 

F
ile

s
 t

o
 b

e
 l
a

u
n
c
h

e
d

 T
ru

s
t-

w
id

e
 w

e
e

k
 

c
o

m
m

e
n
c
in

g
 4

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 
in

c
lu

d
e

 a
 s

ta
n

d
a

rd
is

e
d
 i
n

d
e

x
 o

f 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 (

  

O
b

ta
in

 f
u

n
d
in

g
 f
o

r 
n

e
w

 b
e

d
 b

o
a

rd
s
 o

n
 

a
ll 

w
a

rd
s
 t
h

a
t 
h

ig
h
lig

h
t 
k
e

y
 p

a
ti
e

n
t 

re
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

ts
, 
e

.g
. 
h

y
d

ra
ti
o

n
, 
fl
u

id
 

b
a

la
n
c
e

 c
h

a
rt

s
, 
a

s
s
is

t 
to

 e
a

t,
 p

re
s
s
u

re
 

u
lc

e
r 

p
re

v
e

n
ti
o

n
, 
fa

lls
 e

tc
 

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
G

re
e

n
 

N
e

w
 b

e
d

 b
o

a
rd

s
 p

u
rc

h
a

s
e
d

 a
n
d

 b
e

in
g

 
in

s
ta

lle
d

 a
c
ro

s
s
 w

a
rd

s
 i
n

 w
e

e
k
  

c
o

m
m

e
n
c
in

g
 4

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 w
it
h

 r
o

ll 
o

u
t 

p
la

n
. 
  

E
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
s
ta

ff
 a

re
 a

w
a

re
 o

f 
re

q
u

ir
e

m
e
n

ts
 f
o

r 
e
n

s
u

ri
n

g
 t

h
a

t 
a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 
p

a
ti
e

n
t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f
ro

m
 

h
a

n
d

o
v
e

r 
s
h

e
e

ts
 a

n
d
 w

h
it
e

 b
o
a

rd
s
 a

re
 

re
c
o

rd
e

d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 p
a

ti
e

n
t 

re
c
o

rd
 

(M
ill

e
n

n
iu

m
 /

 p
a

ti
e
n

t 
n
o

te
s
) 

3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
R

o
u

ti
n

e
 c

h
e

c
k
s
 t
o

 b
e

 c
a

rr
ie

d
 o

u
t 

b
y
 t

h
e

 
w

a
rd

s
 a

n
d

 m
a

tr
o
n

s
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 r

e
le

v
a

n
t 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 i
s
 r

e
c
o

rd
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 p
a

ti
e
n

t 
re

c
o

rd
. 

  

Page 56



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 9

 o
f 

1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

D
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 P

la
n

n
in

g
T

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
s
 6

 a
n
d
 2

1
. 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

D
is

c
h
a

rg
e

 p
la

n
s
 (

c
h

e
c
k
lis

t)
 n

o
t 
c
o

n
s
is

te
n

tl
y
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
n

 p
la

c
e
 t
h

is
 w

a
s
 o

ft
e

n
 o

n
ly

 
c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 d
a

y
 o

f 
d

is
c
h
a

rg
e

. 
T

h
e

re
 w

e
re

 
re

fe
re

n
c
e
s
 t

o
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 
fi
tn

e
s
s
 f
o

r 
d

is
c
h
a

rg
e

 b
u

t 
th

is
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 w
a

s
 n

o
t 

u
s
e

d
 c

o
n

s
is

te
n

tl
y
 (

d
if
fe

re
n

c
e

s
 

b
e

tw
e

e
n

 d
o
c
to

rs
 o

n
 d

u
ty

 a
n
d

 i
n

d
iv

id
u
a

l 
w

a
rd

s
) 

T
h

e
s
e

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 w

e
re

 a
ls

o
 r

a
is

e
d
 u

n
d

e
r 

O
u
tc

o
m

e
 2

1
: 

R
e

c
o

rd
s

D
is

c
h
a

rg
e

 c
h
e

c
k
lis

t 
to

 b
e

 a
u

d
it
e

d
 a

s
 

p
a

rt
 o

f 
w

e
e

k
ly

 w
a

rd
 d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 

a
u

d
it
s
 

1
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 
(o

n
g

o
in

g
) 

L
e

a
d

 f
o

r 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
R

e
v
is

e
d

 d
o

c
u

m
e
n

ta
ti
o

n
 a

u
d

it
s
 c

o
m

m
e
n

c
e
d

 
1

0
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 p

re
s
e
n

te
d

 a
t 

fo
rt

n
ig

h
tl
y
 C

Q
C

 S
te

e
ri
n

g
 G

ro
u
p

 m
e
e

ti
n
g

s
 

a
n

d
 f

o
ru

m
s
 w

it
h

 S
e

n
io

r 
n
u

rs
e
s
 a

n
d

 w
a

rd
 

s
is

te
rs

 w
it
h

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g
  

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o
n

 o
f 
th

e
 d

is
c
h

a
rg

e
 

c
h

e
c
k
lis

t 
w

a
s
 n

o
te

d
 a

t 
th

e
 C

Q
C

 S
te

e
ri

n
g

 
G

ro
u

p
 o

n
 2

5
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

. 
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 w
h

it
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 (

in
c
lu

d
in

g
 m

e
d
ic

a
l 

fi
tn

e
s
s
 f
o

r 
d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 a

n
d

 r
e
le

v
a

n
t 

a
s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

ts
 b

y
 

th
e

ra
p
is

ts
) 

w
e

re
 n

o
t 
d

o
c
u

m
e

n
te

d
 i
n
 a

ll 
th

e
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

’ 
n

o
te

s
 

In
v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 r
e

c
o
rd

in
g

 o
f 
d

is
c
h
a
rg

e
 p

la
n

s
 

o
n

 M
ill

e
n

n
iu

m
 

3
0

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 

A
 m

e
s
s
a
g

e
 w

a
s
 s

e
n

t 
to

 a
ll 

w
a

rd
 m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 
a

n
d

 m
a

tr
o
n

s
 b

y
 t

h
e

 A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 P

a
ti
e

n
t 

S
a

fe
ty

 
d

e
ta

ili
n
g

 t
h

e
 r

e
q
u

ir
e
m

e
n

ts
 t
h

a
t 
a

ll 
re

le
v
a

n
t 

p
a

ti
e
n

t 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 f

ro
m

 h
a

n
d
o
v
e

r 
s
h

e
e

ts
 

a
n

d
 w

h
it
e

 b
o

a
rd

s
 a

re
 r

e
c
o

rd
e
d
 w

it
h

in
 t

h
e

 
p

a
ti
e
n

t 
re

c
o

rd
.

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 
p

e
o
p

le
’s

 m
e
n

ta
l 
c
o

g
n

it
io

n
 o

r 
m

o
b

ili
ty

 w
a

s
 m

o
s
tl
y
 “

o
n

e
 w

o
rd

”,
 e

.g
. 
d

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 w
a

s
 

o
ft

e
n

 r
e

c
o

rd
e

d
. 
T

h
e

re
 w

a
s
 n

o
 m

o
re

 d
e

ta
ile

d
 

in
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 
th

e
 n

a
tu

re
, 

im
p

a
c
t 

o
r 

s
u

p
p

o
rt

 
n

e
e

d
e
d

R
a

is
e

 w
it
h

 C
lin

ic
a

l 
L

e
a
d

 f
o

r 
O

ld
e

r 
P

e
o

p
le

 &
 D

e
m

e
n

ti
a

 S
tr

a
te

g
y
 G

ro
u

p
 a

n
d

 
s
tr

e
n
g

th
e
n

 u
n
d

e
rs

ta
n

d
in

g
 t
h

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 
fu

n
d

a
m

e
n
ta

ls
 o

f 
c
a

re
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 w

e
e

k
 

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

G
re

e
n
 

C
e

le
b

ra
ti
n

g
 t

h
e

 6
C

’s
 -

 f
u

n
d

a
m

e
n

ta
ls

 o
f 
c
a

re
 

d
a

y
 t

o
 t

a
k
e

 p
la

c
e

 o
n

 1
2
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 a

s
 

a
 w

o
rl

d
 c

a
fé

 s
ty

le
 e

v
e

n
t.
 T

h
is

 w
ill

 i
n

c
lu

d
e

 
P

ri
v
a

c
y
 &

 D
ig

n
it
y
, 

P
re

s
s
u

re
 U

lc
e

rs
, 

N
u

tr
it
io

n
 &

 H
y
d

ra
ti
o

n
 a

n
d

 S
a
fe

g
u

a
rd

in
g

. 
 

Page 57



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 1

0
 o

f 
1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

M
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
: 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
T

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 1

.

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

E
m

e
rg

e
n

c
y
 D

e
p

a
rt

m
e
n

t 
(E

D
):

 D
e

la
y
s
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p

e
o
p

le
’s

 m
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a
lt
h

 n
e

e
d
s
 

M
e

e
t 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 D

ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 o
f 

A
v
o

n
 a

n
d

 W
ilt

s
h

ir
e

 M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
P

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 N

H
S

 T
ru

s
t 

(A
W

P
) 

to
 

d
is

c
u

s
s
 t
h

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s
 r

a
is

e
d

 i
n

 t
h
e

 C
Q

C
 

re
p

o
rt

 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g
 

A
s
s
o
c
ia

te
 D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

, 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 a

n
d
 

P
a

ti
e

n
t 
S

a
fe

ty
 

A
m

b
e

r
M

e
e

ti
n

g
 a

rr
a

n
g

e
d

 w
it
h

 t
h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 f
o

r 
A

W
P

 o
n

 7
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0
1

3
.

E
s
c
a
la

te
 t
o

 t
h

e
 C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
in

g
 C

o
lle

g
e

 
th

e
 l
e

v
e

l 
o

f 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 
c
o

m
m

is
s
io

n
e
d

 i
n
 r

e
la

ti
o
n

 t
o

 M
e

n
ta

l 
h

e
a

lt
h

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
v
is

io
n

 t
o

 t
h
e

 R
U

H
 

T
ru

s
t 

 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

H
e

a
d

 o
f 

B
u

s
in

e
s
s
 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e

n
t 

G
re

e
n
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 
 D

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
s
 h

e
ld

 w
it
h

 
C

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

rs
, 
fu

rt
h
e

r 
m

e
e

ti
n
g

s
 t

o
 b

e
 

h
e

ld
. 

W
o
rk

 w
it
h

 A
W

P
 t
o

 d
e

v
e
lo

p
 7

 d
a

y
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 L
ia

is
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

s
u

p
p
o

rt
in

g
 a

d
u

lt
s
 o

f 
w

o
rk

in
g

 a
g

e
 a

n
d

 
o

ld
e

r 
a

d
u
lt
s
. 

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

S
p

e
c
ia

lt
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

L
ia

is
o

n
 T

e
a
m

 l
e

a
d

e
r 

–
A

W
P

 

G
re

e
n
 

N
E

W
 A

C
T

IO
N

 (
a

d
d

e
d

 2
5

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

A
d

d
it
io

n
a
l 
m

e
n

ta
l 
h

e
a

lt
h
 l
ia

is
o
n

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 

fu
n

d
e
d

 a
s
 p

a
rt

 o
f 

R
U

H
 D

e
m

e
n
ti
a

 C
h

a
lle

n
g

e
 

b
id

. 
R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
in

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
.

P
ilo

t 
e

x
te

n
s
io

n
 t
o

 M
e

n
ta

l 
h
e

a
lt
h

 l
ia

is
o

n
 

s
e

rv
ic

e
s
 t
o

 8
a
m

-8
p
m

 a
n

d
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a
l 

re
s
o

u
rc

e
 t
o

 s
u

p
p
o

rt
 I

n
te

n
s
iv

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e
s
 

o
v
e

rn
ig

h
t.
 

1
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

S
p

e
c
ia

lt
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

L
ia

is
o

n
  

T
e

a
m

 l
e

a
d

e
r 

–
 A

W
P

 

A
m

b
e

r
N

E
W

 A
C

T
IO

N
 (

a
d

d
e

d
 2

5
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

)
W

in
te

r 
fu

n
d
in

g
 m

o
n

e
y
 a

g
re

e
d

 t
o

 e
x
te

n
d

 
lia

is
o

n
 h

o
u

rs
 7

 d
a

y
s
 a

 w
e

e
k
 t

o
 8

a
m

 –
 8

p
m

. 
In

te
n
s
iv

e
 t

e
a

m
 t
o

 r
e
c
ru

it
 a

n
 a

d
d

it
io

n
a

l 
re

s
o

u
rc

e
 f
o

c
u

s
e
d

 d
ir
e

c
tl
y
 o

n
 R

U
H

 E
D

 
o

v
e

rn
ig

h
t.
 R

e
c
ru

it
m

e
n

t 
in

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

In
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

p
a

ti
e

n
ts

 w
h

o
 w

a
it
 i
n

 t
h

e
 

R
U

H
 E

D
 g

re
a

te
r 

th
a

n
 4

 h
o
u

rs
 t
o

 b
e

 
s
h

a
re

d
 w

it
h

 A
W

P
 f

o
r 

jo
in

t 
p
a

th
w

a
y
 

a
n

a
ly

s
is

. 

4
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
 

S
p

e
c
ia

lt
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

L
ia

is
o

n
 T

e
a
m

 l
e

a
d

e
r 

–
A

W
P

) 

A
m

b
e

r
N

E
W

 A
C

T
IO

N
 (

a
d

d
e

d
 2

5
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1
3

)

In
te

rn
a
l 
M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt
h

 F
o

ru
m

 f
o

r 
d

e
p

a
rt

m
e

n
ts

 a
n

d
 w

a
rd

s
 t
o

 d
is

c
u

s
s
 

M
e

n
ta

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 a

n
d

 r
a
is

e
 i
s
s
u

e
s

1
8

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

S
p

e
c
ia

lt
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

G
re

e
n
 

N
E

W
 A

C
T

IO
N

 (
a

d
d

e
d

 2
5

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)
A

c
ti

o
n

 c
o

m
p

le
te

 
M

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 s

ta
rt

e
d

. 
F

ir
s
t 
m

e
e

ti
n
g

 h
e

ld
 o

n
 1

8
 

S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
. 

M
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 t

o
 b

e
 h

e
ld

 
q

u
a

rt
e

rl
y
. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 S
ta

n
d

a
rd

 O
p

e
ra

ti
n

g
 

P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
 (

S
O

P
) 

w
it
h

 A
W

P
 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

R
e

v
is

e
d

 d
a

te
 o

f 
3

0
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3
  

S
p

e
c
ia

lt
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

A
m

b
e

r
S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 O

p
e

ra
ti
n

g
 p

ro
c
e

d
u

re
s
 d

ra
ft
e

d
 a

n
d

 
to

 b
e

 f
in

a
lis

e
d

 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 m
e
e

ti
n
g

 w
it
h

 A
W

P
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 o
n
 7

th
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

  

Page 58



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 1

1
 o

f 
1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

F
o

llo
w

in
g

 d
e

v
e

lo
p

m
e
n

t 
o

f 
th

e
 S

ta
n

d
a

rd
 

O
p

e
ra

ti
n
g

 P
ro

c
e

d
u

re
s
, 
p

ro
d
u

c
e

 a
 g

a
p

 
a

n
a

ly
s
is

 a
n

d
 d

e
v
e

lo
p
 a

 n
e

w
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 
m

o
d

e
l 
to

 t
a

k
e

 t
o

 t
h

e
 c

o
m

m
is

s
io

n
e

rs
 f

o
r 

re
v
ie

w
 a

n
d

 p
o

te
n

ti
a

l 
fu

n
d

in
g
 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

S
p

e
c
ia

lt
y
 M

a
n

a
g

e
r 

R
e

d
 

Page 59



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 1

2
 o

f 
1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

M
e
n

ta
l 

H
e
a
lt

h
: 

D
o

L
S

 a
n

d
 A

s
s
is

ti
v
e
 T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
T

h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 7

. 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 

S
ta

tu
s

C
o

m
m

e
n

ts
/a

c
ti

o
n

 s
ta

tu
s

(P
ro

v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

Is
s
u
e

s
 r

e
la

te
d

 t
o

 t
h
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 
‘A

s
s
is

ti
v
e

 T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
’:
 

•
 

D
o

c
u

m
e

n
ta

ti
o
n

 t
o

 s
u

p
p

o
rt

 t
h

e
 u

s
e

 o
f 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 t
a

g
g
in

g
 d

e
v
ic

e
s
 w

a
s
 i
n

c
o

m
p
le

te
. 

T
h

e
 c

h
e

c
k
lis

t 
fo

r 
th

e
 ‘
R

is
k
 A

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n
t 

a
n
d

 
C

a
re

 P
la

n
 –

 P
a

ti
e

n
ts

 a
t 

ri
s
k
 o

f 
le

a
v
in

g
 t
h

e
 

w
a

rd
 u

n
a

tt
e

n
d

e
d
’ 
h

a
d

 n
o

t 
b

e
e
n

 u
s
e

d
 

c
o

rr
e
c
tl
y
. 

T
h

e
 s

e
c
ti
o

n
 o

n
 p

o
te

n
ti
a

l 
a

n
d
 

a
v
a

ila
b
le

 o
p

ti
o
n

s
 f
o

r 
th

e
 c

h
o

ic
e

 o
f 

th
e

 l
e

a
s
t 

re
s
tr

ic
ti
v
e

 m
e

a
s
u

re
 f

o
r 

re
s
tr

a
in

t 
w

a
s
 n

o
t 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
. 

In
 o

n
e

 i
n

s
ta

n
c
e

 t
h

is
 c

a
re

 p
la

n
 w

a
s
 

c
o

m
p

le
te

d
 4

 d
a

y
s
 a

ft
e

r 
th

e
 t
a

g
 w

a
s
 a

p
p

lie
d
 

•
 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 n

o
t 

c
a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t.
 

C
h

e
c
k
lis

ts
 f
o

r 
c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 
m

e
n

ta
l 
c
a

p
a

c
it
y
 

a
s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

ts
 a

n
d

 m
a
k
in

g
 b

e
s
t 
in

te
re

s
t 

d
e

c
is

io
n

s
 (

re
fe

re
n

c
e

d
 i
n

 t
h
e

 R
U

H
 p

o
lic

y
) 

w
e

re
 n

o
t 

c
o
m

p
le

te
d
. 

S
ta

ff
 r

e
lie

d
 o

n
 

a
g

re
e
m

e
n

t 
o

f 
p
a

ti
e

n
ts

’ 
re

la
ti
v
e
s
 f

o
r 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

‘t
a

g
s
’ 
in

s
te

a
d

 o
f 

c
a

rr
y
in

g
 o

u
t 

th
e

 p
ro

c
e

s
s
 f

o
r 

b
e

s
t 
in

te
re

s
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n
 m

a
k
in

g
 

•
 

S
ta

ff
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
a

w
a

re
 o

f 
th

e
 p

o
lic

y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 u
s
e

 
o

f 
e

le
c
tr

o
n

ic
 t

a
g
s
 (

d
ra

ft
 p

o
lic

y
) 

•
 

A
d

e
q

u
a
te

 c
o

n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 

g
iv

e
n

 t
o

 
a

lt
e

rn
a

ti
v
e

 i
n

te
rv

e
n

ti
o

n
s
, 

o
th

e
r 

th
a

n
 t
a

g
g
in

g
 

•
 

T
h

e
 w

a
rd

 l
o

g
 f

o
r 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

ta
g
s
 w

a
s
 

in
c
o
n

s
is

te
n

tl
y
 c

o
m

p
le

te
d

 w
it
h

 n
o

 e
n

tr
ie

s
 a

ft
e

r 
M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1

3
. 

T
h

e
 r

e
g

is
te

r 
d
id

 n
o

t 
a

lw
a

y
s
 

id
e

n
ti
fy

 w
h

e
n

 t
a

g
s
 w

e
re

 r
e

m
o

v
e

d
, 

e
v
e

n
 o

n
 

d
is

c
h

a
rg

e
 

•
 

T
h

e
 r

is
k
 a

s
s
e

s
s
m

e
n

t 
a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 s
u

m
m

a
ry

 
re

g
a

rd
in

g
 ‘
th

e
 a

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t 
re

la
ti
n

g
 t

o
 

w
a

n
d

e
ri

n
g

 /
 a

b
s
c
o
n

s
io

n
s
 o

ld
e

r 
p

e
o

p
le

’s
 u

n
it
’ 

w
a

s
 l
a

s
t 

re
v
ie

w
e

d
 o

n
 2

1
 J

a
n

u
a

ry
 2

0
1

0
 a

n
d

 
T

ru
s
t 

p
o

lic
y
 f

o
r 

th
e

 u
s
e

 o
f 

e
le

c
tr

o
n

ic
 t

a
g
g

in
g

 

D
ra

ft
 p

o
lic

y
 o

n
 t

h
e
 u

s
e

 o
f 
‘A

s
s
is

ti
v
e

 
T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
’ 
to

 b
e

 r
a
ti
fi
e

d
 t
a

k
in

g
 i
n

to
 

a
c
c
o

u
n

t 
c
o
m

m
e

n
ts

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e

 C
Q

C
 r

e
p

o
rt

 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 t
h

e
 r

e
q

u
ir
e

m
e
n

t 
to

 c
le

a
rl

y
 

d
o

c
u
m

e
n
t 

b
e
s
t 

in
te

re
s
t 
d

e
c
is

io
n

 m
a
k
in

g
 

a
n

d
 c

o
n
s
id

e
ra

ti
o

n
 o

f 
s
a
fe

ty
 w

it
h

o
u

t 
re

s
tr

a
in

t 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

M
a

tr
o

n
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
T

h
e

 p
o

lic
y
 h

a
s
 b

e
e
n

 r
e

v
ie

w
e

d
 a

n
d

 i
s
 c

a
lle

d
 

th
e

 ‘
S

a
fe

 W
a
n

d
e

ri
n

g
 T

e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y
 P

o
lic

y
’.
  

In
fo

rm
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
S

it
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

r 
o
f 

a
ll 

p
a

ti
e
n

ts
 w

h
e

re
 ‘
S

a
fe

 W
a
n
d

e
ri
n
g

 
T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
’ 
u
s
e

d
 

9
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

M
a

tr
o

n
 

O
ld

e
r 

P
e

rs
o

n
s
 U

n
it
 

(O
P

U
) 

C
o

n
s
u

lt
a

n
t 
a

n
d

 
C

lin
ic

a
l 
L

e
a
d
 

O
P

U
 C

o
n

s
u

lt
a

n
t 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
 (

re
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
T

h
e

 T
ru

s
t 

C
lin

ic
a

l 
S

it
e
 T

e
a

m
 i
s
 r

o
u

ti
n

e
ly

 
in

fo
rm

e
d

 o
f 

a
n

y
 p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 ‘
A

s
s
is

ti
v
e

 
T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
’ 
is

 b
e
in

g
 u

s
e
d

. 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
n

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o
n

 l
e
a

fl
e

t 
fo

r 
fa

m
ili

e
s
 o

n
 ‘
S

a
fe

 W
a
n
d

e
ri
n

g
 

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
’ 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
 f
o

r 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 A

d
u

lt
s
 a

t 
R

is
k
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
In

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 l
e

a
fl
e

t 
a

v
a

ila
b
le

 o
n
 t

h
e

 R
U

H
 

In
tr

a
n

e
t.
 

In
c
lu

d
e

 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 ‘
S

a
fe

 W
a

n
d

e
ri
n

g
 

T
e

c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
’ 
in

 t
h

e
 l
o
c
a

l 
in

d
u
c
ti
o

n
 f

o
r 

O
P

U
 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

M
a

tr
o

n
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 

C
o

m
m

e
n

c
e

 r
o

u
ti
n

e
 c

h
e

c
k
in

g
 o

f 
p

a
p

e
rw

o
rk

 f
o

r 
p

a
ti
e

n
ts

 w
h

e
re

 ‘
S

a
fe

 
W

a
n
d

e
ri
n

g
 T

e
c
h

n
o
lo

g
y
’ 
h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 u

s
e

d
. 

A
 c

o
lu

m
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 a

d
d

e
d

 t
o

 t
h

e
 w

a
rd

 l
o

g
 

to
 r

e
c
o

rd
 i
f 

th
e

 p
a
p

e
rw

o
rk

 h
a
s
 b

e
e

n
 

c
h

e
c
k
e
d
 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

M
a

tr
o

n
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 
P

a
p

e
rw

o
rk

 u
p
d

a
te

d
 a

n
d

 i
n

 p
la

c
e

; 
lo

g
 a

n
d

 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 r

o
u
ti
n

e
ly

 c
h

e
c
k
e
d

 b
y
 

m
a

tr
o
n

 a
n
d

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 
(M

e
d

ic
in

e
) 

 

In
v
e

s
ti
g

a
te

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

it
 i
s
 p

o
s
s
ib

le
 f

o
r 

a
 

n
o

m
in

a
te

d
 i
n

d
iv

id
u

a
l 
to

 c
a

rr
y
 t
h

e
 a

le
rt

 
s
y
s
te

m
 f

o
r 

‘S
a

fe
 W

a
n
d

e
ri

n
g

 
T

e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
’ 
ra

th
e

r 
th

a
n

 u
s
in

g
 t
h

e
 

c
u

rr
e

n
t 

lo
u

d
s
p

e
a
k
e

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 o

n
 t

h
e

 w
a

rd
 3

1
 O

c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

M
a

tr
o

n
 

A
m

b
e

r
A

w
a

it
in

g
 n

e
w

 p
a

g
e

r 
s
y
s
te

m
 i
n
s
ta

lla
ti
o

n
 

T
ru

s
t-

w
id

e
 t

o
 t

e
s
t 

n
e

w
 s

y
s
te

m
 c

a
n

 w
o

rk
 

w
it
h

 t
h

e
 w

a
n

d
e

ri
n
g

 t
e
c
h

n
o

lo
g

y
 s

o
 t
h

a
t 

a
n

 
a

la
rm

 w
ill

 s
o
u

n
d

 c
a

rr
y
in

g
 i
n
fo

rm
a

ti
o

n
 a

s
 t

o
 

w
h

ic
h

 d
o

o
r 

a
 p

a
ti
e
n

t 
is

 n
e
a

ri
n
g
. 

Page 60



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 1

3
 o

f 
1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

d
e

v
ic

e
s
 w

a
s
 n

o
t 
fo

llo
w

e
d

 
In

c
re

a
s
e

 s
ta

ff
 a

w
a

re
n

e
s
s
 o

f 
D

e
p

ri
v
a

ti
o
n

 
o

f 
L

ib
e

rt
y
 S

a
fe

g
u

a
rd

s
 (

D
o
L

s
) 

&
 M

e
n

ta
l 

C
a

p
a

c
it
y
 A

c
t 

(M
C

A
):

 

•
 

E
x
te

n
d

 t
h

e
 A

d
u

lt
s
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
  

re
fr

e
s
h

e
r 

tr
a

in
in

g
 t
o

 a
ll 

c
lin

ic
a
l 
s
ta

ff
  
 

•
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 f

u
rt

h
e

r 
e

n
h

a
n

c
e
d

 
D

o
L

S
 t

ra
in

in
g

 f
o

r 
s
e

n
io

r 
n
u

rs
e
s
 

a
n

d
 O

P
U

 c
o
n

s
u
lt
a
n

ts
 

•
 

R
o

lli
n
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 o

f 
w

a
rd

 
v
is

it
s
, 
fo

r 
b

ri
e

f 
in

te
rv

e
n

ti
o
n

s
 

a
b

o
u

t 
M

C
A

 &
 D

o
L

S
  

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
 f
o

r 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 I

m
p

ro
v
e

m
e

n
t 

&
 A

d
u

lt
s
 a

t 
R

is
k
 

S
e

n
io

r 
N

u
rs

e
, 
A

d
u

lt
 

S
a

fe
g

u
a

rd
in

g
 

S
is

te
r 

in
 Q

u
a
lit

y
 

Im
p

ro
v
e
m

e
n

t 
fo

r 
L

e
a

rn
in

g
 D

is
a

b
ili

ti
e
s
 

a
n

d
 M

e
n

ta
l 
H

e
a
lt
h
 

G
re

e
n
 

N
E

W
 A

C
T

IO
N

 (
a

d
d

e
d

 2
3

 O
c

to
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)
R

e
fr

e
s
h
e

r 
tr

a
in

in
g

 h
a

s
 b

e
e

n
 o

p
e

n
e

d
 u

p
 t
o

 
a

ll 
c
lin

ic
a

l 
s
ta

ff
. 

E
n

h
a

n
c
e

d
 t
ra

in
in

g
 t
o

 b
e

 c
o

m
m

e
n

c
e
d

 
N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

 a
n

d
 k

e
y
 s

ta
ff

 i
d

e
n

ti
fi
e

d
 t

o
 

a
tt

e
n

d
. 

F
ir
s
t 

d
a

te
 b

o
o
k
e

d
 f
o

r 
6

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

. 

R
o

lli
n
g

 p
ro

g
ra

m
m

e
 i
s
 b

e
in

g
 c

a
rr

ie
d

 o
u

t 
d

u
ri

n
g
 h

a
n

d
o

v
e

r 
ti
m

e
. 

T
h

is
 i
s
 c

o
m

m
e

n
c
in

g
 

2
8

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3

. 
 

T
h

e
 C

lin
ic

a
l 
R

e
fe

re
n
c
e

 G
ro

u
p

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 i
n
 

N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

w
ill

 b
e

 d
e
d

ic
a

te
d

 t
o
 a

 c
a
fé

 s
ty

le
 

a
p

p
ro

a
c
h

 w
it
h

 m
e

d
ic

a
l 
s
ta

ff
 a

n
d

 i
n
c
lu

d
e

 
in

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 a

b
o

u
t 
D

o
L

S
 a

n
d

 M
C

A
. 

Page 61



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 1

4
 o

f 
1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

G
o

v
e
rn

a
n

c
e

T
h
e
 f

o
llo

w
in

g
 i
s
s
u
e
s
 w

e
re

 r
a
is

e
d
 u

n
d
e
r 

o
u
tc

o
m

e
 1

6
. 

K
e

y
 f

in
d

in
g

s
A

c
ti

o
n

s
 r

e
q

u
ir

e
d

 (
s
p

e
c
if
y
 “

N
o
n

e
”,

 i
f 

n
o

n
e

 r
e

q
u
ir

e
d

) 
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 b

y
 d

a
te

P
e

rs
o

n
 r

e
s

p
o

n
s

ib
le

 
(N

a
m

e
 a

n
d

 g
ra

d
e

) 
S

ta
tu

s
C

o
m

m
e

n
ts

/a
c

ti
o

n
 s

ta
tu

s
(P

ro
v
id

e
 e

x
a

m
p

le
s
 o

f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 i
n
 p

ro
g

re
s
s
, 

c
h

a
n
g

e
s
 i
n

 p
ra

c
ti
c
e

s
 e

tc
) 

D
iv

is
io

n
a

l 
C

lin
ic

a
l 
G

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e
 M

e
e

ti
n

g
: 

 N
o

 
m

in
u
te

d
 d

is
c
u
s
s
io

n
 i
n

 r
e
g

a
rd

s
 t
o

 a
 n

u
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
a

g
e

n
d
a

 i
te

m
s
 (

e
.g

. 
th

e
 r

e
v
ie

w
 o

f 
re

d
 i
n

c
id

e
n

ts
, 

e
x
te

rn
a

l 
re

g
u
la

to
ry

 i
s
s
u

e
s
; 

b
u
s
in

e
s
s
 f

ro
m

 c
o

rp
o

ra
te

 
le

a
d
s
 f

o
r 

c
lin

ic
a

l 
g

o
v
e

rn
a
n

c
e

; 
is

s
u
e

s
 f
o

r 
o

p
e

ra
ti
o

n
a
l 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 c
o

m
m

it
te

e
; 
a

n
d
 f

in
a

lis
e

 a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
/r

is
k
 

fo
r 

m
a
n

a
g
e

m
e
n

t 
b
o

a
rd

) 

D
e

v
e

lo
p

 a
 f
o

rm
a

l 
te

m
p
la

te
 f

o
r 

g
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
. 

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 –
 M

e
d

ic
in

e
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 –
 S

u
rg

e
ry

 

G
re

e
n
 

T
e

m
p

la
te

 a
g

re
e

d
. 

 R
o

lle
d

 o
u

t 
a

t 
a

 s
p

e
c
ia

lt
y
, 

w
a

rd
 a

n
d

 d
e

p
a

rt
m

e
n

ta
l 
le

v
e

l 
fr

o
m

 2
8

 
O

c
to

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 b

y
 t

h
e

 H
e

a
d
s
 o

f 
D

iv
is

io
n
s
. 

  

M
a

tr
o

n
s
 m

e
e

ti
n

g
s
 d

id
 n

o
t 

c
o

n
ta

in
 i
n

fo
rm

a
ti
o

n
 o

n
 

c
lin

ic
a

l 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 o
r 

le
s
s
o

n
s
 l
e
a

rn
t 

(e
.g

. 
lo

w
 f

lu
id

 
in

ta
k
e

 o
r 

d
ie

ta
ry

 i
n

ta
k
e

) 

R
e

v
ie

w
 a

g
e

n
d

a
 t
o

 e
n
s
u

re
 l
e
s
s
o

n
s
 l
e

a
rn

t 
a

n
d

 c
lin

ic
a

l 
in

c
id

e
n
ts

 a
re

 a
 s

ta
n

d
in

g
 

a
g

e
n

d
a

 i
te

m
 

2
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 

O
n

 s
o

m
e

 w
a

rd
s
 r

e
g

u
la

r 
g

o
v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 m
e

e
ti
n

g
s
 d

id
 

n
o

t 
ta

k
e

 p
la

c
e

 a
n

d
 w

e
re

 n
o

t 
m

in
u

te
d
 

W
a
rd

 G
o

v
e

rn
a
n

c
e
 m

e
e

ti
n
g

s
 t
o
 b

e
 

m
in

u
te

d
. 

M
a

tr
o

n
s
 t

o
 a

g
re

e
 w

it
h

 w
a

rd
 

s
is

te
rs

 

3
0

 N
o

v
e

m
b
e

r 
2

0
1

3
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 –
 M

e
d

ic
in

e
 

A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

 –
 S

u
rg

e
ry

 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

) 

S
ta

ff
 o

n
 s

o
m

e
 w

a
rd

s
 w

e
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f 
n

e
w

 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n
ta

ti
o

n
 b

u
t 

n
o

t 
th

e
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 o
r 

c
o

m
p

lia
n

c
e

 a
c
ti
o
n

s
 f

ro
m

 t
h

e
 l
a
s
t 

in
s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
 

T
h

e
 f

u
ll 

a
c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n
 w

ill
 b

e
 d

is
tr

ib
u

te
d

 t
o

 
a

ll 
w

a
rd

s
 f
o

llo
w

in
g

 r
e

c
e

ip
t 
o

f 
th

e
 f

in
a

l 
C

Q
C

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti
o
n

 r
e

p
o

rt
 a

n
d

 a
ls

o
 

p
u

b
lis

h
e

d
 o

n
 t

h
e

 R
U

H
 I

n
tr

a
n

e
t 

3
1

 O
c
to

b
e

r 
2
0

1
3
 

D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g
 

L
e

a
d

 f
o

r 
Q

u
a

lit
y
 

A
s
s
u

ra
n

c
e
 

G
re

e
n
 

A
c

ti
o

n
 c

o
m

p
le

te
(r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 Q
u

a
li

ty
 

B
o

a
rd

 i
n

 N
o

v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

)

  Page 62



A
c

ti
o

n
 P

la
n

 f
ro

m
 t

h
e
 C

Q
C

 u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n

c
e
d

 i
n

s
p

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

th
e
 R

U
H

 (
J
u

n
e
 2

0
1
3
) 

P
a
g
e
 1

5
 o

f 
1
5
 

A
u
th

o
r:

 R
o
b
 E

lio
t,
 L

e
a
d
 f
o
r 

Q
u
a
lit

y
 A

s
s
u
ra

n
c
e
 

V
e
rs

io
n
 1

3
 

D
a
te

: 
4
 N

o
v
e
m

b
e
r 

2
0
1
3
 

H
o

w
 a

re
 y

o
u

 g
o

in
g

 t
o

 e
n

s
u

re
 t

h
a

t 
im

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 h
a

v
e

 b
e

e
n

 m
a

d
e

?
 
W

h
a

t 
m

e
a
s

u
re

s
 a

re
 g

o
in

g
 t

o
 b

e
 p

u
t 

in
 p

la
c

e
 a

n
d

 w
h

o
 w

il
l 

d
o

 i
t?

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 i
n

 c
o

m
p
le

ti
n

g
 t
h

is
 a

c
ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 w
ill

 b
e

 m
o

n
it
o

re
d

 a
t 
th

e
 T

ru
s
t’
s
 C

Q
C

 S
te

e
ri

n
g

 G
ro

u
p
 a

n
d

 r
e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o
 Q

u
a

lit
y
 B

o
a

rd
 o

n
 a

 m
o

n
th

ly
 b

a
s
is

. 
T

h
is

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 r

e
p

o
rt

e
d

 t
o

 T
ru

s
t 

B
o

a
rd

 
th

ro
u

g
h

 t
h
e

 m
o
n

th
ly

 Q
u

a
lit

y
 R

e
p

o
rt

. 

D
e

s
c

ri
b

e
 t

h
e

 r
e

s
o

u
rc

e
s
 n

e
e
d

e
d

 t
o

 i
m

p
le

m
e

n
t 

th
e

 c
h

a
n

g
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
th

e
r 

o
r 

n
o

t 
th

e
y
 a

re
 i

n
 p

la
c

e
:

F
u

n
d

in
g

 t
o

 b
e

 a
g

re
e

d
 f
o

r 
d

o
c
u
m

e
n

ta
ti
o
n

 f
o
ld

e
rs

 a
n
d

 b
e
d

 b
o
a
rd

s
 f

o
r 

a
ll 

w
a

rd
s
 

P
ro

v
id

e
 a

n
 a

p
p

ro
p

ri
a

te
 d

a
te

 b
y
 w

h
ic

h
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
il

l 
b

e
 m

a
d

e
: 

S
e

e
 a

c
ti
o
n

 p
la

n
 t
im

e
s
c
a

le
s
 

D
e

s
c

ri
b

e
 t

h
e

 i
m

p
a

c
t 

th
e

 i
m

p
ro

v
e

m
e

n
ts

 w
il

l 
h

a
v
e

 o
n

 p
e

o
p

le
 w

h
o

 u
s
e

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

:

Im
p

ro
v
e

d
 o

u
tc

o
m

e
s
 a

n
d

 e
x
p

e
ri

e
n

c
e

 f
o

r 
s
e

rv
ic

e
 u

s
e

rs
 

H
o

w
 w

e
 w

il
l 
m

o
n

it
o

r 
to

 c
h

e
c
k

 t
h

a
t 

th
e

 a
c

ti
o

n
 p

la
n

 i
s
 w

o
rk

in
g

?

T
h

ro
u

g
h

 a
u
d

it
 w

o
rk

 a
n

d
 m

o
c
k
 i
n

s
p
e

c
ti
o

n
s
. 

T
h

e
 M

a
tr

o
n

s
 w

ill
 a

ls
o
 c

a
rr

y
 o

u
t 

u
n

a
n

n
o

u
n
c
e

d
 v

is
it
s
 o

u
t 
o

f 
h
o

u
rs

, 
c
o

m
m

e
n
c
in

g
 N

o
v
e

m
b

e
r 

2
0

1
3

, 
to

 c
h

e
c
k
 t
h

a
t 
n

u
rs

in
g

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 a

re
 b

e
in

g
 

m
e

t 
a
n

d
 f
in

d
in

g
s
 f

e
d

 b
a
c
k
 t
o

 t
h
e

 D
ir

e
c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g

. 
 

S
u

c
c
e

s
s
 m

e
a

s
u

re
s
 (

K
e

y
 P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 I
n

d
ic

a
to

rs
) 

id
e

n
ti
fi
e

d
 f

ro
m

 t
h
e

 W
a
rd

 l
e

v
e
l 
s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
 j
o

b
 d

e
s
c
ri
p
ti
o

n
 f
o

r 
w

a
rd

 s
e
n

io
r 

s
is

te
rs

 a
n
d
 c

h
a

rg
e

 n
u

rs
e
s
, 

o
u

tl
in

in
g

 
e

x
p

e
c
ta

ti
o

n
s
 o

f 
th

e
 r

o
le

 a
n

d
 e

n
a

b
lin

g
 p

e
rf

o
rm

a
n
c
e

 t
o

 b
e

 m
e
a

s
u

re
d

. 
T

h
e

 M
a

tr
o

n
s
 a

n
d

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t 
D

ir
e
c
to

r 
o
f 

N
u

rs
in

g
 w

ill
 c

lo
s
e

ly
 m

o
n

it
o

r 
w

a
rd

 l
e

v
e

l 
s
c
o

re
c
a

rd
s
. 

M
a

tr
o

n
s
 w

ill
 m

e
e

t 
w

it
h

 
S

e
n

io
r 

S
is

te
rs

/C
h
a

rg
e

 N
u

rs
e
s
 m

o
n

th
ly

 t
o

 i
d

e
n

ti
fy

 i
s
s
u
e

s
 a

n
d

 w
h

e
re

 i
m

p
ro

v
e
m

e
n

ts
 n

e
e

d
 t
o

 b
e

 m
a

d
e

 a
n

d
 t
h

is
 w

ill
 f

o
rm

 p
a

rt
 o

f 
th

e
ir

 ‘W
a
rd

 t
o

 B
o

a
rd

’ 
q

u
a

rt
e
rl

y
 r

e
p

o
rt

s
 a

n
d

 w
ill

 a
ls

o
 b

e
 

m
o

n
it
o

re
d
 a

n
d
 d

is
c
u

s
s
e

d
 a

t 
th

e
 T

ru
s
t’
s
 S

e
n

io
r 

N
u

rs
e

s
 F

o
ru

m
 c

h
a
ir

e
d

 b
y
 t

h
e

 D
ir
e

c
to

r 
o

f 
N

u
rs

in
g
. 

S
ta

tu
s

R
e

d
 

C
a

u
s
e

 f
o

r 
c
o

n
c
e

rn
. 

N
o

 p
ro

g
re

s
s
 t
o

w
a

rd
s
 c

o
m

p
le

ti
o

n
. 

N
e
e

d
s
 

e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
a

c
ti
o

n
 b

e
in

g
 t
a

k
e
n
 

A
m

b
e

r 
D

e
la

y
e

d
, 

w
it
h

 e
v
id

e
n

c
e

 o
f 
a

c
ti
o

n
s
 t
o

 g
e
t 

b
a
c
k
 o

n
 t

ra
c
k
 

G
re

e
n

 
P

ro
g

re
s
s
in

g
 t

o
 t

im
e

, 
e

v
id

e
n
c
e

 o
f 

p
ro

g
re

s
s
 

Page 63



Page 64

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Continuing Healthcare Working Group 

Update on Action Plan 

 

Purpose of the report 

1. To update the Committee, jointly on behalf of NHS Wiltshire and Wiltshire 

Council, on the actions identified by the CHC Working Group. 

 

Overview 

2. During spring 2012, NHS Wiltshire and Wiltshire Council officers participated 

in a joint working group with HSC members and NHS Wiltshire Non Executive 

Directors which examined the arrangements, policies and processes for CHC.   

 

3. The Working Group provided a good opportunity to profile the partnership 

working which has been progressed over the last 18 months, aimed at 

improving patient/customer experiences of what is often inevitably a complex 

and sensitive process to determine eligibility for Continuing Healthcare. 

 

4. In May 2012, the Committee received and endorsed an action plan, based 

upon recommendations from the joint working group.    

 

5. In February 2013 the Committee received an update on the action plan.  

 

Update on the action plan 

6. An update on the action plan is provided as Appendix A.  Developments must 
be taken in the context of the following: 
 
a. NHS Wiltshire has been in transition to Wiltshire Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG).  The CHC function transitioned n in 
existing state to Wiltshire CCG from 1 April 2013 where full 
responsibility is retained by the CCG.  Responsibility for CHC sits 

Agenda Item 8

Page 65



within the Directorate of Quality and Patient Safety (Director is Jacqui 
Chidgey-Clark).   

b. Wiltshire Council officers are working in partnership with the Clinical 
Commissioning Group to develop joint commissioning arrangements 
between the two organisations and to undertake a review of all 
community health and care arrangements (the Community Services 
Transformation programme).  This programme will focus on improving 
the ‘care pathway’ for people, delivered through co-ordinated multi-
disciplinary team working.  The Community Services Transformation 
will provide further opportunities for improving delivery of CHC. 

  

7. Health Select Committee members are invited to note the updated action plan 

set out in Appendix A . 

 

Report Authors: 

Jacqui Chidgey -Clark, Director of Quality and Patient Safety, NHS Wiltshire CCG 

Dina Lewis, Associate Director of Quality and Patient Safety (CHC and Specialist 

Placements )  

Page 66



 

HSC Action Plan update February 2013 

 Recommendation Plan 

1 That a protocol is developed to 
ensure the Joint Decision 
Meeting (JDM) process within 
the assessment of CHC remains 
robust to include appropriate 
quality assurance checks.  
 
 

Establish Multi agency 
CHC Quality 
Assurance Task force 
to develop audit tool 
and quality assurance 
framework.   
 

2 That consideration be given to 
the weighting of the appeals 
panel to reflect an independent 
review of the process to ensure 
robustness of the decision made. 
 

Review of CHC 
Operational Policy in 
light of changes to 
National Framework 
and to take into 
account the NHS and 
Social Care Act in 
relation to the 
.transition of services 
to Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
or Commissioning 
Support Services.  
This will include 
framework for panels, 
Appeal Panels taking 
into account the 
cessation of PCTs and 

 

Update  February 2013 Update November 2013

Establish Multi agency 
CHC Quality 
Assurance Task force 
to develop audit tool 
and quality assurance 
framework.    

Terms of Reference developed 
for Health and Social Care 
Quality Assurance Group (see 
attached) which will look at audit.  
There are no audit tools available 
or being applied in the South 
West Region at this time.    

Internal audit tool in development. This 

will be ratified by the Health and Social 

Care Assurance Group. 

 

Review of CHC 
Operational Policy in 
light of changes to 
National Framework 
and to take into 
account the NHS and 

Care Act in 
relation to the 
.transition of services 
to Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
or Commissioning 
Support Services.  
This will include 
framework for panels, 
Appeal Panels taking 
into account the 
cessation of PCTs and 

The CHC Operational Policy will 
be reviewed following Clinical 
Commissioning Group 
authorisation in April 2013.   

CHC Operational Policy currently being 

reviewed to incorporate updated 

guidance and Funded Nursing Care.  

Local Appeal panels will now consist of 

GP Executive Leads 

 

 

Update November 2013 

Internal audit tool in development. This 

will be ratified by the Health and Social 

Care Assurance Group.  

CHC Operational Policy currently being 

reviewed to incorporate updated 

guidance and Funded Nursing Care.  

Local Appeal panels will now consist of 

GP Executive Leads as Chair. 

P
a
g
e
 6

7



 SHA for Independent 
Review Panel with this 
responsibility being 
moved to Sector 
Level( South of 
England). 
 
 
 

3 That clearer guidance on CHC 
and joint packages of care 
should be developed for use by 
members of the public including 
that the draft ‘Patient Experience’ 
flowchart compiled for the 
Working Group’s benefit be 
further developed to provide 
simplified guidance for members 
of the Public and as a reminder 
tool of the process for those 
working within CHC. 
 

CHC Quality 
Assurance Task Force 
to lead development of 
Patient Information in 
relation to CHC and 
FNC to ensure it is 
accessible, consistent 
and user friendly and 
offers appropriate 
signposting to 
advocacy and 
advisory services.  

Patient Information will be 
considered as part of the Quality 
Assurance groups remit.   

Review of patient Information will be 

completed by March 2013. 

 

4 To acknowledge the existing 
work already undertaken in 
relation to training of staff and 
that a continual improvements 
programme be implemented to 
ensure consistency for all those 
involved with CHC. 
 

CHC Quality 
Assurance Task Force 
to develop work 
programme and 
monitor 
 

This will be a core component for 
the Quality Assurance Group  

Training has been rolled out to social care 
staff regarding the revised guidance and 
will be commenced in January 2014 to 
community nursing teams 

5 To ask that the Committee make 
a recommendation to the 
Children’s Services Select 
Committee to request that 
information about CHC is 
considered as part of the 
Disabled Children and Adults 

Disabled Child and 
Adults Review Team 
confirmed information 
relating to Continuing 
Healthcare will be 
considered within the 
scope of their review.   

The disabled children and adults 
work will look at improving 
interfaces with health care 
providers, including CHC. As 
from 1st April 2013 there will be 
an extended social care disability 
service supporting children and 

Work has commenced to include Adult 

CHC in transition panels to ensure that 

potential transitions cases are flagged 

early and Adult CHC eligibility is 

established as early as possible.  

 

P
a

g
e
 6

8



Review 
 
 

young people with disabilities 
until the age of approx 25 (at the 
point of stability). This service will 
continue to examine this interface 
 
 
 
 

6 That the HASC Committee via a 
joint scrutiny exercise, review the 
Joint Resourcing and Joint 
Funding Protocol prior to 
consideration by Cabinet and the 
NHS Board. 
 

Develop Joint 
Resourcing 
Arrangements Policy 
with NHS Wiltshire 
Commissioners (NHS 
Commissioning Lead 
representative not 
CHC), to progress 
report back to HASC.  
 

A joint resourcing protocol has 
been drafted and is being tested 
with the CCG.  This will apply to 
people who have a mix of health 
and social care needs, but who 
are not eligible for CHC. 
Work is underway between the 
Council and the CCG to look at 
the opportunities for pooled 
budgets for individuals with very 
complex health and care needs. 
 
 
 

Work is continuing towards joint 
commissioning in Learning Disabilities and 
Mental Health. Further work has 
commenced  to develop a process for 
identifying health and social care tasks and 
this will form part of the Community 
Transformation project 

7 That an update report is 
presented to the HASC 
Committee on developments 
made in approximately 6 months 
from the Executive response to 
this report. 
 
 

Update report at the 
end of Quarter 3 
(including activity data 
for Q3) which informs 
progress and also 
advises on transition 
plans prior to NHS 
Wiltshire stand down 
prior to transfer to 
Clinical 
Commissioning 
Group/ 
Commissioning 
Support Services. 
 

Activity Data will be monitored 
and reviewed through the Quality 
Assurance Group. 
Q3 activity data performing as 
expected against trajectory.  
Main concern relates to 
retrospective applications 
following DoH cut off as Wiltshire 
received 583 enquiries, of which 
408 are ongoing (of this cohort 
118 are alive).   
 
 
CHC will transition in existing 
state to Wiltshire CCG from 1 

Latest benchmarking data shows an 
increase in the last 3 quarters conversion 
rate. The conversion rate has been affected 
by the large volume of CHC positive 
screens which are being received. In a 
significant proportion of these the screen 
has not been completed accurately in terms 
of application of the criteria and there 
appears to be re-requests for screening 
from individuals who have been assessed 
previously as not eligible. 

P
a
g
e
 6

9



April 2013 where full 
responsibility is retained by the 
CCG. 
 
 
  

 

 

P
a

g
e
 7

0


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	6 Royal United Hospital (RUH) action plan
	Action Plan from the CQC unannounced inspection of RUH

	8 Continuing Healthcare (CHC) Update
	CHC Recs November 201


